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RAPORTUL AUDITORULU! INDEPENDENT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Catre actionarii Rompetirol Rafinare 5.A.
To the Shareholders of Rompetroi Rafinare 5.4

Raport asupra auditului situatiilor financiare
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cpinia
Opinion

Am auditat situatiile financiare consolidate ale Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A. cu sediul social in
Bulevardul Navodari, nr. 215, Pavilion Administrativ, 907500 - Navodari, Romania, identificata
prin codul unic de inregistrare fiscala RO1860712, si ale filialelor sate (impreuna Grupul™), care
cuprind situatia consolidata a pozitiei financiare la data de 31 decembrie 2017, contul de profit si
pierdere consolidat, contul de profit si pierdere global consolidat, situatia consolidata a
modificarilor capitaiului propriu si situatia fluxuriior de trezorerie consofidata pentru exercitiul
financiar incheiat la aceasta data si un sumar al politicilor contabile semnificative si alte
informatii explicative (impreuna ,situatiile financiare"), toate sumeile fiind exprimate in dolari
americani {,USD"). De asemenea, am verificat conversia in RON a sumelor prezeniate in aceste
situatii pe baza descrisa in nota Ze.

We have sudited the consolidated financial statements of Rompelrol Kafinare S.A. with official
head office in 215, Navodar! Boulevard, Administrative Pavilion, 507500 - Navodari, Romania,
identified by sole fiscal registration number ROI1860712, and ifs subsidiaries (fogether “the
Group™)y which comprise the consofidated statement of financial position as af December 31,
2017, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated staterment of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and & summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (fogether the “financial statements™), all expressed in United States Dotlar ("USD7),
We have giso checked the transiation into Romanian lef on the basis described in Note Ze,

in opinia noastra, situatiile financiare consclidate anexate ofera o imagine fidela sj justa a pozitiel
financiare a Grupului la data de 31 decembrie 2017, ca si a performantei financiare si a fluxurilor
de trezorerie ale acestuia pentru exercitiul financiar incheiat la aceasta dala, in conformitate cu
Standardele infernationale de Raportare Financiara adopiate de Uniunea Europeana.

in owr opinion, the sccompanving consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017, and of ils financial performance and
its cash Hows for the vear then ended in accordance with Infernational Financial Eeporting
Standards as adopied by European Union,
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Bazele opiniai
Basis for cpinion

Noi am efectuat auditul conform Standardelor internationale de Audit (ISA}, Regulamentuiui (UE)
ne. 537/2014 &l Parlamentuiul European si gl Consiliuiui din 16 aprilie 2014 (,Requlamentul (UE}
nr. 537/20147) si Legii nr.162 /2017 (.Legea 162/2017"). Responsabifitatile noastre conform
acestor standarde sunt descrise mal detaliat in sectiunea ,Responsabiliiatile auditorului pentru
auditul situatiilor financiare” din raportul nostru.

Suntem independenti fata de Grup conform Codului etic af profesionistilor contabili emis de
Consiliul pentru Standarde Internationale de Etica pentru Contabili (codut IESBA), conform
cerintelor etice care sunt relevante pentru auditul situatiiior financiare in Romania, inciusiv
Requiamentul (UEY nr. 537/2014 si Legea 162/2017, si ne-am indeplinit responsabiliiatile etice
conform acestor cerinte si conform Codisdui IESBA. Consideram ca probele de audit pe care le-am
obtinut sunt suficiente si adecvate pentru a constitui baza pentru opinia noasira,

We conducted our audif in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), Reguiation
{(EUNo. 537/2014 of the Eurcpean Parflament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 ("Regulation
(EUINo. B37/2014")and Law 162/2017 (,Law 162/20177). Our responsibilities under those
standsards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial
Statemenis” section of our report,

We gre indspandent of the Croup in sccordance with the infernational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) fogether with the ethical
requiremsnts fhat are refevant to the gudit of the financial stafements in Romania, including
Reguiation (L) No. 537/2014 and Law 162/2017 and we have fulfiied our sther ethicai
responsibiiities in accordance with these requirements and the IES5BA Code. We helieve that the
audit evidence we have ohiasined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion,

Aspecte cheie de audit
Koy audit matlers

Aspectele cheie de audit sunf acele aspecte care, in baza raticnamentului nostru profesional, au
avut cea mai mare importanta pentru auditul situatiilor financiare consolidate din pericada
curenta. Aceste aspecte au fost abordate in contextul auditului desfasurat asupra situatiilor
financiare consolidate in ansambly, si in formarea opiniei noastre asupra acestora, si nu emitem
o opinie separata cu privire la aceste aspecie cheie.

Key audit malters are those matters that, in our professionsl judgment, were of most significance
in cur audit of the consalidated financial statements of the current period. These mattsrs were
gddressed in the confexi of our audit of the consolidated financial sfatements as g whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matlers,

Pentru fiecare aspect de mal jos, am prezentat in acel context o descriere a3 modului in care
auditul nostru a abordat respectivul aspect.

For each matter below, our description of how our gudit addressed the matter is provided in that
confext.
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Am indeplinit responsabilitatile descrise in sectiunea ,,Responsabilitatile auditorului pentru
auditul situatiilor financiare” din raportul nostru, inclusiv in legatura cu aceste aspecte cheie. In
consecinta, auditul nostru a inclus efectuarea procedurilor proiectate sa raspunda la evaluarea
noastra cu privire la riscul de erori semnificative in cadrul situatiifor financiare consolidate.
Rezultatele procedurilor noastre de audit, inclusiv ale procedurilor efectuate pentru a aborda
aspectele de mai jos, constituie baza pentru opinia noastra de audit asupra situatiilor financiare
consolidate anexate.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements” section of our report, including in refation {o these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of pracedures designed to respond to our
assassment of the risks of material misstatement of the consalidated financial statements. The
resulfs.of our gudit procedures, including the procedures performed fo address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion cn the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Testarea pentru depreclere a fondulul comercial si a imobilizarilor corporale
Informatiile prezentate de. grupul Rompetrol Rafinare cu privire la fondul comercial si imobillzarile
corporale Enclusuv cu prhnre la deprecierea aferenta sunt incluse in nota 4 nota 5 si respectiv
nota 6. L S .

Grupul Rompetrol Rafinare trebuue sa testeze Proceduriie noastre de auciit au incius. printre

anual pentru depreciere valoarea fondului altele:;
comercial. La 31 decembrie 2017, fondul « am analizat si evaluat judecata conducerii cu
comercial al Grupului are valoarea de 83 privire la existenta indicatorifor de
milioane USD si este semnificativ pentru depreciere pentru imohilizari corporale si
auditul nostru. Testarea pentru depreciere a respectiv fond comercial, luand in
fondului comercial a fost efectuata {a nivelul considerare de asemened, daca testul de
unei singure unitati generatoare de numerar - depreciere a acoperit toate unitatile
Downstream, careia i-a fost alocat acest fond generatoare de numerar/activele individuale
comercial. semnificative pentru care au existat
indicatori de depreciere la sfarsitul pericadei
Imobifizarile corporale sunt de asemenea de raportare;
semnificative pentru auditul nostru, avand in s am comparat velumele de praductie/vanzari
vedere importanta pozitiei bilantiere de 1.255 si costurite actuale in 2017 ale fiecare
miltoane USD la 31 decembrie 2017. De unitati generatoare de numerar cu volumele
asemenea, evaluarea conducerli cu privire la de productie/vanzari si costuri estimate In
indicatorii de depreciere a unitatilor bugetul pregatit pentru 2017;
generatoare de numerar si respectiv a » am comparat preturiie viitoare pe termen
activelor individuate implica analiza unor surse scurt si lung pentru titei si gaze sl marjele
de informatii diverse, inclusiv a factorilor cu produselor folosite in bugetele Grupului cu
privire la mediuf economic si a factorilor previziunile analistilor si cele adoptate de
specifici industriei. alte societati internationale din domeniul
petrolier;
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in plus, in 2017 Gruput si-a schimbat politica
contabila peniru evaluarea cladirilor, de la
maodelul pe baza de cost la modelul hazat pe
reevaluare, care a condus la o crestere neta in
valoarea contabila a ciadirilor de 129 milioane
UsD.

industria de petroi si gaze a trecut prin
schimbari semnificative ca urmare a declinului
preturilor petrofului si gazelor incepand cu
ultima parte a anuiul 2014, ceea ce a condus la
inchiderea unor centre de productie si
amanarea investitiilor de catre unii jucatori din
industrie. La 31 decembrie 2017 conducerea a
identifical indicatori de depreciere si a efectuat
testari pentru depreciere separate cu privire la
imobilizarite corporale ale celor trei unitati
generatoare de numerar identificate:
Downstream, cu ¢ valoare neta contabila a
imobilizariior corporale de 207 milioane USD,
Rafinare, cu o valoare contabila neta a
imobilizarilor corporale de 919 milioane USD si
Petrochimie cu o valoare contabila neta a
imobilizarilor corporale de 55 milicane USD.

Testarea pentru depreciere a fondului
comercial si a imaobilizariior corporale esie
importanta pentru auditul nostru decarece
procesul de evaluare este complex, implica
rationamente semnificative ale conducerii si se
hazeaza pe ipoteze care sunt afectate de
conditiile de piata viltoare din sud-estul
Europel.

s am evaluat acuratetea istorica a bugetelor si
estimariior conducerii prin compararea lor
cu performanta efectiv realizata sicucea a
anuiui anterior;

e am implicat specialistii nostri evaluatori
interni pentru a ne asista |a evaluarea
ipotezelor-cheie si a metodologiilor aplicate
de Grupul Rompetrol Rafinare pentru
testarea de depreciere a fondului comercial
si a imobilizariior corporale. Evaluarea
noastra s-a axat pe estimarea ratei de
actualizare folosite, pe analiza privind
senzitivitatea valorilor recuperabile ale
unitatilor generatoare de numerar la
modificarile ipotezelor semnificative,
precum si pe ipotezele-cheie aplicate la
astimarea fluxurilor de numerar viitoare
pentru unitatile generatoare de numerar
respective (cum ar fi preturile de vanzare
preconizate, volumele de productie /
vanzare, marjele produselor, modificarile
capitalului de fucru, etc.), analizand
conformitatea acestora cu mediul economic
general st cel specific industriel, cu
informatiile de piata reievante disponibiie si
cu planurile de afaceri ale Grupului;

= am testat acuratetea matematica a
modeiului;

Ca parte a procedurilor noasire de audit
specifice cu privire 1a reevaluarea ¢ladirilor, am
obtinut rapoartele de reevaluare emise de
expertii evaluatori externi angajati de Grup si
am efectual urmatoarele proceduri:

= am evaiuat independenta si competenia
expertilor evaluatori externi;

s amimplicat specialistii nostri evaluatori
interni pentru a ne asista in aprecierea
metodologiilor de evaluare folosite siin
tastarea principalelor ipoteze {inciuzand
factorii de indexare folositi in determinarea
costulul de inlocuire folosind metoda
indirecta/de indexare, testand durata de
viata ramasa si cea tolala pentru activeie
evaluate pe clase, estimarea factoriior de
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depreciere specifici pentru activele
nefolosite sau uzate, testand informatia de
piata acolo unde este relevant) prin
comparatie cu trendurile istorice si
informatii externe;

s am testat, pe baza unui esantion acuratetea
matematica a calculelor cheie observate in
cadrut raportului de evaluare pregatit de
evaluatorul independent.

Am evaluat de asemenea caracterul adecvat al
informatiilor prezentate de Grup cu privire la
fondul comercial si imobilizarile corporaie,
inctuzand deprecierea aferenta.

Recuperabilitatea creantei pnvind impoz:tui pe prof:t amanat : - :
Informatiile prezentate de Grupul Rompetroi Raf‘nare cu pr;v:re la creanta privmd ;mpcz;tul pe :

profitul amanat sunt incluse in Nota 13.

Dupa cum este prezentat in nota 13 la s;tuatn!e
financiare, la 31 decembrie 2017, Societatea a
recunoscut o creanta de impozit pe profit
amanat de 36 milioane USD, rezultand din
pierderi fiscale reportate.

Creanta privind impozitui pe profit amanat are
o importanta semnificativa pentru auditul
nostru avand in vedere importania pozitiei
bilantiere la 31 decembrie 2017 si faptul ca,
pentru evaluarea recuperabilitatii soldului,
procesul de estimare necesita rationamente ale
conducerii, in special raportat la informatiile
privind suficienta veniturilor impozabile
previzionate pe baza carora pierderiie fiscale
pot fi folosite, preconizandu-se ca unele dintre
acestea vor fi generate peste mal multi ani in
viltor.

Pmcedurile noastre de audEt s-au axa% pe
evaluarea ipofezelor-cheie ale conducerii cu
privire la recuperabilitatea creantei privind
impozitul pe profit amanat, cum ar fi previziuni
care stau ta baza recunoasterii activuiui,
inclusiv sumarul datelor de expirare a
pierderiior fiscale. Am evalual conformitatea
acestor praviziuni cu planurile de afaceri pe
termen lung aplicate de conduceres pentru
gestionarea si monitorizarea performantei
activitatii.

Specialistii nostri interni in aspecte fiscale au
fost implicati, daca a fost cazul, in procedurile
noastre de audit in domeniul impozitarii curente
st efectul oricarel evaluari relevante a fost tuat
in considerare in cadrul evaluarii noastre cu
privire la profectiile privind profitul impozabil,

De asemenea, am evaluat caracterui adecvat ai
informatiilor prezentate de grup cu privire la
creanta privind impozitul pe profit amanat.

Completitudinea si caracterul adecvat al provizicanelor pentru titigii
Informatiile prezentate de grupul Rompetrol Rafinare cu privire la litigii sunt incluse in Note 27.
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Grupul este implicat in litigii diferite si
semnificative, inclusiv in legatura cu proceduri
de reglementare sifsau guvernamentale,
precum si investigatii ale autoritatilor fiscale
care sunt prezentate 1a nota 27 din situatiile
financiare. Aceste aspecte sunt importante
pentru auditul nostru datorita incertitudinilor
inerente cu privire la rezultatul final al acestor
litigii, complexitatea cazurilor si rationamentul
semnificativ aplicat de conducere in estimarea
rezultatului final al acestor evaluari si al
expunerilor (ex.: daca o datorie ar trebui
recunoscuta sau o datorie contingenta ar
trebui prezentata si daca o potentiala iesire de
numerar poate fi estimata in mod credibib),

Datorita importantei si complexitatii acestor
litigii, rezultate nefavorabile ar putea avea un
potential impact asupra performantei
financiare si pozitiei financiare a Grupului.

Procedurile noastre de audit au inclus, printre
altele, obtinerea de confirmari de la avocatii
externi ai Grupului care ofera asistenta cu
privire la aceste cazuri precum si documentatie
suport de la departamentul juridic intern al
Grupului, cu privire la stadiul acestor litigii. Am
examinat procesele verbale ale Consililor de
Administratie ate societatilor din grup si am
efectuat intalniri periodice cu conducerea
pentru a discuta si intelege evolutia acestor
actiuni legale, ipotezele si rationamentul
conducerii cu privire la aceste aspecte.

Am evaluat daca opiniile avocatilor externi si a
departarmentului juridic intern sunt In
concardanta cu ipotezele si estimarile aplicate
de conducere in ceea ce priveste recunoasterea
si evaluarea provizioaneior sau evaluarea si
prezentarea datoriilor contingente cu privire la
aceste aspecte, pe baza evenimentelor si
circumstantelor existente. Specialistii noskri
interni au fost implicati, daca a fost cazul,
pentru a ne asista in a analiza cazurile legale si
ipotezele efectuate de conducere,

De asemenea, am evaluat caracterul adecvat al
informatiilor prezentate cu privire la
provizioane si datorii contingente rezultate din
aceste actiuni legale.

lmpairmenf testlng of goodwill and property, plant and equlpment

Rompetrol Rafinare Group's disclosures about goodw;ﬂ and property, prant and equipment
including the refated impairment, are included in Note 4, Note 5 and Note 6 respectively.

Rompetrol Rafinare Group is required to test, at
least annually and when impairment indicators
exist,the amount of goodwill for impairment. As
at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of
goodwill is USD 83 million and is material to our
audit. The goodwill impairment festing was
performed at the fevel of one cash-generating
unit (CGU) - Downstream, to which the
respective goodwill was allocated.

Cur audit procedures incfuded, among ofhers:

» we analysed and evaluated the
management’s assessment of the existence
of impairment indicators for property, plant
and equipment and goodwill, respectively,
considering also whether the impairment
testing covered all significant cash
generating units/individual assets for which
impairment indicators existed at the end of
the reporting period;

Traduceros i fimba englare are caar scop infacmaliv. TraDuCered rBpOMTutel LIQTAse CiHita Impreuna 2u titualile firanciare, luate o anssmbiv. 10 sltuailie io care intermalife, pundeiy Co vetery
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Property, plant and equipment (PPE}is also
significant to our audit because of the
magnitude of the balance sheet position of USD
1,255 miliion as at 31 December 2017.
Furthermore, the management’s assessment of
impairment indicators for CGUs and indjvidual
assets respectively involves consideration of
various sources of information, including
factors related to the economic environment
and industry specific factors. In addition, in
2017 the Group changed its accounting policy
for measurement of buildings, from cost model
to revaluation model, which led to a net
increase in the carrying value of buildings of
USD 129 million.

The oif and gas industry went through
significant changes following a decline in oil and
gas prices since late 2014, which resulted in
capacity shutdowns and deferred investments
by some players in the industry. As of 31
December 2017 the management has
identified iImpairment indicators and has
performed separate impairment testing in
respect of the three CGUs' identified.
Downstream, with a PPE carrying value of USD
207 million, Refining with a PPE carrying value
of USD 919 million and Petrochemicals with a
PPE carrving value of LISD 55 million, resulting
in no impairment loss being recognised.

The impairment testing of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment is significant to
our audit because the assessment process is
complex, requires significant management
fudgment and is based on assumptions that are
affected by expected future market conditions
in South East Europe.

~i

s we compared the actual production/sales
volumes and costs in 2017 of each cash
generating unit with the production/sales
volumes and costs estimates in the budget
prepared in 2017;

s we compared the future short and long term
oil and gas prices and product margins used
in the Group's budgefs to consensus
analyst's forecasts and those adopted by
other international oil companies;

s we assessed the historical accuracy of
management’s budgets and forecasts by
comparing them to actual performance and
fo prior year;

s we involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in evaluating the key
assumptions and the methodologies used by
Rompefrol Rafinare Group for the
impairment testing of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment. Our
evaluation was focused on the discount rate
estimate, on the sensitivity analysis of the
CGUs'" racoverable amounts to changes in
the significant assumptions, as well as on
the key assumptions applied in the
estimates of future cash flows for the
respective CGUs (such as expected sales
prices, production/sales volumes, product
margins, working capital changes, etc.; by
analysing their consistency with the general
and industry-specific economic
envirgnment, relevant available market
information and the business plans of the
Group.

e we tested the mathematical accuracy of the
models;

As part of our specific audit procedures on

revaluation of buildings we obtained the

valuation reports issued by the external

valuation experts engaged by the Group and

performed the following procedures:

e we assessed the independence and the
competence of the externaf valuation
experfs;




Recoverability of deferred tax assets -

= we involved our internal valuation specialists

to assist us in the evaluation of the valuation
methodologies used and testing the main
assumptions (including indexation factors
used in deriving replacement cost using the
indirect/indexation method, testing the
remaining and total useful fives assumptions
for the valued assets by classes, estimation
of specific depreciation factors foridie or
obsolete assets, testing market based inputs
where refevant) against historical trends and
sxternal data;

s« we tested on g sample basis the

mathematical accuracy of key computations
observed within the valuation report
prepared by the independent appraisers.

Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy of the
Group’s disclosures about goodwill and property,
plant and equipment, including the related
impairment.

Rompetrol Rafinare Group's disclosures about deferred tax assets are mc!uded in Note 13

As presented in Note 13 to the financial
statements, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company recognized a net deferred tax asset of
USD 36 miltion resulting from tax losses carried
forward.

Deferred tax assets are significant to our audit
because of the magnitude of the balance sheet
position as at 31 December 2017 and the fact
that the estimation process requires
management judgement to gssess the
recoverability of the balance, in particufar by
reference to evidence for sufficient forecasted
taxable income against which tax losses can be
utilised, some of which are expected to arise a
number of years in the future.

Qur audit procedures focused on assessing the
key management assumptions for the deferred
tax asset recoverability such as forecasts which
underpin the asset recognifion, including
summaries of fax losses expiry dates. We
evaluated the consistency of these forecasts
with the long term business plans used by
management o manage and monitor the
performance of the business.

Our internal tax specialists were involved, as
appropriate, in our audif procedures in the
current taxation area and the effect of any
relevant evaluations was faken into
consideration in our assessment of the taxable
profit projections.

Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy of the
Group’s disclosures regarding deferred tax
assets,

Duiziga Gz velsrs

HE T



sing tar
fing e

Completeness and appropriateness of provisions for litigations
Rompetrol Rafinare Group's disclosures about litigations are included in Note 27.

The Group is involved in various and significant
fitigations, including in relation fo regulatory
and/or governmental proceedings as well as
investigations by tax authorities which are
presented in Note 27 to the financial
statements. This area Is significant to our audit
due to the inherent uncertainties over the final
autcome of these litigations, complexity of the
cases and the significant judgement applied by
the management in estimating the final
outcome of such assessments and exposures
(i.e. whether g liability should be recognized or
a contingency should be disclosed and whether
the potential oufflows can be refiably
estimated).

Due to the significance and complexity of these
litigations, adverse outcomes could potentially
impact the Group's reported financiaf
performance and financial position.

Alte informatii
Other information

Our audit procedures included, among others,
obtaining legal confirmations from the
Group’s external lawyers advising on these
matters and supporting documentation from
the Group's internal legal counsel regarding
the stafus of these litigations. We have
inspected the minutes of the Board of
Directors’ meetings and held periodic
meetings with management to discuss and
understand the developments in legal
proceedings and the management
assumptions and judgement in respect of
these matters. We assessed whether the
opinions of external lawvers and internal legal
counsel are consistent with the assumptions
and estirmates applied by management
regarding recognition and measurement of
provisions or measurement and disclosure of
contingent ligbilities in respect of these
matters, based on the facts and
circumstances available. Qur internal
specialists were involved, where appropriate,
to assist us to analyse the legal cases and the
assumptions made by management.

We further evaluated the adequacy of
disclosures regarding provisions recognised
and contingencies resulting from legal
proceedings.

Alte informatii includ Raportul administratoriior, dar nu includ situatiile financiare consolidate si
raportul nostru de audit cu privire la acestea. Conducerea este responsabila pentru alte

informatii.

The other information f*z;}ﬁ‘;:sr:s%i: f
consofidated financial statements
for the other information.
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Opinia noastra de audit asupra situatiilor financiare consolidate nu acopera alte informatii si nu
exprimam nicio forma de concluzie de asigurare asupra acestora.
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do nof express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In legatura cu auditul efectuat de noi asupra situatiilor financiare consotidate, responsabilitatea
noastra este de a citi aceste aite informatii si, facand acest lucru, de a analiza daca acestea nu
sunt in concerdanta, in mod semnificativ, cu situatiile financiare consolidate sau cunostintele pe
care le-am obtinut in urma auditului sau daca acesiea par sa includa erort semnificative. Baca, in
baza activitatii desfasurate, ajungem la concluzia ca exista erori semnificative cu privire la aceste
alte infarmatii, noi trebuie sa raportam acest fucru. Nu avern nimic de raportat in acest sens.

in connection with ocur audit of the consalidated financial statemenis, our responsibility (s to read
the other infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsisient with the consolidated financial staterments or our knowiedge oblained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsabilitatea conducerii si a perscanelor responsabile cu guvernanta pentru situatiile
financiare _

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Conducerea Grupuliui are responsabilitatea intccmirii si prezentarii fidele a situatiifor financiare
consolidate in conformitate cu Standardele internationale de Raportare Financiara adoptae de
Uniunea Europeana, si pentru acel control intern pe care conducerea il considera necesar pentru
a permite intocmirea de situatii financiare consolidate care sunt lipsite de denaturari
sermnificative, cauzate fie de frauda, fie de eroare.

Groun management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
fingncial statements in accordance with the international Financial Reporting Standards adopted
by European Union, and for such internal controf as management defermines is necessary o
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ta intocmirea situatiifor financiare consolidate, conducerea este responsabila sa evalueze
abilitatea Grupului de a-si desfasura activitatea conform principiutui continuitatii activitatii si sa
prezinte, daca este cazul, aspectele referitoare la continuitatea activitatii si folosirea principiuiui
continuitatii activitatii, mai putin in cazul in care conducerea intentioneaza sa lichideze Grupul
sau sa il inceteze activitatea sau nu are nicio alternativa reala decat sa procedeze astfel.
in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
roup's ability to continue as a going concern, distlosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends fo
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic afternative but to do so.
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Persoanele responsabile cu guvernanta au responsabilitatea supravegherii procesutui de
raportare financiara a Grupului.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
DIOTESS.

Responsabilitatile auditorulul pentru auditul situatiitor financiare
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Obhiectivele noasire constau in obtinerea unei asigurari rezonabile privind masura in care
situatiile financiare consolidate, luate in ansamblu, nu contin denaturari semnificative cauzate de
eroare sau frauda si de a emite un raport de audif care sa includa opinia noastra. Asigurarea
rezonabila reprezinta un nivel ridicat de asigurare, insa nu este o garantie ca un audit desfasurat
in conformitate cu standardele 1SA va detecta intotdeauna o denaturare semnificativa, daca
aceasta exista. Denaturarile pot fi cauzate fie de frauda fie de eroare si sunt considerate
semnificative daca se poate preconiza, in mod rezonabil, ca acestea, atat {a nivel individual sau
iuate in ansambiu, vor influenta deciziile economice ale utilizatorilor luate in baza acestor situatii
financiare consolidate.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as 8 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to Iraud or error, and 1o
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Regsonabie assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists,

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
an the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Ca parte a unui audit in conformitate cu standardete {SA, ne exercitam rationamentul profesional
si ne mentinem scepticismul profesional pe intreg parcursul audituiui. De asemenea:

As part of an audit In accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsor

¥ ldentificam si evaluam riscurile de denaturare semnificativa a situatiilor financiare
consoiidate, cauzate fie de frauda fie de eroare, stabilim si efectuam proceduri de audit care
sa raspunda acestor riscuri si obtinern probe de audit suficiente si adecvate penirua
constitui o baza pentru opinia noastra. Riscul de nedetectare a unei denaturari semnificative
cauzate de frauda este mai ridicat decat cel de nedetectare a unei denaturari semnificative
cauzate de ercare, deoarece frauda poate include complicitate, falsuri, omisiuni intentionate,
declaratii false sau evitarea controluiui intern.,
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identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidaled fnancial
statements, whelher due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material misstaternent resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misreprasentations, or the override of internal controd,

Intelegem controlul intern refevani pentru audit pentru a stabili procedurile de audit
adecvate in circumsiantele date, dar nu si in scopul exprimarii unei opinil asupra eficacitatii
controluiui intern al Grupuiui.

Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing
an oainion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluam gradul de adecvare a politicilor contabile utilizate si rezonabilitatea estimarilor
contabile si a prezentarilor aferente de informatii realizate de catre conducere,
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policfes used and the reasonableness of
accounfing estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Concluzionam asupra caracterului adecvat al utilizarii de catre conducere a principiului
continuitatii activitatii, si determinam, pe baza probelor de audit ebtinute, daca exista o
incertitudine semnificativa cu privire la evenimente sau conditii care ar putea genera indoieli
semnificative privind capacitatea Grupului de a-si continua activitatea. In cazul in care
concluzionam ca exista o incertitudine semnificativa, trebuie sa atragem atentia, in raportul
de audit, asupra prezentariior aferente din situatiile financiare consolidate sau, in cazul in
care aceste prezentari sunt neadecvate, sa ne modificam opinia. Concluziile noastre se
bazeaza pe probele de audit obtinute pana la data raportuiui nostru de audit. Cu toate
acestea, evenimente sau conditii viitoare pot determina ca Grupud sa nu isi mal desfascare
activitatea in baza principtulul continuitatii activitatii.

Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounfing and, based on the sudil evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists
refated to events or conditicns that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue 35 3 going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw aftention in our suditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consglidated financial statements or, If such discfosures are ingdeguate, to modify our
opfnion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up fo the date of our
auditors’ report, However, future svenis or conditions mav cause the Group to cease fo
continue as & going concern.

aifie, punrteie g9 vedere
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»  Evaluam prezentarea, structura si continutul general al situatiilor financiare consolidate,

" inclusiv al prezentarilor de informatii, si masura in care situatiile financiare consolidate
reflecta tranzactiile si evenimentele de baza intr-o maniera care realizeaza prezentarea
fideia.

B Evaluats the overali presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statemenis, including the disciosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying fransactions and evenis in a manner that achieves fair presentalfion.

» . Obtinem suficiente probe de audit adecvate cu privire la informatiile financiare aie entitatilor
sau activitatiior din cadrul Grupuiul pentru a exprima o opinie asupra situatiiior financiare
consolidate. Sunfem responsabili pentru indrumarea, supravegherea si efectuarea auditului
fa nivelul grupului. Suntem singurii responsabili peniru opinia noastra de audit.

¥ Oblain sufficlent aporopriate audit evidence regarding the nancial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit, We remalin solely responsible for our audit opinion.,

Comunicam persaanelor responsabile cu guvernanta, prinire alte aspecte, obiectivele planificate
si programarea in timp a auditului, precum si constatarile semnificative ale auditului, inciusiv
orice deficiente semnificative ale controlului intern, pe care fe identificam pe parcursul audituiui
nostru.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and Himing of the gudit and significant audit findings, including any sianificant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

De asermenea, prezentam persoanelar responsabile cu guvernanta o declaratie cu privire la
conformitatea noastra cu cerintele etice privind independenta si le comunicam foate relatiile si
alte aspecte care pot fi considerate, in mod rezonabil, ca ar putea sa ne afecteze independenta
si, unde este cazul, masurile de siguranta aferente.

e also provide those charged with governance with s statement that we have complied with
refevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them alf
refationships and olher matters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Dintre aspectele pe care le comunicam persoanelor responsabile cu guvernanta, stabifim acaje
aspecte care au avut cea mai mare importanta in cadrul auditului asupra situatiilor financiare
consolidate din perioada curenta si, prin urmare, reprezinta aspecte cheie de audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we deferming those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consclidated financial siatements of the
current perind and are therefore the key audit matters.

it gnisamh i Situating in care Infoomatile, punsten g8 vedsie
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Raport cu i}rivire la alte cerinte legale si de reglementare
Feport on Other Legal and Regulstory Requirements

Raportare asupra unor informatii, altele decat situatiile financiare si raportul nostru de audit
asupra acesfora

Reporting on Information Other than the Financial Statements and Our Auditors” Report
Therson

Pe langa responsabilitatile noastre de raporiare conform standardelor ISA si descrise in
sectiunea , Alte informatii”, referitor ia Raportul administratoriior, noi am citit Raportul
administratorilor si raportam urmatoarele:

a) in Raportul administratorilor nu am identificat informatii care sa nu fie consecvente, sub
toate aspectele semnificative, cu informatiile prezentate in situatiile financiare consolidate la
datade 31 decembrie 2017, atasate;

by Raportui administratorilor, identificat mai sus, inciude, sub toate aspectele semnificative,
informatiile cerute de QOrdinul Ministrului Finantelor Publice nr. 2844/2016 pentru
aprobarea Reglementarifor contabile conforme cu Standardele Internationale de Raportare
Financiara, cu modificarife si clarificarile ultericare, Anexa 1, punctele 15-19, 26-28

¢) pe baza cunostintelor noastre si a intelegerii dobandite in cursul auditului situatiilor
financiare consolidate intocmite la data de 31 decembrie 2017 cu privire ia Grup si la mediul
acestuig, nu am identificat informatii eronate semnificative prezentate in Raportul
administratoritor.

i addition to our reporting responsibilities according o ISAs described in section "Other

information”, with respect Fo the Administrators’ Report, we have read the Administrators’

Report and report that:

ay inthe Administrators Report we have not ldentified information which is not consistent, in all
malerial respects, with the information presented in the accompanying consolidsted financial
statermnents as aft December 31, 2017,

by the Administrators Report identified above includes, in all material respeacts, the required
information according to the provisions of the Ministry of Public Finance Order no.
2B44/2016 approving the accounting requiations compliant with the International Financiat
Reporting Standards, with all subsequent modifications and clarifications, Annex I poinis 15
-~ 19, 26-28;

o3 hased on our knowledge and understanding concerning the Group and ils environment gained
during our audit of the consolidated financlal statements as at December 31, 2017, we have
notidentified informalon included in the Administrators’ Report that contains & material
misstaterment of faci
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Alte cerinte privind cuprinsul raportului de audit conform Reguiamentului (UE) nr. 537/2014
al Parlamentului European si al Consiliului

Other requirements on content of auditor's report in complianee with Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council

Nurmirea si aprobarea auditorului
Appointment and Approval of Audifor

Am fost numiti auditori ai Gruputui de catre Adunarea Generala a Actionarilor ia data de 13
aprilie 2017 pentru a audits situatiiie financiare consclidate ale exercitiului financiar incheiat la
31 decembrie 2017. Durata totaia de misiune continua, inclusiv reinnoirile (prelungirea perioadei
pentru care am fost numiti initial) si renumirile anterioare drept auditori a fost de 10 anj,
acoperind exercitiile financiare inchelate la 31 decembrie 2008 pana fa 31 decembrie 2017.

We were appoinfed as auditors of the Group by the Generaf Meeting of Shareholders on April 13,
2017 to eudit the consolidated financial statements for the financial vear end December 31,
2017,

Total uninterrupted engagement period, including previous renswals (extension of the periog for
which we were originally appointed} and reappointments for the statulory auditor, has lasted for
10 years, covering the financial periods end December 31, 2008 ti December 31, 2017,

Consecventa cu raportul suplimentar adresat Comitetului de Audit
Consistency with Additional Report to the Audit Commiftes

Opinia noastra de audit asupra situatiilor financiare consolidate exprimata in acest raport este in

concordanta cu raportul suplimentar adresat Comitetului de Audit at Grupuiui, pe care I-am emis

in aceeasi data in care am emis si acest raport.

Cur gudif opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed herein is consistent

with the additional repori to the Audif Commitiee of the Group, which we issued on the same date
a5 the issue date of this report.

Troguietes s
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Servicii non-audit
Brovision of Non-audit Services

Nu am furnizat Grupului servicii non-audit inferzise mentionate la articolul 5 alineatul (L} din
Regulamentul (UEY nr. 537/2014 al Parlamentului European si ai Consiliutui si ramanem
independenti fata de Grup pe durata audifului.

Nu am furnizat Grupului si entitatiior controlate de aceasta aite servicil decat cele de audit
stafutar si cele prezentate in raportul anual si in situatiile financiare consolidate.

No prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (L No. 537/2014 of
the turopean Pariiament and of the Council were provided by us to the Group and we remain
independent from the Group in conducting the audit,

Inaddifion to statutory audit services and services disclosed in the anpual report and in the
consolidated financial statements, no other services which were provided by us fo the Group, and
its controlled undgertakings.

in numele,
On behaif of,

Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL
Bd. fon Mihalache 15-17, etaj 21, Bucuresti, Romania
15-17, lon Mihalache Bivd,, floor 21, Bucharest, Romania

inregistrat la Camera Auditorilor Financiari din Romania
Cunr. 77/15 august 2001

registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania =
Nr. 77/15 August 2001 Evtd Yourg Astiiance Seviems SR,

27 MAR f0®

Signed for Heriheaan
Semnal pantry identificare

Nume Auditor / Partener: Alexandru Lupea
Name of the Auditor/ Parfner: Alexandris Lupea

Inregistrat la Camera Auditorilor Financiari din Romania Bucuresti, Romania
Cunr. 273 /5 ianuarie 2001 27 martie 2018
registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania Bucharest, Romania
Mo, 27375 January 2001 27 March 2018
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ROMPETROL. HAFINARE SA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at December 31, 2017

{Amounts in US dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are

provided for information purposes only {see Nole Ze))

Decermnber 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Noies 2017 2016 2017 2016 -
UsD Usp RON RON

Intangible assels 3 B,252,455 7,265,762 32,114,429 28,274,713
Goodwil 4 82,871,706 82,871,706 322,405 245 322,495,245
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,254,559.178  1,138,146,813 4,882,117,042 4,425,088,714 ° -
Available for sale investments 7 18,583 18,583 72,316 72,316
Long-term receivable 1,699,013 1,480,888 6,222,559 5,762,876
Delerred tax asset 13 36,221,657 63,468,579 140,956,577 246,987,875
Total non current assets 1,383,522,692  1,293,252,431 5,383,978,168 5,032,691,839
Invenicries, net 8 342,623,826 230,041,565  1,333,320,615 895,401,325
Trade and other receivables 9 436,209,507 287,577,488 1,607,509,286 1,119,107,795
Derivalive financial instruments 23.5 - 5,340 - 20,781
Cash and cash equivalenis 10 12,582,193 15,810,298 49,002,519 51,525,775
Total current assets 791,425,525 533,484,681 3,079,832,430 2,076,055,676
TOTAL ASSETS 2,174,948,117 1,826,737,122 8,463,810,598 7,108,747.515
Share capilal 11 1,463,323,897 1,483,323,807 5684,524,945 5,694,024,845 .
Share premium 11 74,050,518 74,050,518 288,167 50 288,167,581 ¢
Revaluation reserve, net 11 146,431,777 - 569,839,260 -
Other reserves 1 {4,153,668) {3,452,149) {16,163,899) (13,434,038)
Other reservas - Hybrid ioan 1 1,058,285.995  1,000,000,000 4,122,211,450 3,891,499,099
Effact of transfers with equity holders 11 (596,832,65%) (596,832,659} {2,322,574.202}) (2,322 574,292}
Accumulated losses (1,473,246,436) (1,529,316,646} {(5,733,138,502} (5,951,335 725) .
Current year resutt 19,552,128 56,070,210 78,087,088 218,197,223 7 o
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 688,411,550 463,843,171 2,678,853,551  1,805,045703
Non-Controlling interest 15,834,422 14,781,091 62,008,803 57,520,614
Total equity 704,345,972 478,624,262 2,740,862,354 1,862,566,317
Long-term borrowings {rom banks 12 - 163,182,805 - 751,603,088
Hybrid loans- interest portion 1% 14,687,203 - 57,155,250 -
Deferred tax liahililies 13 3,715,861 306,570 14,460,273 1,183,017
Pravisions 16 B5,001,042 76,426,343 330,781,851 297,424,788 ..
Other rion-current liahilities 207,676 177,110 B08,171 680,224
Total non-current liahilities 103,611,782 270,075,828 403,205,245  1,051,000,085
Trade and gther payables 14 966,666,960 788,571,675 3,761,784,480 3,088,726,677
Derivative financial insiruments 29.5 48,387 323,130 188,298 1,257,460
Short-term borrowings from shareholders and refated
parties 15 176,211,784 268,253,960 B685,72B155  1,043,910,320
Short-teom borrowings from banks 15 224,063,232 20,888,258 871,942 066 81,286,656

Total current Habilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY

The consolidated financial statements have been approved on March 22, 2018 and submitted for approval by'lﬁé' '

1,366,990,363

1,078,037,032

5,319,642,959

4,195,181,113

2,174,948,117

1,826,737,122

8,463,810,598

7,108,747,515

Genaral Assembly of shareholders on April 27, 201 ? by:

CATALIN DUMITRU g
PRESIDENT of the BOARD of DIRECTO i

YEDIL UTEKOV
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Prepared by,

VASILE-GABRIEL MANOLE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

kb

Cristina Ana Dica

Reporting Cpordinator

i T

&

The accompanying notes from 1 to 30 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents,
English transtation s for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission,
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended at December 31, 2017

{Amounis in US dollars representing the funcrfonal and presentation currency of the Group. Amounis in RON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note Z2g))

Notes 2017 2016 2017 201G

uso usD RON non
Hevenues 17 3,003,007,328  2,440,510,028 12,036,438,017 9,497,244 7751 o
Cost of sales 18 (2.786,630,756)  (2,191,393,341) (10,844,173,588) (8,527,807,188)

Gross profit 306,376,572 249,116,687 1,192,264,429 969,437,587

Selling, general and adminisirative axpenses, G
including logistic costs 19 {180,883,469) {163,675,757) (742,823,021)  (636,944,209)

Other opearating income 20 801,814 9,193,509 3,120,258 35,776,891
Osher operating expenses 20 {58,754,223) (2,176,831) (228,642,058} {B,470,360% = "
Operating profit 57,540,694 92,457,898 223,919,608 359,709,009
Finance cost 21 (53,227,537) (44,505,827} (207,134,958) (173 545,050)
Finance incoma 21 20,527,605 11,867,658 79,883,175 46,182,895
Foreign exchange loss, net 1 {584,549} (5,146,019) (2,274,771} (20,025,733
Profit before income tax 24,256,213 54 583,611 94,393,054 212,412,121
income tax 23 {3,550,756) 2,561,756 (13,B817.767) 9,969,074
Profit for ihe year 20,705,457 57,145,367 80,575,287 222,381,195 -
Attributable to: S

Equity holders of the parent 19,552,126 56,070,210 76,087,080 218,197,223
Non-Controlling interesis 1,153,331 1,075,157 4,488,189 4,183,972
Earnings per share (LS cents/share)

Basic 25 0.044 0.127 0.171 0.484

The consolidated financial statements have been approved on March 22", 2018 and submitted for approval by the
General Assembiy of shareholders on April 27, 2018 by: s

CATALIN DUMITRU
PRESIDENT of the BOARD of DIR

YEDIL UTEKOV
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

VASILE-GABRIEL MANOLE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 'z% 2

Prepared by, C ib‘v “’JU{

Cristina Ana Dica
Reperiing Coordinator

The accompanying notes from 1 fo 20 are an integral part of thess conselidated financiat statements.
English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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ROMPETHOL HAFINARE SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended at December 31, 2017

(Amounts in US dollars representing the functiona and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are

provided for information purposes only (see Note 2e))

2007 2016 2017 20186
usp usn RON RON

Net Gain for the year 20,705,457 57,145,367 80,575,287 222,381,195
Other comprehensive income T
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified income statement in
subsequent perfods {net of tax):
Hedge reserve 312,211 (1,117,247} 1,214,968  (4,347,767)
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified 1o income/{ioss) g
statement in subsequent periods 312,211 (1,117,247} 1,214,868 {4,347,767)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to income statement
in subsequent periods (net of tax): Dl
Actuarial losses on retirement benefits (1,013,730) (1,020,432) (3,944,930} (4,006,035) ~
Revaluation of buildings category in property plant and equipment 174,323,544 - 678,380,071 -
Daferred income tax related to revaluation, recognised in equity {27,881,767) - (108,640,811} -
Net other comprehensive income/{less) not to be reclassified to
income statement in subsequent periods 145,418,047 {1,029,432) 565,894 330 (4,006,035)
Total cther comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax 145,730,258 (2,146,679) 567,109,288  (8,353,802)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 166,435,715 54,998,688 647,684,586 214,027,383 ~ i
Altributable fo: ek
Equity holders of Ihe parent 165,282,384 53,823,531 643,196,397 200,843,421
Non-Controlling interests 1,153,331 1,075,157 4,488 189 4,183,972
Total comprehensive income for the year 166,435,715 54,998,688 647,684,586 214,027,393

The consolidated financial statements have been approved on March 227, 2018 and submitted for
approval by the General Assembly of shareholders on April 27, 2018 by:

CATALIN DUMITRU
PRESIDENT of the BOARD of Di

-
Y /7
AT

e

YEDIL UTEKOV
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIC

VASILE-GABRIEL MANOLE
CHIEF FINANCIAL’\OFFICER P

ocoult

Cristina Ana Dica
Reporting Coopdinator

e

Prepared by,

The accompanying notes from 1 to 3¢ are an integrad part of these consolidated financial statements.
English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official 1ext for submission.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended at December 31, 2017

{Amountis in IS dollars representing the funct:anal and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in HON are

providead for information purposes only (see Note 28))

Profitbefore income tax

Adjustmenis for;

Deprecialion and amorlisation

Provisions for receivables and inventories {inc write-off}
impaiment for property, plant and equipment {inct wrila-aff)
Loss on revaluation of fangible assets

Provision for environmental and other liabilities
Hestructuring and retirement benefit provisions

Late payment interast

Other financial income

Interest income

Interest expense and bank charges

Gain on sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment
Unrealised foreign exchange (gainiloss

Cash from operations before working capital changes

Net working capital changes:
Receivablas and prepayments
inventories

Trade and other payables
Change in working capital

income tax pald
Cash (paid)freceived for derivatives, net

Net cash provided byf(used in) aperating activities

Cash flows irom investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and eguipment
Purchase of intangible assals

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash pooling movement

Leng - ferm loans received from banks

Long - ferm loans repaid 1o banks

Short - {erm oans {repaid to} received from shareholders
Short - ferm loans/ (repaid to) received from banks, nat
interest and bank charges paid, net

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase / (Decrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The consolidated financial stalemenis have been approved on March 22, 2018 and submilted for approval by the
General Assembly of shareholders on /Aiprli 27,2018 by: o

CATALIN DUMITRU

PRESIDENT of the BOARD of )

YEDIL UTEKOV L
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIC

2016

2017 2016 2017
ush Ush RON AON . -
24,256,913 54,583,611 04,303,064 212,412,121
96,061,994 95,778,024 373,825,250
2268436  {3,378,483) 8,827,618
1,037,558 1,099,846 4,037,656
44,981,402 - 175,045,476
10,297,478 . 40,072,636
264,565 (621,564) 1,031,111
99212 6,753 386,083
(486,529) (386,785) (1,893,328)
(20,041,078)  (11,480,874)  {77,989,847)
51,177,832 42,836,374 109,158,533
(376,580 {196,801) (1,465,500)
12,605,676 {488,670) 48,054,988
222,146,661 178,750,434  B64,483,730

(596.216:3_'79

(244,408,806) (153,208,372)  (951,467,103) 37t
(113,776,397}  (51,535,765) (442,760,849} (200,551.420
76573852 199,028,165  1,075,506,802  778.0R0457
(81,901,851} (4,815,972) (318,721,050} (18,741,351}
42.808  (1,426,383) 166,587 _ (5,550,769)
130287,618 172,508,079  545,029.967 671315103
(84,027,084)  (59,586,224)  (326,091,399) (231,878,703
(1,333,129)  (1,856,450) (5,187,872)  (7,224,375)
451,011 262,411 1,755,109 1,021,172
(84,908,202)  (61,180,263)  (330,424,162) (238,082,996)
52,782,953 6016381 205404862 25915007
- 44,126,912 - 171,719,678
- {B5,276,609) - (257,915 424)
(62,004,189)  (2,790,339)  (319,119,301) (10,858,604
9,880,159  {17.127,684) 38,448,639  (66,652,382)
(39,255444)  [67,093,.958) _ (152,762,560} (261,093,414)
(58,596,521) (102,244,597}  (228,028,361) (397,884,849)
(3,216,105} 9,083,219 (12,523,258) 35,347,348
15,610,208 6,727,079 61,525,775 26,178,427
12,562,193 15,810,298 49,002,519 61,525,775

VASILE-GABRIEL MANOLE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Prepared by,

Cristina Ana Dica
Reporting Co

inator

ETTTT

The accompanying notes from 1 fo 30 ara an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
English translation is for information purposes only. Aomanian language tex! is the official text for submission.
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mo_s_um.m.mer mb_anbwm m>

..OOszW_UP,_.mU m._.b._.mammz,w O_u CHANGES wz EQUITY
for the year. ended at December 31, 2017 : : : .

{Amounts in US dollars representing the Bnnzo:m__ and presentation ocﬁa.a&\ of the Group. Amounts in RON are provided for information purposes only (see Nole 2g})

Amount in USD

Deferred income tax Equity
related to Effect of attributable to Non- s

Share Share Accumulated Revaluation revaluation, transfers with Other equity holders  Controlling Total

capital premium losses reserves recognised in equity  equity holders reserves of the parent interest equity
December 31, 2015 1,463,323,887 74,050,518 (1,529,316,646) - - (506,832,659) 998,694,530 409,918,640 13,705,934 423,625,574
Mgt profit for 2016 . . 56,070,210 - . - . 56,070,210 1,075,157 57,145,367
Other comprehgnsive income - - - - - - (2,146,679} (2,146,679} - {2,146,679)
Total camprehensive income - - 56,070,210 - - - (2,146,679) 53,923,531 1,075,157 54,998,688
December 31, 2016 1,463,323,897 74,050,518 (1,473,246 436} - - {596,832,659) 946,547,851 463,843,171 14,781,091 478,624,262
het profit for 2017 - - 19,552,128 - - - - 18,552,126 1,153,331 20,705,457
Other comprehensiva income - - - 174,323,544 (27,891.767) - {701,519) 145,730,258 - 145,730,258
Total comprehensive income - - 19,552,126 174,323,544 (27,881,767} - (701,519) 165,282,384 1,153,331 166,435,715
Hybrid loan - reserves - - - - . - 58,285,895 58,285,995 £9,285,995
December 31, 2017 1,463,323,897 74,050,518 (1,453,694,310) 174,323,544 (27,891,767)  (586,832,658) 1,055,132,327 688,411,550 15,934,422 704,345,972

The consolidated financial statements have been approved on March 227, mo._m and submitted for approval by the General Assembly of shareholders on April
27, 2018 by:

CATALIN DUMITRU

. YEDH. UTEKOV
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

VASILE-GABRIEL MANQLE
CHIEF FINANCIAL Ommmom w

: Prepared by, i HEA
//,/ / Cristina Ana Dica .

Reporting Coordinator

The agcompanying notes from 1 to 30 are an integral umn ‘of these consolidated financial statements.
English transtation is for information purposes only. maﬁmﬁ_mm ianguags text is the official text for submission.
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..mo_sum._.mom. RAFINARE SA

~ CONSOLIDATED. w._‘B.m.gmz._... OF OIbzmmm,“z_mDC_%w‘

for the year ended at December 31, 2017

L fAmounts in US Qozm&.wmbﬁmmnm:@.%m functional and hﬁ.mmmﬁmroa n:&m:&\ of the mwo:u h.ﬂcta..m in HON are nBSQmQ Bw information purposes only (see Note 2e))

Amount in RON

Deferred income tax

Equity

refated to Effect of attributable to Nan- ¥

Share Share Accumulated Revaiuation revaluation, transfers with Cther equity holders of contrelling Total

capital premium lpsses reserves  recognised in equily _equity holders reserves the parent interest equity
December 31, 2015 5,604,524,945 288,167,591 (5.951,335,728) - - {2,322,574,292) 3,886,419,763 1,685,202,278 53,336,642 1,648,538,924
Net profit for 2016 - 218,157,226 - - - - 218,197,226 4,183,872 222,381,198
Other comprehensive income - . - - - (8,353,802) (8,353,802) - {8,353,802)
Total comprehensiva income - - 218,197 226 - - - (8,353,802) 200,843,424  4,183.972 214,027,383
December 31, 2016 5,694,524,845 288,167,591 {(5,733,138,602} - - (2,322,574,292) 3,878,065,981 1,805,045,763 57,520,614 1,862,568,317
Nat profit for 2017 - 76,087,098 - - - - 76,087,088 4,488,189 80,575,287
Other comprehensive income - - 678,380,071 {108,540,811) - (2,729,961} 567,109,289 - 867,108,289
Total comprehansive income - - 76,087,088 678,380,071 {108,540,811) - {2,729,861) 643,196,387 4,488,189 647,684,586
Hybrid ioan - reserves - - - - - - 230,711,451 230,711,451 - 230,711,451
December 31, 2017 5,694,524,945 288,167,591 (5,657,051,404) 678,380,071 (108,540,811) {2,322,574,292) 4,106,047,451 2,678,953,5651 62,008,803 2,740,982,354

The consolidated financi
27, 2018 by: \m

CATALIN DUMITRU

. PRESIDENT of the BOARD of DIRECTORS

YEDIL UTEKOV
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

VASILE-GABRIEL MANOLE
h&.mm FINANCIAL OFFICER

L (

Prepared by,

Cristina Ana Dica
Reporting Coordinator

s,

ﬁmwmam:a have been approved on March 227, 2018 and submitted for approval by the General Assembly of shareholders on April

The accompanying noles from. 1

o 30 are an integral par
English translation is for information purposes only. Romania

hese consolidated financlal statements.
.mmmmcmmm text is the official text for submission,




ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

{Amounis in U8 dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in AON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note 2e})

1. GENERAL

Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent Company” or “the Company” or “the
Parent” or “RRC") is a company incorporated under Romanian law. The Parent Company operates
Petromidia and Vega refineries. Petromidia refinery, located on the Black Sea coasi, processes
exciusively, imported crude oil and produces E.U. standard motor fuels, other petroleum products and
certain petrochemicals. Petromidia refinery was designed and built during 1975-1877 and was further
modernized in the early 1890's and from 2005 to 2012,

Rompetrol Rafinare S.A and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) are involved in
refining, petrochemicals and downstream activities, and have all production facilities located in Romania
(see Note 7.a). The number of employees of the Group at the end of 2017 and 2016 was 1,867 and 2,114
respectively.

The registered address of Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. is Bd. Navodari no. 215, Navedari, Constanta,
Romania., Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. and its subsidiaries are part of KMG International N.V. with its
registered address located at World Trade Centre, Strawinskylaan 807, Tower A, 8th floor, 1077 XX
Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

The Group's ultimate parent company is “National Welfare Fund Samruk Kazyna” JSC, an entity with its
headquarers in Kazakhstan and owned by the Kazakh State.

The Company is a joint stock company listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a} Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {"IFRS"), effective as of December 31, 2017, as endorsed by the European Union ("EU").

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for
derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale {AFS) financial assets and buildings and constructions
that have been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financia! statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous pericd.

b} Going concern

The financial statements of the Group are prepared on a going concern basis. As at December 31, 2017
and 2016 the Group reported net assets including non-controlling inferest, of USD 704.3 million and USD
478.6 million respectively. The Group reported for the year ended December 31, 2017 a profit of USD
19.5 million and for the year ended December 31, 2016 reported a profit of USD 56 million respectively.

The Group has developed a Long-Term Development Strategy for each area of the business up to the
yaar 2022. This strategy confirms the Group’s commitment to the chosen direction of growth, by
maximizing the economic value through access to end consumers of products manufactured by the
Groug,

Englizh transtation is for information purposes only. Romanian ianguage fext is the official text for submission.
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ROMPETHOL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(Amounis in LS doliars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are
provided for information purposes only {see Note Zg))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
STRATEGY

The Group has developed a Long-Term Development Strategy for each area of the business up to the
year 2022, This sirategy is reaffirming the Group's commitment to the chosen direction of growth, by
maximizing the economic value through access fo end consumers of products manufactured by the
Group. KMG International relies on four synergic pillars:

« A modem, reliable and highly performing asset base
Capable management to drive improved performance
Long-term strategy that links the company’s strengths with opportunities on the market
Adequate access to financial markets to fund strategy implementation

s 0 @

The sound strategy has aliowed the Group to significantly improve financial and operational resulis during
2012 and 2016 pericd:
» Petromidia refinery achieved record production volumes, well above the designed capacity, and
improved technical performance;
s Retall entities sales volumes increased;
» Consolidated financial net result reachad positive levels in the last three years.

OUTLOOK FOR 2018

Market environment: For 2018 the Group budgeted a crude average price of 55 $/bbl. From computation
of the difference between main petroleum products quotations and Urals quotation, weighted at 2018
approved budget production yields structure (main products represented are: Gasoline, Diesel, Naphtha,
LPG, Jet, Fuel off, Propylene, Coke, Sulphur) results a Market refining margin valuated at 48.4 $/tonne.

In 2018, it is expected a positive growth trend in terms of gasaline and diesel demand for Group's key
markets of 0.53% (annual average for Romania and Near Abroad).

Group operations; The Group will continue to carry on the operationat initiatives which were identified and
put in motion starting 2016, such as: Refining planning and production optimization, energy efficiency and
organizational effectiveness, increase of non-fuel profitability, Asian Market trading profitability increase.

These operaficnal initiatives have as main purpose the improvement of the operational resulis with
minimum investment cost.

From the production parspective, in 2018, the Group has the following assumptions in terms of budget:
v Total feedstock planned to be processed in 2018 estimated at 5.45 million tonnes or 16.4
thousand tonnes/day.
v White products vield of B5.6%, -1% below actual 2017 mainly from different structure of feedstock
{crude oil and SRGQ).
v increase in processing cost by 1.7 USD/tenne compared with 2017, mainly due to utilities
expenses caused by higher utiiities tariffs and negative impact from the exchange rate.

Considering the expected market environment and the internal operational intiatives, the Group’s
operational results are expected reach higher levels than in 2017.

Based on the Group's budget for 2018, its Long-Term Development Strategy and other matters
mentioned above, Group Management considers that the preparation of the financial statemenis on a
going concern basis is appropriate.

As at December 31, 2017 Rompetro! Hafinare SA resolved the issue in respect of ifs net assets referring
to the fact that at the end of year 2015 net assets decreased io less than half the value of the subscribed
share capital. During the year 2017, various analyses were developed 1o identify the best method of
remediating the net asset,

English transiation is for information purposes only. Homanian language text is the official fext for submission.
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AGMPETHOL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(Amounts in US dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounis in BON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note Zg))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The following operations contributed in 2017 to the remedy of Rompetro! Hafinare 5.A. net asset:

1. In November 2017 the company signed with KMG International NV a hybrid loan agreement in total
amount of USD 72.2 millicn loan as a result of conversion of a commercial debt in front of KMG
International NV (approximately RON 285.5 million as a result of assignment by Rompetrof
Petrochemicals SRL in favor of KMG International NV of a commercial receivable held over the
Company} {see note 11},

2. Starting December 31,2017, the Company changed its accounting policies regarding the recognition
and measurement of its non-current assets, in respect of buildings category, from cost model {o the
revalued one (for details see notes 2 and 5).

¢) Changes in accounting policies
New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2017:

o [AS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments)

The objective of the Amendments is to clarify the requiremnents of deferred tax assets for unrealized
losses in order to address diversity in practice in the application of IAS 12 Income Taxes. The specific
issues where diversity in practice existed relate {o the existence of a deductible temporary difference
upon a decrease in fair vaiue, to recovering an asset for more than its carrying amount, to probabie
future taxabtle profit and to combined versus separate assessment. The Group has no impact from
apgtication of this amendment.

+ [AS 7: Disciosure Initiative (Amendments)

The objective of the Amendmenis is {o provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
avaluate changes in iiabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The Amendments specify that one way to fulfil the disclosure
requirement is by providing a tabular reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the
staterment of financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities, including changes from
financing cash flows, changes arising from cbtaining or losing conirot of subsidiaries or other
businesses, the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates, changes in fair values and other
changes. The Group has no impact from application of this amendment.

o The IASE has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle, which is a collection
of amendments to IFASs. The following annual improvement has not yet been endorsed by the EU.
None of these had a significant effect on the Group's financial statements:

# IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: The amendments clarify that the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12, other than those of summarized financial information for subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale, as held for distribution, or as discontinued operations
in accordance with IFRS 5.

English transtation is for information purposes only. Romanian languags text is the official taxd for submission,
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AOMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

{Amounts in U8 dollars representing the functional and presentaifon currency of the Group. Armounis in HON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note 2g))

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}
Revaluation of buildings category in property, plant and equipment

The Group re-assessed its accounting for praperty, plant and equipment with respect to measurement of
buildings and constructions after initial recognition. The Group had previously measured all property,
plant and equipment using the cost mode! whereby, after initial recognition of the asset classified as
property, plant and equipment, the asset was carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulaied impairment losses.

Starting December 31, 2017, the Group elected to change the method of accounting for buildings
category classified as property, plant and equipment, as the Group believes that the revaluation model
provides mors relevant information to the users of its financial statements.

Additional detaiis are provided at Note 2b.

The Group applied the revaluation model prospectively.

After initiai recognition, buildings are measured at fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. For details refer
to Note 5.

d} Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early adopted the following standards/interpretations:

= [IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2018, with early
application permitted. The final version of IFRS 8 Financial instrumenis reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces I1AS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requiremenis for
classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting.
The Group adopts the new standard IFRS @ on the required effective date and will not restate
comparative information. During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed impact assessment of all
three aspects of IFRS 8.
This assessment is based on currenitly available information and may be subject to changes arising
from further reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Group in 2018 as
well as from further refinements of the impairment model which is currently being tested at the date of
these financials. Overall, the Group expects no significant impact on its statement of financial position
and equity except for the effect of applying the impairment requirements of IFRS 9. The Group expects
an increase in the loss allowance resuliing in a negative impact on equity as discussed below. In
addition, the Group will implement changes in classification of certain financial instruments.

z) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect a significant impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying the
classification and measurement requirements of [FRS 9. i expects to continue measuring at fair value
all financial assets currently held at fair value.

b} Hedge accounting

The Group determined that all existing hedge relationships that are currently designated in effective
hedging reiationships will continue to gualify for hedge accounting under IFRS 8. The Group has
chosen not to retrospectively apply IFRS 9 on transition te the hedges where the Group excluded the
forward points from the hedge designation under IAS 39. As IFRE & does not change the general
principles of how an entity accounts for effective hedges, applying the hedging requirements of IFRS 9
will not have a significant impact on Group’s financial statements.

¢} impairment

[FRS 9 requires the Group to record expected cradit losses on ali of its debt securiiies, loans and trade
receivables, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected losses on all trade receivables. The Group has determined after assessment
of major categories of trade receivables that the loss allowance will increase by USD 1 miilion.

English transiation is for information purposes only, Romanian language text is the official text for submission,
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ROMPETROL RAFINAHE GA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

{Amounts in US dolfars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note Ze))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued]

-

IFRS 15 Revenue from Cantracts with Customers

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, IFRE 15 establishes
a five-step model that will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer (with limited
exceptions), regardiess of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard’s
requiremenis will also apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses on the sale of
some non-financial assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities (e.q., sales of
property, plant and equipment or intangibles). Extensive disciosures will be required, including
disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligations; changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgments and estimates.

IFRS 15: Bevenue from Contracts with Customers (Clarifications)

The Clarifications apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier
application permitied. The objective of the Clarifications is to clarify the IASB’s intentions when
developing the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, particularly the
accounting of identifying performance obiigations amending the wording of the “separately identifiable”
principle, of principal versus agent considerations including the assessment of whether an entity is a
principal or an agent as well as applications of control principle and of licensing providing additional
guidance for accounting of intellectual property and royaities. The Clarifications also provide additional
practical expedients for entities that either apply IFRS 15 fully retrospectively or that elect to apply the
modified retrospective approach.

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014, and amended in April 2016, and establishes a five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers, Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitied in exchange for
fransierring goods or services o a customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recegnition requirements under I[FRS.
Either a full retrospective application or a medified retrospective application is required for annual
periods baginning on or after 1 January 2018, Early adoption is permitted. The Group plans io adopt
the new standard on the required effective date using the modified retrospective method. During 2017,
the Group performed a preliminary assessment of IFRS 15 and did not identify a significant impact
that will affect financial statements.

The Group is involved in refining and petrochemicals, wholesale and retail of petroleum preducis and
ralated services (oilfield, logistics, maintenance, quality control}.

The Group analysed the main revenue streams which are comprised sales of crude oil, petroleum
products and petrochemicals, under the main business segments: Downstream (retall and wholesale)
and refinery, by applying the “five steps” model prescribed by IFRS 15:

1. Identity the contraci(s) with a customer

2. ldentify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5, Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisiies a performance obligation

Based on the results of review of confractual terms of principal types of coniracis pertaining to each
rmaterfal revenue streams, the Group concluded that IFRS 15 will not have a significant impact
compared with current revenue recognition.

IFRS 16: Leases

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties
to a condract, i.e. the customer {'lessee') and the supplier {!lessor’). The new standard requires lessees
to recognize most feases on their financial statements. Lessees will have a singie accounting model
for all leases, with certain exemptions. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged. This standard
has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of this
amendment to the financial position or performance of the Group.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

{Amounis in US dollars representing the functional and presentalion currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are
provided for infermation purposes only (see Note 2e})

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

Amendment in IFRS 10 Consoclidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associaies and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the regquirements in IFRS 10 and
those in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or ioint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognized
when a fransaction involves a business (whether if is housed in a subsidiary or not}. A partial gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves assels that de not constitute a business, even if these
assets are housed in a subsidiary. In December 2015 the IASE postponed the effeclive date of this
amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equily method of
accounting. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed
there is no material impact at Group level from application of this standard.

IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share based Payment Transactions (Amendments)
The Amendments are effective {or annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier
application permitted. The Amendments provide requiremenis on the accounting for the effects of
vesting and nan-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-setlled share-based payments, for
share-based payment transactions with a net seltlement feature for withholding tax obiigations and for
maodifications to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of
the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed
by the EU. Management has assessed that there is no material impact at Group level from application
of this standard.

IAS 40: Transfers to Investment Property (Amendments)

The Amandments are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with eatlier
application permitted. The Amendments clarify when an entity should transfer propenty, including
property under construction or develepment into, or out of investment property. The Amendments
state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management's
irdentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. These Amendments
have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed that there is no material impact at
Group level from application of this standard.

IFRS &: Prepayment features with negative compensation {(Amendment)

The Amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2018 with
earlier application permiited. The Amendment allows financial assets with prepayment feaiures that
permit or require a pariy to a coniract either to pay or receive reasonable compensation for ihe early
termination of the contract {so that, from the perspective of the holder of the asset there may be
‘negative compensation’), to be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed that there is
nio material impact at Group ievel from application of this standard.

IAS 28: Long-term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)

The Amendmenis are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with
eariier application permitted. The Amendments relate to whether the measurement, in particular
impairment requirements, of long term inferests in associates and joint ventures that, in substance,
form part of the ‘nef investiment’ in the associate or joint venture should be governed by IFRS 9, IAS
28 or a combination of both. The Amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial
instruments, before i applies |AS 28, to such long-term interests for which the equity method is not
applied. In applying IFRS 8, the entity does not take account of any adjustments fo the carrying
amount of fong- term interests that arise from applying 1AS 28. These Amendments have not yet been
endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed that there is no material impact at Group tevel from
application of this standard.

English translation is for information purpeses only. Fomanian language text is the official text for submission,
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(Amounts in US dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are
provited for information purposes only (see Note 2g))

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

IFRIC INTERPETATION 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier

application permitted. The interpretation clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the

receipt or paymeni of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation covers foreign
currency transactions when an entity recognizes a non-moneiary asset or a non-monetary liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognizes the related
assel, expense or income. The interpretation states that the date of the fransaction, for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate, is the date of initiai recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset
or deferred income liability. If there are multinle payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must
determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. This
interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed that there is no
material impact at Group ievel from application of this standard.

The IASE has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle, which is a collection

of amendments o [FRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018 for IFRS 1 Firsi-time Adogption of International Financial Reporting Standards and for

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Earlier application is permitied for IAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. None of these had a significant effect on the Group's

financial siaternents:

> IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards: This
improvement deletes the shori-term exempiions regarding disclosures about financial
instrurments, employee benefits and investment entities, applicable for first time adopiers.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: The amendments clarify that the

election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an investment in an associate or a joint

veniure that is hefd by an entity that is venture capital organization, or ather qualifying entity, is
available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investmeni-by-invastment
oasis, upoen initial recognition.

IFEIC INTERPRETATION 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier

application permitted. The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax

treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of 1AS 12. The Interpretation provides
guidance on considering uncertain tax treatments separately or together, examination by 1ax
authorities, the appropriate method to reflect uncertainty and accounting for changes in facts and
circumstances. This Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU. Managemsnt has assessed
that there is no significant impact from application of this standard.

The 1ASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 —~ 2017 Cycle, which is a collection

of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1

January 2018 with earlier application permitied. None of these had a significant effect on the Group's

financial siatemenis:

¥ IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendments to IFRS
3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasuras
previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarnfy that when an entity
obtains joint controt of a business that is a joint operation, the entily does not remeasure
previously held interests in that business.

» IAS 12 income Taxes: The amendments clarify that the income tax conseguences of paymenis
an financial instruments classified as equity should be recognized according to where the past
transactions or events that generated distributable profits has been recognized.

» IAE 23 Borrowing Costs: The amendments clarify paragraph 14 of the standard that, when a
qualifying assel is ready for its intended use or sale, and some of the specific borrowing related to
that qualifying asset remains outstanding at that point, that borrowing is to be included in the
funds that an entity borrows generally.

A1

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language Texi s the official text for submission.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOHR THE YEAHR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(Amounis in U8 dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in AON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note 2¢})

2. SUMIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

s [AS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)
The Amendments are effeciive for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier
application permitted. The amendment require entities to use audited actuarial assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after a
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement has occurred. The amendments also clarify how the
accounting for a plan amendment, curtailment or setilement affects applying the asset ceiling
requirements. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has
assessed that there is no material impact at Group tevel from application of this standard.

e} Foreign currency translation

The group's presentation currency is the US Dollar (or “USD"} that is the functional currency of the Parent
and is the currengy of the primary economic environment and industry in which the Group operates.

Transactions and balances not already measured in USD, and that are measured in HON or other
currencies, have been re-measured in USD as follows:

Mongtary assets and fiabilities

Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and short-term loans have been translated into USD at
the year-end exchange rate, Gain or loss on translation of these assets and liabilities is recorded in the
income statement.

Non-moneiary assets and ligbilities

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated from their historical cost or valuation by applying the
exchange rate USD/RON from the date of acquisition, valuation or contribution to the statement of
financial position.

Consolidated statement of income

Consolidated statement of income iterns have been translated applying the exchange rate from the month
when the items were initially recorded to the consolidated income statement.

Exchange gains and losses arising on the re-measurement that are not denominated in USD are credited/
charged to the consolidated Income Statement for the year.

Other matiers

In Romania, the official exchange rates are published by the National Bank of Romania (“Central Bank” or
“National Bank™), and are considered to be a reasconabie approximation of market exchange rates.

The translation of RON denominated assets and fiabilities into LS for the purpose of these consolidated
financial staiements does not indicate that the Group could realize or setile in US doliars the reported
values of these assets and Habilities. Likewise, it does not indicate that the Group could retain or
distribute the reported USD values of equity to its shareholders.

Homanian lei fransiation for information purposes basis

Amounts in Romanian lei are provided for information purpose basis only and are franslated by
muliiplying the vaiues in USD with the 31 December 2017 clasing exchange rate of HON 3.8915= USD 1,
for both 2017 and 2016 amountis.

English tranalation is for information purposes only. Romanian fanguage text is the official text for submission,
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provided for information purposes only (see Note 2a))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}
f) Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management {o make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. The estimales and
associaied assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considerad to be
relevant. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require an adjustment fo the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in the future periods,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The maiters presented below are considered to be the most important in understanding the judgments
that are involved in preparing these consolidated financial statements and the uncertainties that couid
impact the amounts reported in the results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation unceriainty at the
reporting date, that can lead to material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they cccur.

- impairment of Goodwill on acquisitions

The Group's impairment test for goodwill is based on fair value less costs to sell calculations that use a
discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do
not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to undertake. The recoverable
amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes (Note 4).

- Impairment of non- financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporiing date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the carrying amounts
for major property, piant and equipment are tested for impairment. lf assets are determined to be
impaired, the carrying amounts of those assets are written down fo their recoverable amount, which is
higher of fair value less costs to sell, and value in use determined as the amount of estimated discountad
future cash flows. Impairments, except those related to goodwill, are reversed as applicable to the extent
that the evenis or circumstances that triggered the original impairment have changed. Estimates of future
cash flows are based on management estimates of future commodity prices, market supply and demand
and product margins. Other factors that can lead to changes in estimates include restructuring pians and
variation in regulatory environments. The recoverable amount is sensitive 1o the discount rate used for the
discounied cash flow model, as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for
exirapolation purposes.

The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a
sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note 4 and Note 5.

Engiish translation is for information purposes anly. Romanian language text is the official text for submission,
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{Amounis in US doilars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in HON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note 26})

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)
- Provision for snvironmenial liability

The Group is involved in refining and petrochemicals, wholesale and retail and other related services.
Environmental damage caused by such substances may require the Group to incur restoration costs to
comply with the reievant requlations, and to settle any legal or consiructive obligation. Analysis and
estimates are performed by the Group together with its technical and legal advisers, in order to determine
the probabifity, timing and amount involved with probable required outflow of resources. Estimated
restoration costs, for which disbursements are determined to be probable, are recognized as a provision
in the Group's financial statements. When the final determination of such obligation amounts differs from
the recognized provisions, the Group’s income statement is impacted.

Further details on provision for environmentai liability are provided in Notg 16.
- Provision for decommissioning

The Group considers any provisions for decommissioning on acquisition of assets. in determining the
amount of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected
costs to dismantle and remove the depot from the site and the expected timing of those costs. Changes
to these assumptions could have a significant impact on the amount of the provision.

Further details on the provision for decommissioning are provided in Note 16.
- Deferred tax assels

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is prebable that taxable
profit wili be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likeiy
timing and the level of future {axable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Further details on deferred tax assets are provided in Notes 13 and 22.
- Carrying value of trade and other receivables

The Group assesses at each reporting date the requirement for an aliowance for impairment in trade and
other receivables. The Company uses its judgment, based on the nature and extent of overdue debtors
and historical experience, in order to estimate the amount of such an allowance. The allowance is
recognized where there is objective evidence that a particular trade receivable or a group of trade
receivables have impaired.

- Carrying value of inventories

The Group considers on a regular basis the carrying value of inventories in comparison to expecied use
of items, impact of damaged or obsolete items, technical losses and a comparison to estimaled net
realizable value comparad 1o cost, based on latest availabie information and market conditions. As
applicable a reserve against the carrying value of inventories is made.

- Provision for litigations
The Group analyses its legal exposure regularly in order to determine whether provisions are required. In
determining the amount of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to the
probability of losing the case, the expected claim fo be paid and the expected timing of the payments.
Changes o these assumptions could have a significant impact on the amount of the provision.

Further details on the provisions relating to litigations are provided in Notes 16, 20 and 27.

English transtation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission,
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2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
g} Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial staternents comprise the financial statements of the parent company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017,

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ahility to affect those returns through iis power over the investes.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:
s Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the invesiee);
s Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invoivermnent with the investee;
s The ability tc use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting righis result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar righis of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant {acts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
invesiee, including:

o The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

e Hights arising from other contractual arrangements;

¢ The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumsiances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statemenis from the
date the Group gains controi until the date the Group ceases {o conirol the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCH)} are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-conirolling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interesis having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Allintra-group assets and liabilities, equity, inceme, expenses and cash flows relating fo fransacticns
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If & Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets {including goodwill},
liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value.

h) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinatlions are accounied for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measurad at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer
mieasures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition cosis incurred are expensed and included in
administralive expenses.

When the Group acquired a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions at the acquisition date.

English translation is for information purposes only. Aomanian language text is the official text for submission.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previcusly held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resuiting gain or loss is recognized in profit or oss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assels acquired and liabilittes assumed. If the fair value of the net assels acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group analyses whether it has correctly identified all of the
assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts 1o be recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in
profit or foss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected fo benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other asseis or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned fo those uniis.

Where goodwill has been allecated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill asscciated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwili disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the partion of the cash-genearating
unit retained.

i} Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise fo a financial asset of ane entity and a financial
fiability or equity instrument of another entity.

i Financial assels
initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are ciassified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at {air value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are
recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair vaiue through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subseqgueni measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in four categories:
s Financial assets at fair value through proifi or loss
= Loans and receivables at amortized cost;
e Heid-to-maturity investments, at amortized cost;
Avaliable-for-sale financial assets, at fair value with the changes recognized directly in equaty;

-]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial asseis are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as etfective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 38, The Group has naot
designated any financial assets at fair value through profit or toss. Financial assets at tair value through
profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair vaiue with net changss in fair value
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES {continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or delerminable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium an acquisition and fees or costs that are an integra! part of
the effective interest raie. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
staternent of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or
ioss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables,

Avaiiable for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets include equity investments. These are classified as avaiiable for sale
assets are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
that may be soid in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income and credited in the avaitable for
sale assets reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in other operating incormne, or the investment is determined {o be impaired, when the
cumulative loss is reclassified from the available for sale assets reserve to the statement of profit or loss
in finance costs.

interest earned whilst holding available for saie financial assets is reported as interest income using the
effective interest rate method.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available for sale financial assats in the
near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumsiances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect {o reclassity these financial assets if the
management has the ability and intention o hold the assets for foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available for sale assets category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previcus gain or loss on
the asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
invastment using the effective interest rate, Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is aisc amortised over the remaining life of the assetf using the effective interest rate. if
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.

Berecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financia! asset or part of a group of similar financial
assetis) is primarily derecognized {i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position} when:

+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

Or
e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a} the Group has transferred substantially ali the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred conirol of the asset.

English franslation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official {axt for submission.
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2. SUMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has enterad into & pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what exient it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
Whan it has neither transferred nor retained substantially ail of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognrize the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group's continuing involvement. in that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The
transfarred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

The Group assesses, at each reperting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has accurred
since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

if, Financial liabilities
initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabiiities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilfties are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financiai liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
e Financial liabilities at {air value through profit or loss
s Loans and borrowings at amortized cost

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
maodification is treated as the derscognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new Hability.
The difference in the respective carrying amaounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

fii. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intendion to settie on a net basis, {o realize the assets and setile the liabilities
simultaneously.

English franslation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the officlal text for submission.
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2. SUMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
i} Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plant and equipment of the Company are stated at cost less cumulative depreciation, except for
buildings that are periodically revalued and booked at fair value.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been
commissioned, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to income in the period in which the costs
are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as an additional cost of property, plant and equipment.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounis and any gain or loss resulting from their disposat is included in the income statement.

Starting December 31, 2017, the Group changed its accounting policies regarding the recognition and
measurement for buildings category, from cost mode! to the revalued one. The Group has changed its
accounting policy to measure buildings category at the revalued amount in accordance with [AS 16. IAS
16.37 defines a class of property, plant and equipment as a grouping of assets of similar nature and use
in an entity’s operations. The Group determined that the buildings category constitute separate class of
property, piant and equipment, based on their nature, characteristics and risks.

Buildings category are measured at fair value fess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
recognized after the date of revaluation. Valuations need to be performed with sufficient frequency to
ensure ihat the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its fair value.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However,
10 the extent that it reverses a revaiuation deficit of the same assel previously recegnized in profit or loss,
the increase is recognized in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in the stalement of profit
or foss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surpius on the same asset recognized in the asset
revaluation surplus.

An annual fransfer from the asset revaluation surpius to retained earnings is made for the difference
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the
asset's original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. Upon disposal, any revaiuation surplus refating to the particular asset being sold is transferred
to retained earnings.

Construction in progress represents plant and properties under construction and is stated at cost, less
arly impairment loss. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assefs, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment except land and construction in progress is computed
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Buildings and other consfructions 10 to 100 years
Storage tanks 20 10 30 years
Tank cars 25 years
Machinery and olher equipment 3o 20 ysars
Gas pumps 8 {012 years
Vehicles b years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 10 vears
Computers 3 years

Engiish translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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{Amaunts in US dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounis in HON are
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2. SUMRMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Following the changing in the accounting policy regarding recognition of bulldings category from costio
ravaluation method, also the economic remaining e ulilization of the buildings were revalualed a3 al
Decamber 31, 2017, The remaining life utilization were estimaled by the authorised appraiser based
on ANEVAM's Azsessment Guide GEV 500 (in acoordance with normative act P135/2000 issued by
INCERC). According to GEY 500 life ulilization of bulldings are up to 100 years. The depreciation of
Buitdings category based on the revaluated remalning life utiiization applies starting January 01, 2018,

When asseis are soid or derecognized, their cumulative costs and depreciation are eliminated and any
income or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement,

Assets held under finance [sases are recorded in the statement of financial position and depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or where shorter the term of the relevant
lease.

k} Intangible asseis

intangible assets are measured initially at cost. intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that the
future economic bensfits that are attributable o the asset will flow to the enterprise; and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less
accumulaled amortization and any accumulated impairment iosses. Intangible assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the best estimate of their useful lives.

Intangible assets consist of software and licenses and are amortized on a straight-line basis over 3to 5
years.

Deveiopment costs for specific projects which are reasonably anticipated to be recovered through
commerciai activity as well as expenditure on acquired computer software licenses are capitalized and
amortized using the straight-line method over their useful lives, generally 3 years. The carrying amount of
each intangibie asset is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment where it is considered necessary.
External and internal costs specifically associated with the maintenance of already existing computer
software programs are expensed as incurred.

B} Impainment of non-financiai assets

At each reporting date the Group reviews the carrying amounis of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order o
determine the exient of the impairment ioss (if any). Where it is nof possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and valug in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that refiects current market assessments of time value of money and risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash fiows have not been adiusted.

i the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit} is reduced {o its recoverable amount.
impairment losses are recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is property, plant
and equipment stated af revalued amaount in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit}
is increased o the revised astimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does niot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior vears. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language texd is the official text for submission.
24



ROMPETROL BRAFINARE SA
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2, SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Goodwill

Goodwili is tested for impairment annuailly (as at December 31) and when circumstances indicated that
the carrying value may be impaired.

impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit
{or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the

cash-generating unit is iess than their carrying amount an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment
losses relating to goodwili cannot be reversed in future periods.

m) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of &
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required to
settie the cbligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the

Group expects some or ail of a provision {o be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate assetl, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense related to any

provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of |
money is maierial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Additional comments on the following specific lfabilities are:
- Decommissioning liabilify

Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of the expected costs to settle the cbligation
using estimated cash flows and are recognized as part of the cost of that particular asset. The cash flows
are discounted at the current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability.
The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized in the income statement as
finance costs. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs are added to or deducted from the cost of the assets.

- Environmenial liabilities

Environmental expenditure that relates to current or future revenues is expensed or capitalized as
appropriate, Expenditure that relates to an existing condition caused by past operations and that does not
contribute to current or future earnings is expensed.

The Group has an environmental policy which complies with existing legistation and any obiigations
resulting from its environmental and operational licenses. In order to comply with all rules and regulations
the Group has set up a monitoring system in accordance with the requirements of the relevant authorities.
Furthermore, investment plans are adjusted to reflect any known future envircnmental requirements.

The above-mentioned expenses are estimated based on the refevant environmental studies,

Liabifities for environmental remediation costs are recognized when environmental assessmeants or clean-
ups are probable, and the assoclated costs can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these
provisions coincides with the commitment 1o a formal plan of action or, if earlier, on divestmeni eron
closure of inactive sites.

English translation Is tor information purpeses only. Homandan language text is the official lext for submission.

25



ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(Amounis in US dollars representing the functional and presemtation currency of the Group. Amounis in HON are
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
n} Leases

The determination of whether an arrangemerst is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date: whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Leases are classified as finance ieases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of the ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The
Group has assets heid under finance {eases and that have been measured at their fair values at the date
of acquisition.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation. Finance costs, that represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and
the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the consolidated income statement over the term of
the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

L.eased asseis are depreciated over the useful fife of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depraciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease paymenis are recognized as an expense in the income statement on a straight line basis
over the iease term, net of any operating [ease incentives received.

o} Inventories

Inventories raw material, petroleum products, including work-in-process are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, minus
the costs of completion, marketing and distribution. Cost comprises the acquishion cost and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories fo their present location and condition and is
determined by weighted average method for all the inventories.

p} Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of frade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not collect all amounts due
according fo the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difticulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable should be impaired, The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiow
discounted ai the effective interest rate.

q} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash with banks and checks in course of being cashed. Cash squivalents
are short-term, highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
remaining three months or less to maturity from the date of acguisition and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

English transiation Is for information purposas only. Romardan language exd is the official text for submission.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
r} Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax and any
excise duties and other sales taxes, rebates and sales incentive discounts. Hevenue is recognized to the
exient that It is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be refiably
measured. The Group assesses its revenue arrangementis against specific crteria in order to determine if
it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that i is acting as a principal in ali of its
revenue arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognized, that the Group:

- Has primary responsibiiity for providing the goods or service

- Has inventory risk

- Has discretion in establishing prices

- Bears the credit risk

in addition:

- Sales of goods are recognized when delivery has taken place and transter of significant risks and
rewards has been completed.

- Revenue from rendering transportation services and other services is recognized when services
are rendered.

- Interest income is recognized on a time-portion basis using the effective interest method.

- Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders’ rights {o receive
payment have been established.

s} Interest bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received lass directly
attributable fransaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequentiy measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognized as well
through the amortization process.

t) Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asset that
necessarily takes & substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective assets. All the other costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other cost that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

u} Retirement benefit costs

Payments made 1o stale - managed refirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution
plans where the Group pays fixed contributions into the state-managed fund and has no iegal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior period. The coniributions are
charged as an expense in the same period when the employee service was rendered.

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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{Amounts in US dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note Ze))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Under collective labor agreements in certain of the Group’s entities, employees are entitled to specified
retirament benefits, payable on retirement, if they are employed with these entities at the date of their
retirement, These amounis are estimated as of the reporting date based on the following information:
applicable benefits provided in the agreement; the number of employees with the relevant Group entities;
and actuarial assumptions on future liabilities. The defined benefit liability as of reporting date comprises
the present value of the defined benefit obligation with the related service cost charged to the income
statement. All actuarial gains and losses are fully recognized in other comprehensive income in the period
it which they occur for all defined benefit plans.

The Group has no other liabilities with respect to future pension, health and other costs for its employees.

v} Taxes
- Current income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amound
expecied ic be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The {ax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted, by the reporting date, in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
income staiement. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate,

- Deferred tax

Daferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» Where ihe deferred tax lizbility arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liabiiity in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

¥ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probabie that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseesable future.

Deferrad tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
iosses can be ulilized except:

» Where the deferred tax asset relating fo the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

# In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, asscciates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differances can be utiiized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced io the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferrad
tax asset o be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assels are reassessed at each reporiing date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset (o be recovered,

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language lext is the official text for submission.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the Hability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacled at the reporting dals.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred iax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax labilities and the deferred taxes refate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able o control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probabie that the temporary difference wili not reverse in the foreseeable future.

- Bales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except:

» Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable

% Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

w) Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the year in which they are approved by the shareholders,

x) Foreign Currency Transactions

The Group transiates its foreign currency transactions and balances into functional currency by applying
to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate betwean the functional currency and the foreign
currency at the date of transaction. Exchange raie differences arising on the seitiement of monetary
assets and liabilities or on reporting them at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded
during the period or reported in the previous financial statements are recognized in the consolidated
income statement in the period they arise.

y} Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group enters info contracts to purchase and sell crude oil and oil products at future delivery dates.
These contracis expose the Group primarily to risks of changes in fair value of crude oll and related oil
oroducts {commaodity risk). The Group aiso uses financial instruments {primarily Options, Swaps and
forwards) to hedge its risks associated with fair value fiuctuation relating to certain firm commitments and
forecasted transactions.

The use of {inancial derivatives is governed by the Group's policies approved by board of directors, which
provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives.

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are re-
measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

English wansiation is for information purposes orly. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Fair value hedge

The Company buys crude oil from the market, refines it and later sells the finished products {e.g.
gasoline, diesel, jet fuel eic.). The company hedges priced inventories (both raw materials and finished
products) around BOS (based operated stock) using futures instruments for a period that approximately
matches the operating cycle.

Hedge accounting is applied for the futures instruments. The change in the fair value of a hedging
instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as Cost of Sales. The change in the fair value of
the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the inventory
and is also recognised in the statement of profit or loss as Cost of Sales. |f the hedged item is
derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or foss (see note 18}.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not gualify for hedge accounting are
recognized in period profit or loss as they arise.

Cash Flow Hedge

The Company buys crude oil from the market, refines it and later sells the finished products (e.g.
gasoline, diesel, jet fuel etc.). Throughout a given period, the volatility associated with the oil market, both
in crudes and in finished, is transmitted to the Company's refinery margin {difference between the
purchase price of crude oil and the selling price of finished products). To reduce this volatility, the
Company hedges the margin with a swap on a hedged basket as relevant for the period.

Hedge accounting is applied for the refinery margin Swap instruments. The effective portion of the gain or
ioss on the hedging instrument is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective poriion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. Amounts
recognised as OCI are transferred fo profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss (see
noie 18).

z) Emission Rights

CO2 emission rights quota are allocated to the Group's refining and peirochemicals operations. For the
period 2013-2020 the allowances have been validated by European Union and are posted on the
Rormanian Environmental Ministry website. Rompetrol Rafinare SA received its quota allocation for 2017
and the one for 2018 has been received at the end of February 2018. The Group accounts for the liability
resulting from generating of these emissions using the net liability method. The actual emissions are not
expecterd 1o exceed the certificates which the group will have in its accounts in CO2 EU Hegister at the
time of annual compliance (April 2018). The Hability is recognized only at a point where the actual
emissions exceed the quoia ajlocated to the respective group companies. Income is recognized only
when excess cerificates are sold on the market.

za) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consofidated financial statements. They are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

English transtation is for information purposses only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.

30



ROMPETROL HAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
tAmounts in US dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounis in HON are
provided for information purposes only {(see Note 2e)j

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amounis in USD

Cost

Gpening balance as of January 1, 2016
Additions

Transfers fromn CIP

Transiers and reclassifications”

Closing balance as of December 31, 2016
Additions

Transiers from GIF

Transfers and reclassifications®

Closing balance as of December 31, 2017
Accumeuiaied amortization

Opening balance as of January 1, 2016
Charge for the year

Accumulzied amortization of disposals
Closing balance as of December 31, 2016
Charge for the year

Closing balance as of December 31, 2017

Net book vaiue
As of December 31, 2016
As of December 31, 2017

Y Inciudes, iranslar lo properly, plant and equipmeant, reclassifications between calagories and other adjusiments;

Major part of "Other” (Intangibie Assets) relates tc licenses.

Amounts in RON

Cast

Opening balance as of January 1, 2016
Additions

Transters from CIF

Transfers and raclassifications”

Closing balance as of December 31, 2016
Additions

Transfers from CIP

Transfers and reclassifications”

Closing halance as of December 31, 2017
Accumulated amortization

Opening balznce as of January 1, 2016
Charge for the vear

Accumulated amortization of disposais
Ciosing bafance as of December 31, 2016
Charge for the year

Closing balance as of December 31, 2017

Net book vaiue
As of December 31, 2016
As of December 31, 2017

Intangibles

Software Other in progress Total
33,528,262 38,536,728 2,357,408 74,422,398
2,418 83,718 1,780,316 1,856,450
(72,269} 170,836 (58,567} .
- - {28,805} (26,805)
33,458,411 38,771,280 4022352 76,252,043
441,718 33,165 858,248 1,333,129
37,861 96,565 (134,426) -
735,252 275,304 16,365 1,026,521
34,673,242 39,176,314 4,762,537 78,612,083
{32,515,882) (34,703,944} (523,380) (67,743,206}
(552,315) (680,760} - {1,243,075}
158,713 (158,713} - -
(32,909,484) (35,553,417} (523,380} (68,986,281)
{615,278) (758,081} - (1,373,357}
(33,524,760) (36,311,498) {523,380} (70,359,638)
548,827 3,217,863 3,498,972 7,265,762
1,148,482 2,864,816 4,239,157 8,252,455

intangibles

Scoftware Other in progress Total
130,475,232 149,965,677 9,173,853 289,614,762
9,410 247,851 6,967,015 7,224 376
{281,235} 664,808 (383,573} -
- - {104,312} (104,312}
130,203,407 150,878,436 15,652,983 296,734,828
1,718,846 129,062 3,339,864 5,187,872
147,336 375,783 {523,119) -
2,861,233 1,071,346 53,684 3,896,263
134,930,922 162,454,627 18,533,412 305,918,961
{126,535,6558) (135,050,398}  {2,036,733) (263,622,686)
(2,148,334} (2,688,093} - (4,837,427)
617,632 {617,632} - -
(128,067,257} (138,356,123}  (2,038,733] (268,460,113)
{2,394,347) (2,850,072} - {5,344,419)
{130,461,604) (141,306,195) (2,036,733} (273,804,532}
2,136,150 12,622,313 13,616,250 28,274,713
4,469,318 11,148,432 16,496,679 32,114,429

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official taxt for submission.
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4, GOODWILL

The carrying value of goodwill as of 31 Decemnber 2017 and 2016 was USD 82,871,706 (RON:
322,495,245).

The whole carrying amount of goodwill has beern allocated to Downstream Romania Cash Generating
Unit (*Downsiream Romania CGU"}. Two other cash generating units in the Group are: Refineries and
Petrochemicals.

The Downstream Bomania CGU comprises the retail and wholesale operations of Rompetrol
Downstream SRL and the wholesale activity supported by the siorage depots owned by Rom Oil S.A,

impairment test
Impairment tests have been performed by the Group for the carrying value of goodwill as of 31 December

2017 on the Downstream Romania cash generating units {"CGU"). Based on the impairment test no
impairment has been identified. For further details see Note 6.

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Amounis in USD

Plant and Vehicles Construction

Land Buildings eguipment and others  in progress Total
Cost
As of January 1, 2016 70,158,567 897,975,684 1 189,432,815 122,758,847 73,815,700  2,354,142,723
Acquisitions - - 105,966 088,439 58,481,759 59 586,224
Transfers from CiP - 11,851,455 12,568,200 4,443 607 (2B,B63,262) -
isposals - (1,532,984} (9,896,145) (3,086,79%) (19,862) {14,835,830)
Transfers and reclassifications” - {8.347} {76.084) 34,431 (118,839) {118,839)
As of December 31, 2016 70,158,667 908,285,818 1,192 084,752 125,135,685 103,305,386 2,398,974,218
Addifions - 2,077 416,670 470,497 83,137,840 84,027 084
Transters from CIP - 16,370,701 42,382,143 4,930,107  (B3,682,951) -
Fevalualion adjusiment - 128,342,052 - . - 129,342,052
Disposais - {605,372) (2,349,842) (10,727,083} {836} (13,683,233}
Transfers and reclassifications” - {382.107,113) {1.641,542) (1,439,050} (115,663}  {385,303,368)
As of December 31, 2117 70,158,567 671,288,163 1,230,852.081 118374156 122643786 2213,356,753
Accunruigied depreciation &
Impairmern
As of January 1, 2016 {78,373) (459,434,385) (594.783,545) (95,642,158) (28,823,732} (1,178,862,194)
Charge for the year - (26,044,186} {63,416,508) (5,074,257} « (94,534,949}
Accumuiated depreciation of
disposals B 576,718 8,953,103 2,392 487 “ 12,922,308
Impairment . - - - {351,877) {351,877)
Transfers and reclassifications” - (141,778} 124,873 16,212 - {503)
As of December 31, 2016 {78,373} (485,043,631} {648,121,875) (98,307,717) (28,275608) {1,260 B27,305)
Charge for the year - {B7,057.742) (61,735.458) (5885439 - {94,688 637)
Accumulated depraciation of
disposals - 261,806 2,284,904 10,543,223 - 13,090,038
Impairmant - {(297.897%) - “ {226,800 (B18,778)
Transfers and reclassifications” - 382,107,113 - 2,040,000 - 384,147,113
As of December 31, 2017 {78,373} (130,030,333} (707,572,527} (91,619,833} (29,496,409} (95B,797.575)
Net book vaiue as of December
31, 2016 70,080,194 423242187 543862777 26,831,968 74,029,787  1,138,146,913
Net book value as of December
31, 2017 70,080,194 541,257,830 523,319,584 26,754,223 93,147,377 1,254,559 178

*} includes, transfer to properiy, plant and equipment, reclassifications between categories and other adjustments;

English transiation is for information purposes only, Romanian language text is the official texd for submission,
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued}

Amounts in RON

Flant and Vehicles and Construction

Land Buildings equipment others in progress Total
Cost
Az of January 1, 2016 273,022.063 3.484,472.413 4628,677,800 477.720,334 287,353,797 8,161,146,407
Actpuisitions - - 412,367 3,846,744 227 620,680 231,879,731
Transfars from CiF - 46,119,937 48,805,150 17,202,297 {112,381,384) .
Disposals . {5,965 607} (38,809,598} (12,012,278} {77 532) {56,055,565)
Transfers and reclassifications” - {32,482} {101,506) 133,928 {462 463} {462,462
As of December 31, 2016 273,022,863 3,534,594,261 4,638,897, 813 486,981,085 402,012,949 9,335,608,171
Addilions - 8,083 1,621,471 1,830,938 323,530,204 326,991,397
Transters from GIP - 63,706,583 164,830,103 19,185,511 {247,822,203) -
Revaluation adjustment - 503,334,885 - - - 503,334,585
Disposals {2,355.805) {9,144, 793} {41,744,443) {3,253} (53,248,300}
Transfers and reclassifications® - {1.4086.960 830) {6,398,061) (5,600.063) {450,103 {1,485.408,087}
As of December 31, 2017 273,022,063 2.612,317,887 4,780,016,533 460,653,628 477,268,294  B§,613,277.006
Accumuiated depreciation &
Impairment
As of January 1, 2016 (304,989} (1,757,888,909) {2,314,600,165) (372,181,462} {112.556,703) {4.587,542.228)
Charge for the year - (101,350,880) (246,785,333) (19,746,470} - {367,882,753)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals 2,244,258 38732 500 9,310,363 - 50,287,161
impairment - - - - {1,369,329) {1,369,329)
Transfers and reclassifications” - (551,729) 485,332 £3 030 - {2,308)
As of December 31, 2018 {304,888} (1,B87,547,280} (2.522,166,666) {382,564,480) {113.926,032)  {4,906,509,457)
Ghargs lor the year - {105,295,203) (240,243 .527) (22,942,102} - (368.480,832)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals - 1,018,207 8,891,704 41,028,952 - 50,935,863
impaimmant - {1,159,585) - . {858,243} {2.018,828)
Transfers and reclassifications” - 1.485,969.830 - 7,938 860 - 1,454,508 400
As of December 31, 2017 (304,989} {508,013, 041} (2,753,518,489) {356,538,970) {114.785,275) {3,731,160,764)
MNet ook value as of Decomber 31,
2016 272,717,074 1,647,046,971 @116,831,1 a7 104,418,605 <B88,086,917  4429,08B,714
Net book value as of Becember 31,
2017 272,717,074 2,1085,304,846 2.036,498,044 104,114,059 362,483,015  4,8B2117,042

In 2017, Transfers and Reclassifications of USD 1.15 million (RON 4.48 million) represent iransfer to
intangibles, reclassifications between categories and other adjustments. Also, an additional transfer
relates to the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the revalued asset in amount of USD 382.1 million.

- Construction in progress

During 2017, Downstream continued the process of expending the network by opening new stations and
rebranding the existing one. The value of investment was USD 21.7 million.

In 20117 out of the total acquisitions in construction in progress the most significant refers to the following
proiecis of Rompetrol Rafinare SA: HDPE* Unit restart USD 4.2 million, State inspecting for Contrad of
Boilers, Pressure Vessel and Hoisting authorizations {ISCIR} amounting to USD 12.5 million, Tank
rehabilitation amounting to USD 5.2 million and Refinery and Petrochemicals annual turnaround

amounting to USD 17.3 millicn. Part of these projects have been transferred to the other property, plant
and equipment categories.

“Af December 31, 2017, the net book value of the HDPE plant is § 23.7 million.

With the support and decision of the majority shareholder, the company started at the end 2017 the
mechanical and organizational works for bringing the HDPE plant to operation. At the time of preparation
of the financial statements, the mechanical works are completed, the restarting technological tests being
carried out ai these times (March 2018). in the near future, depending on the approgriate market moment,
the actual putting into operation of the HDPE unit will take place.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submisslon.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)

In 2017 the main projects remaining in construction in progress refers 1o the following: Tank rehabilitation
amounting to USD 7.6 miilion, State Inspecting for Centrol of Boilers, Pressure Vessel and Hoisting
authorizations (ISCIR) amounting to USD 7.5 million, HDPE Unit restart amounting to USD 4.2 millien and
Refinery specific optimisation programs amounting to USD 13.3 million in respect of Rompetrol Hafinare
SA.

During 2016, equipment and other assels in value of USD 6.1 million were commissioned in relation to of
RKebranding project for the modernization of retail stations of Downsiream.

in 2016 out of the tolaf acquisitions for construction in progress the most significant refers to the foliowing
projects in respect of Rompetrol Rafinare SA: Refinery specific optimisation programs amounting to USD
7.65 million, State Inspecting for Control of Boilers, Pressure Vessel and Hoisting authorizations (ISCIR)
amounting to USD 4.93 millicn, Tank rehabilitation amounting to USD 4.3 million and Refinery 2017
turnaround amounting io USD 3 million. Part of these projects have been transferrad {o the other
propery, plant and equipment categories.

In 2016 the main projects remaining in construction in progress refers to the following: Tank rehabilitation
amounting to USD 7.9 million, State Inspecting for Control of Boilers, Pressure Vessel and Hoisting
authorizations (ISCIR)amounting to USD 5 million, Refinery specific optimisation programs amounting to
USD 5.8 million and Refinery 2017 turnaround amounting to USD 2.8 million in respect of Rompetrol
Rafinare SA.

- Disposals

In 2017, out of the total USD 13.7 million disposed assets, USD 13.2 million refers to write-offs for
Rompeirol Downstream,

in 2016, out of the total USD 14.6 million disposed assets, USD 8.5 million refers o change of catalysts
for Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. and USD 4.8 million refers to write-offs for Rompetrol Downstream,

- Borrowing costs capiialized

The Group is financing part of its operations from borrowings and hence the cost of these borrowings
refated 1o acquisition of gualifying assets is capitalized as part of the cost of those qualitying assets. For
the years ended at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 no loans were taken specifically for
investmenis and - no borrowing costs were capitalized.

- Disposals through sales of subsidiaries and liquidations
During 2017 and 2016 there was no disposal of companies.

- Impairment
The Group completes an annuat assessment for any indication of impairment for all entities based on
specific asset considerations, as applicable, and taking into consideration expectations on futurs
estimated cash flows. Impairment tests have been performed by the Group for the carrying value of

goodwill and property plant and equipment as of 31 December 2017 on the cash generating units
{“CGUs" listed betow in Nole 8.

English translation is for information purposes only, Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
- Hevaluation of buildings category

Starting December 31,2017, the Group changed its accounting policies regarding the recognition and
measurement of its non-current assets, for buildings category, from cost model to the revalued one. The
Group has changed its accounting policy to measure buildings category at the revalued amount in
accordance with IAS 16, IAS 16.37 defines a class of property, plant and equipment as a grouping of
assets of similar nature and use in an entity's operations. The Group determined that the buildings

category constitute separate class of property, plant and equipment, based on their nature, characteristics
and risks.

The change from cost to revaluation will provide a more transparent and up-to-date picture of the value of
the Group's assets. Fair value of the buildings category was determined using the market comparable
method. The valuations were performed by an independent appraiser and are based on proprietary
databases of prices for properties of similar nature, location and condition. Since this valuation was
performed using a significant non-observable input, the fair value was classitied as a Level 3
measurement. A net gain from the revaluation of the Group buildings category of USD 146,4 million in
2017 was recognized in OCI.

Heconciligiton of carrying amount

Buildings
muSD mRON

Carrying amount as at DBecember 31, 2016" 423 1,646
L.evel 3 revaiuation gain recognized due to change in accounting policy to

revaluation model 174 677
L evel 3 revaiuation loss recognized (included in the profit and loss for the period) (45} (175}
Depreciation for the year (27} (105)
Additions/Disposals/Transfers and reclassifications 16 62
Carrying amount and fair value as at 31 December 2017 541 2,148

*The Group changed the accounting policy with respect to the measurement of buildings category as at December 31, 2017 on a
prospective basis. Therefore, the fair value of the of bulldings category was not measured at Decembear 31, 2016,

If the buildings category was measured using the cost maodel, the carrying amounts would be, as follows:

2017
misD mBRON

Cost g24 3,586
Accumulated depreciation and impairment {512} {1,892)
Net carrying amount 412 1,604

- Pledged property, plant and equipment

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment of approximately USD 437.9 million (2016: USD
420.28 million) net, for securing banking facilities granted to Group entities.

Engish transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the officiat text for submission.
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& IMPAIRMENT TEST

Impairment tests have been performed by the Group for the carrying value of goodwill and property plant
and equipment as of 31 December 2017 on the cash generating units ("CGUS™) listed below. Based an
the impairment tests performed, no impairment has been identified.

As of December 31, 2017, the net book value of property plant and equipment for the cash generating
units is the following: Refining USD 919 million, Petrochemicals USD 55 million, Downstream USD 207
rmiliion,

Refining

Refining CGU includes the operations of Petromidia Hefinery and Vega Refinery. The recoverable
amount of Refining CGU unit has been determined based on the fair value less costs fo sell using
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year pericd. The discount rate applied
to cash flow projections is 9.0% {2016: 9.6%) and cash flows beycnd the 5-year peried are extrapolated
using a 1.5% growth rate that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the industry. The
capitalization rate used for residual values is 7.5% (2016: B.1%).

Petrochemicals

Petrochemicals CGU inciudes the petrochemical business of the group, which is included within
Rompetrol Rafinare legal entity; the unit is involved in the production and distribution of clefins in
Romania. The recoverable amount of Rompetrol Petrochemicals unit has been determined based on the
fair value less costs to sell using financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 9.0% (2016:9.6%) and cash flows beyond the
B-year period are extrapolated using a 1.5% growth rate that is the same as the long-term average growth
rate for the industry. The capitalization rate used for residual values is 7.5% (2016: 8.1%).

Downstream Romania

The Downstream Romania CGU comprises the retail and wholesale operations of Rompetrol
Downstream SRL and the wholesale activity supported by the storage depots owned by Rom Gil 5.A.

The recoverable amount of Downstream Romania unit has also been determined based on the fair value
less costis o sell using financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period and
same assumptions as for Refining unit. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 8.0% (2016
4.6%; and cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a 1.5% growth rate that is the
same as the long-term average growth rate for the industry. The capitalization rate used for residual
vaiues i1s 7.5 % (2016; B.1%).

Key assumptions used in fair value less costs to sell calculations

The key assumptions used in the fair value less costs to sell calculations for the above-mentioned CGUs
are:

e Operating profit;
5 Discount rales;
e Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget pericd.

Following Operating profit margin on the basis of Net revenues were applied for the relevant Cash
Generating Units:

2018 2018 2020 2021 2022

Refining 2.8% 5B8B% bL56% 62% 5.3%
Petrochemicals {2.9%) (0.19%) 0.8%) 08% 1.1%
Downstream Homania 22% 22% 20% 2.4% 2.9%

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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5. IMPAIFIMENT TEST (continued)

Discount raies reflect the current market assessment of the risks specific to sach cash generating unit.
The discount raie was estimated based on the average percentage of a weighted average cost of capital
for the industry. This rate was further adjusted to reflect the market assessment of any risk specific to the
cash generating unit for which future estimates of cash-flows have not been adjusted.

Growth rate estimates - Rates ars based on published industry research.

Sensitivity o changes in assumplions

With regard to the assessment of the fair value less costs to sell for cash generating units, management
believes that it is very unlikely that changes in any of the above key assumptions would cause the
carrying vaiue of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount, other than as disclosed below:

Refining

The break-even point for the current model is achieved under a decrease of 58.1% of Operating profi,
reaching the following Operating profit margins:

2018 2018 2020 2021 2022

Operating profit margin 1.1% 2.4% 2.3% 2.5% 2.2%

Petrochemicals

The break-even point for the current model is achieved under a decrease of 57.3% of Operating profit,
reaching the following Operating profit marging:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Operating profit margin (1.2%]} {0.1%} {0.3%]) 0.2% 0.5%

Downstream Romania

The break-even point for the current model is achieved under a decrease of Operating profit of 51.8%
reaching the following Operating prefit margins:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Operating profit margin 1.0% 1.1% 1.0% 1.2% 1.4%

*Operating profit marging were computed based on net revenue.

English transiation is for information puiposes only. Romanian language text s the official text for submission.
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7. INVESTMENTS

a) Investments in Consolidated Subsidiaries

Details of the Group consolidated subsidiaries at December 31, 2017 and 2018 are as follows:

Effective Effective

ownership  Control  ownership  Control
December UDecember December December

Company name Range of activity 31, 2017 3,217 31, 2016 31, 2016
Rompetrol Downstream S.H.L. Retail Trade of Fuels and Lubricants 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Hom Ol S.A. Whaolesale of Fugls; fus! storage 160.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Rompetrol Logistios 5.H.L. togistics operations £86.18% 100.00% 86.19% 100.00%
Rompefrol Petrochemicals S.RL.  Petrochemicals 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.60%
Rompetrot Guality Control S.R.L. Quality Contro! Services 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Rompeirol Gas 5.H.L. LPG Sales 56.19% 100.00% 66.19% 100.00%

Effective ownership interests for the Group takes into consideration indirect sharenolding weighted with
corresponding Group ownership in the intermediate shareholder and this percentage is used for
consolidation, while the control parcent takes info consideration the total interest controlled directly and

indirectly.

b} Avaiiable for sale Investments

Other
Toial

2017 2016 2017 2016
ush usp RON RON
18,583 18,683 72316 72316
18,583 18,683 72,316 72,316

Other investments are investments in companies in Bomania, which are held primarily for long-term

growth potential.

8. INVENTORIES, NET

Crude ail and other feedstock materials
Petroleum and petrochemical products
Work in progress

Spare paris

Consumables and other raw materials
Merchandises

Other inventories

Inventories provision

2017 2016 2017 2016

usb usbh RON RON
148,316,687 110,510,568 577,174,387 430,051,877
135,135,248 60,858,859 541,444,818 271,856,139
31,572,883 28,704,734 122,865,874 111,704,472
16,625,967 16,612,083 £4,659,851 64,645,726
5,743,935 5,683,758 22,352,523 21,728,184
10,434,925 6,787,215 40,607,526 26,412,447
8,765,118 8,725,268 34,109,461 33,054,380
(17,870,843} (16,680,970} (69,933,925} (64,952 910}
342,623,825 230,091,565 1,333,320,615 885401325

Engiish translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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8. INVENTORIES, NET (continued)
The inventories provision movement in 2017 and 2016 is provided below:

Movementis in inventories reserve:

2017 2016 2017 2016

usp usb RON RON
Reserve as of January 1 {16,690,970) {19,479,973} (64,952,910} (75,806,315}
Accrued provision (3,864,842}  (6,108,255) (15,040,422) (23,750,817)
Whrite off 38,435 111,172 148,570 432,626
Reversal of provision 2,546,534 8,781,086 9,809,837 34,171,586
Reserve as of December 31 {17,970,943) (16,690,970} (69,933,925) (64,952,910)

The inventories provisions mainly represent the provision for net realizable value in relation to refineries
and petrochemical plant inventories and provision of old spare parts.

The Group has piedged inveniories in gross amount of USD 301.4 million (2016: USD 170.18 million) to
secure banking facilities.

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As mentioned in Note 1 the Parent company and fts subsidiaries are part of KMG International Group.
The balances with related pariies are disclosed in Note 24,

2017 20186 2017 2016

ust usp RON RON
Trade receivables 272.145,734 252,476,726  1,059,055,124 982,513,180
Advances (o suppliers 4,061,490 9,141,806 35,262,788 35,575,727
Sundry debiors 84,011,319 31,018,813 326,930,048 120,709,711
VAT to be recovered 12,050 71,450 46,893 278,048
Other receivables 176,224,862 87,603,703 685,779,050 340,808,810

Provision for bad and doubtful debts (105,245,948}  (92,735,110) (409,564,607} (360,878,681}
436,209,507 287,577,488 1,697,509,296 1,119,107,785

Movement in the above provision is disclosed below and in Note 20,

Included in Sundry debiors in 2017 is an amount of USD 3.05 million (2016: USD 2.75 million) for
principal liabifities and related penalties paid 1o ANAF foilowing General Tax Inspection Repart covering
2007-2010 paried, and an additional USD 3.53 million (2016: USD 3.2 million) for payment made by
Rompetrol Rafinare SA to Navedari City Hall following the fiscal audit on local taxes {in respect of
revaluation of buildings) (see Note 27). Also, included in Sundry deblors category is an amount of USD
73.4 mitkon relating to Rompetrol Petrochemicals SRL receivables against KMGH as a result of Rompetrol
Petrochemicals SRL assignment of receivables to KMGI starting with November 2017 for Rompetiol
Hafinare SA debts.Included in Sundry deblors in 2016 is an amount of USD 20.89 million (2015: USD
22.75 million) for payment made by Rompetroi Ralinare for antidumping and countervailing taxes for
Biodiesel import {in respect with KMGH).

English ranslation is for information purposes only. Fomanian language text is the official text for submission.
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4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES {continued}

Out of the total balance for other receivables of USD 176.2 million, an amount of USD 30.02 million
(2016: USD 24.74 million) relates to Competition Council fine from Downstream and USD 112.8 million
refates to cash pooling receivables for: Rompetrol Downstream USD 92.9 million (2016: USD 154
million), Rompetrol Gas USD 19.9 million {2016: USD 8.34 million), and Rompetrol Quality Control USD
0.02 million (2016: ¢.61 million). Also, in other receivables an amount of USD 13.99 million (2016: USD
13.81 million) refers to excise receivables in Rompetrol Ratinare.

2017 2016 2017 2016

usn Usp RON RON
Sundry debtors 84,011,318 31,018,813 326,830,048 120,709,711
Other receivables 176,224,862 87,603,703 685,772,050 340,805,810
Provision for sundry debtors and other receivables (32,772,120; (26,520,402) (127,532,703} (103,204,142)

Out of the total amount of other receivables and sundry debtors of USD 260.2 million (2016: USD 118.6
million) an amount of USD 32.77 miflion (2016: USD 26.52 million) is provisioned.

The movement in provision for doubtful debts for trade and other receivables is as follows:

2017 2016 2017 2016

usp Usp RON RON
Balance at the beginning of the year (82,735,110} (93,925,432) (360,878,681) (365,510,819}
Impairment losses recognized on receivables {1,833,470) {1,347,4958)  (7,524,099) (5,243,777)
Impairment losses reversed 2,028,308 2,049,147 7,893,161 7,974,256
Translation differences (12,605,676} 488,670  (49,054,988) 1,801,659
Balance at the end of the year {105,245,948) (92,735,110} (409,564,607) (360,878,681}

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

U5 Past due but not impaired

Toial MNeither past due not impaired  1-30days 30-60 days 60-80days  90-120days  >120 days
2017 199,671,906 136,523,263 28,655,877 6,854,003 3,622,342 1,790,045 23,186,286
2016 188,262,018 101,005,281 23,216,368 9,435,088 6,666,048 5,063,161 40,876,071

RON Past due but not impaired

Toial Neither past due not impaired  1-30 days 30-60 days  60-90days 90-120 days >120 days
2017 777,023,220 BZ7 388776 111,514,345 26,828,363 14,096,344 6,965,960 80,228,432
2016 724,838,641 383,062,049 50,246,496 36,716,645 25,940,830 19,703,281 158,068,230

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables at initial value of USD 72.47 miition (2016: USD 66.21 miliion)
were impaired and fully provided for. See below for the movemenis in the provision for impairment of
trade receivables.

English transiation is for information purposes only. Fomanian language texi is the official text for submission.
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8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued}

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Unused amounts reversed
Exchange rate differences
At 31 December 20116
Charge for the year
Unused amounis reversed
Exchange rate differences
At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Unused amounts reversad
Exchange rate differences
At 31 December 2016
Charge for the year
Unused amounts revarsed
Exchange raie differences
At 31 December 2017

individually Collectively

impaired impaired Total
usD Usp usph
51,110,929 17,090,712 68,201,641
948,986 395,857 1,345,843
(262,489)  (721,003) (983,492)
(1,400,328)  {948,8956) {2,349,284)
50,367,367 15,847,341 66,214,708
1,111,745 478,710 1,580,455
4,715 (170,837} (166,225)
4,827,235 1,848,772 6,676,007
54,975,570 17,498,258 72,473,828
individually Collectively
impaired impaired Total
RON RON RON
198,898,180 66,508,507 265,406,687
3,696,871 1,540,478 5,237,349
(1,021,476) (2,8B05,783) (3,827,259)
(5,448,376} (3,692,862) (9,142,23B)
196,004,609 61,669,930 257,674,539
4,326,354 1,862,900 6,189,254
18,348 {665,201}  (646,853)
18,785,185 7,194,497 25979682
213,937,429 68,094,475 282,031,904

Trade receivables totaling USD 127.85 million (RON 497.52 miiiion} as at December 31, 2017 and USD
132.18 million {RON 514.38 million) as at December 31, 2016 are pledged to obtain credit facitities (see

Motes 12 and 15},

10.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank
Cash on hand
Cash equivalents

2017 2016 2017 2016

uso usp RON RON
10,040,822 14,472,800 38,073,858 56,320,901
2,361,831 1,196,646 8,191,065 4,656,748
168,540 140,852 737,585 548,126
12,582,193 15,810,298 49,002,518 61,525,775

Included in cash at bank is USD 1.77 miliion (RON 6.88 million) as at December 31, 2017 and USD 1.54
mition {BON 5,92 million} as at December 31, 2016 representing cash collateral for cerlain bank facilities
{see Noie 12 and 15). Cash equivalents represent rmainly chegues in the course of being cashed.

English transiaion is for information purposes only. Fomanian language texi is the official text for submission,
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TLEQUITY

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 the share capital consisted of 44,108,205,726, authorized, issued
and fully paid ordinary shares with a face value of RON 0.1 each.

Shareholders’ structure as at December 31, 2017 is as follows:

December 31, 2017

Amount per
statutory Amount under  Amount under
documents IFRS IFRS
Shareholders Ownership HON UspD RON
KMG International NV 48.11% 2,122,250,642 704,057,130 2,739,838,321
Romanian State represented by
Ministry of Energy 44.70% 1,871,600,805 654,045,871  2,545,219,507
Rompetrol Financial Group S.H.L. 8.47% 285,408,308 84,684,271 368,463,841
Mompetrol Well Services S.A. 0.05% 2,198,030 729,197 2,837,670
Others {not State or KMGI Group) 0.67% 20,562,686 9,807,428 38,165,606
Total 100% 4,410,8920,571 1,463,323,897 5,694,524,945
Shareholders’ structure as at December 31, 2016 was as follows:
December 31, 2016
Amount per Amount Amount
statutory under under
documents IFRS IFRS
Shareholders Ownership HON Usp RON
KMG International NV 48.11% 2,122,250,642 704,067,130 2,733,838,321
Romanian State represented by Ministry
of Energy 44.70% 1,971,500,905 654,045,871 2,545,219,507
Rompetrol Financial Group S.R.L. £6.47% 285,408,308 94,684,271 368,463,841
Rompetrol Well Services 5.A. 0.05% 2,198,030 729,197 2,837,670
Others (not State or KMGI Group) 0.67% 29,562,686 9,807,428 38,165,606
Shareholders 100% 4,410,820,571 1,463,323,857 5,694,524,945

There were no changss in {he statutory value of Rompetrot Rafinare SA issued share capital in 2017 and

2016.

Share premium and effect of transfers with equity holders

Share premium and effect of transfers with equity holders are the result of conversion of bonds into
ordinary shares as at September 30, 2010 in favor of the Romanian State represenied by the Ministry of
Finance, {ollowing the Emergency Ordinance ("EGO"} 118/2003 ratified by Law B8/2005.

The transactions resufted in an impact on the Effect of transfer with equity holders reserve amounting
U8B 596.83 million and share premium of USD 74 million.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romarian language text is the official text for submission,

42



ROMPETROL RAFINARE BA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOH THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

{Amounis in US dollars representing the funclional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note 2e})

11, EQUITY (continued)
Hybrid Loar

In 2012, USD 800 million of the total outstanding balance of the loan payable to KMG international NV
was converted into an unsecured hybrid loan, repayabie after 51 years. During 2013, an additional USD
200 miliion were converted (USD 150 million related to Bompetrel Rafinare and USD 50 miilion to
Rompetrol Dowstream}, the hybrid loan amounting to USD 1,000 million. The fcan is subordinated to any
present and fuiure Hability of the companies. At maiurity the loan can be repaid in cash or fully or partially
converied into shares, The interest rate for this ioan is 15% of the aggregate amount of the company’s
annual EBIT {operational profit}, and # is compuied and becomes payable if the below conditions are met
cumulatively:

v the company records net profit after tax in the year

v the company will be able to distribute dividends as per the Romanian law requirements

in 2017 an additional USD 72.2 million related to Bompetrol Rafinare SA were converied o hybrid loan
repayable after 51 years. As of December 31, 2017, the total value of the hybrid loan is amounting USD
1,072 million. The additional loan is subordinated to any present and future liability of the companies. At
maturity the loan can be repaid in cash or fully or partially converted into shares. The interest rate for this
loan is 2% of the aggregate amount of the company's annual EBIT (operational profit), and it is computed
and becomes payable if the below conditions are met cumulatively:

v' the company records net profit after tax in the year

v the company will be able to distribute dividends as per the Romanian faw requirements

Also, in 2017 management carried out an assessment on the potential hybrid loan interest liability and
recorded an amount of USD 14.6 million, based on the projecied profitability of the business for the
upceming period,

Revaluation reserve

Starting December 31,2017, the Group changed its accounting policies regarding the recognition and
measurement of its non-current assets, in respect of buildings category, from cost model to the revalued
one. The Group has changed its accounting policy to measure buildings category at the revalued amount
in accordance with |AS 16. IAS 16.37 defines a class of property, plant and equipment as a grouping of
assets of similar nature and use in an entity’s operations. The Group determined that the buildings
category constitute separate class of property, plant and equipment, based on their nature, characteristics
and risks.

Thea change from cost 1o revaluation will provide a more transparent and up-to-date picture of the value of
the Group's assets. Fair value of the buildings category was determined using the market comparable
method. The vaiuations have baen performed by the valuer and are based on proprietary databases of
prices for properties of similar nature, location and condition. A gain from the revaluation of the Group
buildings category of USD 146,4 million in 2017 was recognized in OCI

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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12. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS FROM BANKS

2017 2016 2017 2016
ush Ush RON HON
Unicredit Banit, ING Bank, BCR, Raiffeisen Bank - 127,850,463 - 497,530,077
Rompetrol Downstrean: The entire exposure is
compaosed by 2 different ioans in USD. The loans are
payable by April 23, 2018. The loans were
transferred to short term debt.
Unicredit Banl, ING Banl, BCR, Raiffeisen Bank - 65,556,435 - 255,112,867
Rompetrol Rafinare: The exposure is composed by 4
ioans in USD. The loans are payable by Aprit 23,
2018. The lvang were transferred to short term debt.
Amount payable within one year principal - {244,083} - {949.888)
Total - 193,162,805 - 751,693,056
2017 2016 2017 2016
Ush uspD RON RON
One year or lass - principal - 244,083 - 949,888
One year or less - accrued interest long-term loans - - - -
Between two and five years - 193,162,805 - 751,683,056

Total

183,406,898

¥

752,642,944

The loans are secured with pledges on property piant and equipment of USD 437.9 million (2016: USD
420.28), inventories of USD 301.4 million (2016: USD 170.16) and trade receivabies of USD: 127.8
raiffion (2016: USD 132.18 million).

The club loan with Raiffeisen/BCR/ING/Unicradit is secured with & USD 200 miltion Corporate Guarantes
by NC KazMunayGas JSC with a maturity of 5 years. The undrawn amount from the total facility as at
December 31, 2017 is in amount of USD 24.17 million.

All the financial covenants applicable were complied with as of December 31, 2017,

13, DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred tax, net balances are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

2017 2016 2017 2016
usb UsD RON RON
Deferred tax assets (36,221,657) (63,468,579) (140,956,577) (246,967,975)
Deferred tax liabilities 3,715,861 306,570 14,460,273 1,193,017
Deferred tax (asset) / liability, net (32,505,786) (63,162,009) (126,496,304) (245,794,958)

English translation is for information purposeas cnly. Romanian language text is the official text {or submission.
44



ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(Amounits in US dollars representing the functional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in RON are
provided for information purposes only (see Note Ze))

13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued}

The deferred tax (assets) /liabilities are comprised of the tax effect of the temporary differences related to:

ush

Cpening Charged/(Credited}  Charged/{Credited} Closing
2017 balance to income o equity halance
Temporary differences
Intangibie asssls 49,238 - - 49,238
Propeny, plant and eguipment 125,006,263 41,141,006 174,323,544 340,470,813
Inventorias 82,618 - - 82,618
Provisions (65,525,531) {6,784 ,469) - (72,310,000}
Tax losses {454,374,481) {17 G78,750) - {471,453,231)
Cther (663) - - (663)
Total temporary differences (asset)fliability {394,762,555) 17,277,787 174,323,544 (203,161,224%
Deferred tax effect
intangible assels 7878 - - 7.878
Property, plant and equipmant 20,001,002 8,582,561 27,891,767 54,475,330
Inventories 13,218 . - 13,219
Provisions {10,484,085) 1,085,515} - (11,569,600)
Tax losses (72.698,917) {2 732,600) - {75,432,517)
Cther (1063 - - (166)
Deferred tax (asset}/liability recognized (63,162,008} 2,764,446 27,891,767 {32,505,796)
HON
Opening Charged/{Credited} Charged/{Credited) Ciosing
2017 balance to income 1o equsity balance
Temporary difierences
intangible assels 181,610 - “ 181,610
Property, plant and equipment 486,461,872 180,100,225 678,380,071 1,324,942,168
nventories 321,512 “ - az1,512
Provisions (254,992,604) (26,401,781} - {281,394368)
Tax lossas (1,768,198,203} {66,461,856) - {1,834,660,249)
Other {2,580} - - {2,580)
Total temporary differences {assetylability {1,536,218,483) 67,236,508 678,380,071  {740,601,804)
Deferred tax efiect
intangible assels 30,657 - - 30,657
Properiy, plant and equipment 77.833,898 25,616,037 108,540,812 211,980,748
inventories 51,442 “ - 51,442
Frovisions (40,798,817) (4,224,282} - (45,023,089}
Tax losses {282,911,727) (15,633,913) - {293,545,640)
Other (412) - - {412}
Deferred tax (assef)/liability recognized {245,794,958} 10,757,842 108,540,812  {126,496,304)
The deferred tax {assets) Mabilities recognized at each company level is presented below:
Uuso
Deferred tax (asset)/liability Opening Chargedf/{Credited) Charged/(Credited) Closing
recognized balance {0 income to equity balance
Rompetrol Rafinare SA (60.704,133) - 24,482,476 (36,221,657}
Rompetrot Downstream S.H.L {2,764 ,448) 2,764 448 1,898,858 1,898,858
Rom Oil 8.A. - - 1,474,011 1,474,011
Rompetrol Gas S.H.L. 306,570 - 36,422 342,892
Deferred tax {assel)/liability
recognized {63,162,009) 2,764,446 27,891,767 (32,505,796}

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text {or submission.
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13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

HON
Deferred tax (asset)/liability Opening Charged/{Credited) Charged/{Credited) Closing
recognized balance to income to equity balance
Rompetrol Halfinare SA (236,230,134) . 85,273,655 (140,956,578)
Rompeiral Downstream S.R.L. (10,757,842} 10,757,842 7,388,406 7,388,406
Rom Gil 8.4, - - 5,736,114 5,736,114
Rompetrol Gas 5.H.L. 1,183,017 - 141,736 1,334,753
Deferred tax (asset)fliability
recognized (245,794,953} 10,757,842 108,540,811 {126,496,305)
usoD
; Opening  Charged/(Credited) Charged/{Credited) Closing
2016 haliance to income to equity balance
Temporary differences
intangible asseis 48,238 - 45,238
Property, plant and equipment 102,946,669 22,059,584 - 125,006,263
Inventories 82,618 - - 82,619
Provizions (65,525,831} - - {65,525,531)
Tax losses (410,561,444} (43,813,038) - (454,374,482)
Other {663} - - {863)
Total temporary differences (asset)fliability (373,008,112) (21,753,444} - (394,762,556)
Beferred tax effect
Intangible assels 7,878 - - 7,878
Properiy, piant and equipment 16,471,467 3,528,535 - 20,001,002
Investmenis - - - -
fnveniories 13,218 - - 13,219
Provizions {10,484,085) - - {10,484,085}
Tax losses {65,669,831) (7,010,086} - {72,699,917)
Othar {106) - - {1086}
Deferred tax {asset)/liability recognized {59,681,458) {3,480,551) - (63,162,009}

RON

Opening Charged/(Credited) Charged/{Credited} Ciosing
20186 balance to income 1o equity halance
Temporary differences
[ntangibie assels 191,610 - - 191,610
Property, plant and equipmeant 400,616,862 85,844,810 - 486,461,872
inveniories 321,512 - - 321,512
Provisions {254,552 604} - - {254,992 604}
Tax losses {1,597,699,858) (170,498,437} - {1,768,198,296}
Other {2,580 - : {2,580

Total temporary differences {asset)/liability {1,451,564,959)

(84,653,527}

&

{1,536,218,486)

Deferred tax sifect

Intangible assatls 30,657 - 30,657
Property, plant and equipment 64,088,714 13,735,185 77,833,898
Inventories 51,442 - - 51,442
Provisicns £40,798,B17} - - £40,798,817)
Tax losses {255,631,977) {27,273,750) - {2B2.911.,787)
Oither 41 - = {412}
Deferred tax {assetyliability recognized {232,250,393) (13,544,565} - {245.794,358)

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text 1s the official text for subrmission,
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13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

The ability of the Group to obtain recovery of its deferred tax asset depends on the entities ability, where
tax losses have arisen to generate sufficient taxable income to cover the applicable tax losses available.
Management considers that future taxable income will be generated for recovery of the available tax
losses where it has recognized a corresponding deferred tax assel.

See also note 22 for details for the income tax rate and other related matters.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities cannot be offsst beiween the companies from Romania. The local fiscal

faw does not define the concept of “Fiscal Group”, therefore the fiscal losses cannot be offset between
companies within the same country either.

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 2016 2017 2016

UsD Usn RON RON
Trade payables 765,853,098 628,487,601 2,080,706,488 2,445798,768
Advances from customers 26,318,867 21,064,841 102,419,868 81,874,218
Excise taxes 27,500 - 107,016 -
Special found tax for oil products 7,082,443 6,404,729 27,561,327 24,924,003
VAT payable 33,655,506 27,329,857 130,581,252 106,354,139
Profit tax payable 758,692 185,336 2,952,081 721,235
Other taxes payable {25,516) (620,103) (99,296) (2,413,131)
Employees and social obligations 5,275,852 2,891,425 20,550,978 11,251,880
Deferred revenues 5,579,121 5,801,985 21,711,148 22,578,347
Other liabilities 122,141,497 97,015,884 475,313,636 377,537,118
Toital 866,666,960 788,571,675 3,761,784,480 3,068,726,677

The Group entered into a cash pooling contract for optimizing cash, with KMG Rompetroi S.R.L. {*Master
Company'}. The amounts in balance as of December 31, 2017 are included in other liabilities, for the
following companies: Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. USD 77.85 millicn and Romoil USD 0.47 million.
Rompetrol Downstream S.R.L., Rompetrol Gas and Rompetrol Quality Control 8.R.L. have a positive
balance included in other receivables (see note 9} amounting to USD 92.9 million, USD 19.9 miilion and
.02 million respectively.

Also in other liabilities are included short term guarantees in Rompetrol Downstream S.R.L.., in amount of
USD 3.92 miilion (2016: USD 3.45 million).

15. SHORT-TERM DEBT

2017 2016 2017 2416
Ush usb HON RON
Bancpost 8,102,477 20,644,185 31,530,788 80,338,768

Rompetrol Rafinare 8.A.: Revolving credit ceiling

on shori term credit faciity of up to EUR 30

million, for issue of letters of credit and letters of

guaraniee. Maturity dale is July 31, 2018,

Drawings in USD/EUR/RON.

Current portion of long-term debt - 244,083 - 949,888
224,063,232 20,888,258 B71,842,066 81,286,656

English transfation is for information purposas only. Romanian language texi is the official text for submission.
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15. SHORT-TERM DEBT (continued)

2017 2016 2017 2016
usp usp RON RON

Borrowings from shareholders and related parties

KMG International N.V. 127,113,904 196,086,903 494,663,757 762,994,353

Rompetrol Rafinare SA: Short-term facility for working capital needs in amount of up 1o USD 250 million, for UST 50 million maturily date -

December 31, 2018, for USD 200 million maturity date is on request, assignment of receivables, real movabile securily interest over

movable assats: real movable security interest ovar the participations over Fompeirol Logisties SAL, Romgetral Petrochemicals SHL,

Rompetrol Downstream SAL, Romoil SA; real movable security interest over the bank accounts. The unused amounts as of December 31,

2017 is in amount of USD 122.89 m.

Rompetrol Financial Group 29,551,587  26,723.677 115,000,001 103,995,189

Rompetrol Rafinare SA:Sheri-term facility for working capital needs in amount of up o USD 28.5 million, maturity date - Dacember 31,

2018. The facility has besn fully used.

KMG International N.V, 548,257 17,261,257 228,759 67,172,182

Rompatrol Downstream SAL: Working capital {acility for USD 39.2 million, Maturity date is December 31, 2018 with the possibility {o be

axtended aulomatically with tha agreement of both parties,

Midia Marine Terminal 5,992 445 7.000,000 27,211,100 27,240,500

Rompetrol Rafinare SA: Shari-term facility for working capital needs in amount of RON 27.2 million, maturily date December 31, 2018. The

facility has been fully used.

Rompetrol Well Services 5.A 3,340,614 3,020,937 12,5999.989 11,755,876

Rompetrol Rafinare SA: Short-term facility for working capital needs in amount of up to RON 13 miiion granted to Rompetrol Ralinare SA,

maturily date - January 10, 2018, The loan Is securad with a promissory note covering the debl. The facility has been fully used.

Rompetrol Well Services 5.A 2,878,068 2,602,654 11,200,002 10,128,228

Rompatrol Rafinare SA: Shori-term facility for working capital needs in amount of up to RON 11.2 million granted to Rompetrol Ralinare

SA, maturity date - February 28, 2018. The loan is secured with a promissory note covering the dabt. The facility has been fully used.

Rompetrol Well Services 5.A

Rompetrol Rafinare SA: Shor-term fagility for working capital needs in amount of up o RON 7 million granted o Rompetrol Hafinare SA,

maturity date - January 14, 2018, The loan is secured with & promissory note covering the debt. The facility has been fully used. 1,798,792 1,826,659 6,599,099 6,330,143

Rompetrol Well Services 5.A

Aompetrol Aafinare SA: Short-tarm tacifity for working capital needs in amount of up to RON 3.1 miliion granted to Rompetrol Rafinara SA,

maturity date -January 3, 2018, The loan is secured with a promissary note covering the debt. The facility has been fully used. 786,608 720377 3,100,000 2,803,347

Agcrued interest 3,193,509 13,231,505 12,427,538 51,400,402
176,211,784 268,253,968 685,728,155 1,043,910,320

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romandan language lext is the official lext for submission,
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15.8HORT-TERM DEBT (continued)

Al the financial covenanis applicable were complied with as of December 31, 2017,

Ail loans are interest bearing and the effective weighted average interest rates per currency are the
following: EUR 3.3% (2016 2.98%), RON 4.30% (2016: 4.20%) and USD 3.20% (2016: 3.17%}.

The loans bearing guarantees are secured with pledges on property piant and equipment of USD 437.9
million (2016: USD 420.29}, inventories of USD 301.4 million {2016: USD 170.18) and frade receivables

of USD: 127.84 million (2016: USD 132.18 million).

The movement in loans is presented below:;

At 1 January

At 31 December

Ush 2017 Movement 2017

Long-term borrowings 183,406,898 (193,406,888} -
Short-term borrowings banks 20,644,165 203,287,057 228,831,222
Short term borrowings from sharehoiders 255,022,464 {82,004,188) 173,018,275
Interest Short term borrowings from shareholders 13,231,505 (10,037,998) 3,193,508
Interest Short-term borrowings banks 244,093 {112,083) 132,010
Total 482,549,125  (82,274,109) 400,275,016

At 1 January

At 31 December

RON 2017 Movement 2017

Long-ierm borrowings 752,642,944 (752,642,844} -
Short-term borrowings banks 80,336,768 781,091,581 871,428,348
Short term borrowings from shareholders 992,418,818 (319,119,301} 673,300,617
Interest Shori term borrowings from shareholders 51,490,402 {30,062,864) 12,427,538
Interest Short-term borrowings banks 949,888 (436,171} 513,717

Total

16, PROVISIONS

Provisions comprise the following;

1,877,839,920

{320,169,699) 1,557,670,221

2017 2016 2017 2016
usb Usp RON HON
Non-current provisions 85,001,042 76,428,343 330,781,551 287,424,788
Total Provisions 85,001,042 76,429,343 330,781,551 297,424,788
The movament in provisions is presented below:
At Arising Reclassification At 31
January Charged during the  between balance December
usp 2017 to equity year sheet items 2017
Frovision for retirement benefit 6,858,404 1,013,730 264,955 - 8,237,085
Provision for restructuring 13,486 - - - 13,488
Environmental provisions 65,585,731 - 8,788,744 - 72,384,475
Other provisions 3,861,722 - 3,508,734 {3,004,474) 4,365,982
Total 76,429,343 1,013,730 10,562,443 (3,004,474} 85,001,042

Engiish transiation is for information purposes only. Bomanian language taxt is the official text for submission.
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18.PROVISIONS (continued)

At Arising Reclassification At 31
January Charged during the between balance December

RON 2017 1o equity year sheet items 2017
Provision for setirement bensfit 27,078,628 3944832 1,081,116 - 32,054,671
Provision for restructuring 52,481 - - - 52,481
Environmental provisions 255,265,787 - 26,418,394 - 281,684,181
Other provisions 15,027,891 - 13,654,238 (11,681,811} 16,890,218
Total 297,424,788 3,944,932 41,103,742 {11,691,811) 330,781,551

The movement in other provisions from 2017 is related mainly fo the provision booked in refation to
Competition Council case in Romeetrol Downstream (USD 3 million) and also a provision that was
booked in relaiion to fiscal controls for the period 2011 - 2015 in relation to Bompetrol Rafinare in amount

of USD 3.5 million {see note 26).

At Arising Reclassification At 31
January  Charged duringthe between balance  December
uso 2016 to equity year sheet items 2016
Provision for retirement benetit 6,550,536 1,028,432 (621,564} - 5,958,404
Provision for restructuring 13,486 - - - 13,486
Environmental provisions 55,585,731 - - - 65,585,731
Other provisions 6,876,964 - - (3,015,242} 3,861,722
Total 70,036,717 1,028,432 {621,564} (3,015,242} 76,429,343
At Arising Reclassification At 31
January Charged during the between balance December
HON 2016 to equity year sheet items 20186
Pravision for ratirement benefit 25,491 411 4,006,035 (2,418,817) - 27,078,629
Provision for restructuring 52,481 - - . 52,481
Envirenmenial provisions 255,265,787 - - - 255,265,787
Other provisions 26,761,705 - - (11,733,814 15,027,891
Total 307,571,384 4,006,035 (2,418,817) (11,733,814} 297,424,788

An additional environmental provision for site restoration in amount of USD 6.8 million was bean
recognised in 2017 for Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A (Vega refinery) for the cleaning of the oil studge pools and
restoration of contaminated land. During 2012 an evaluation report was issued by the third-party expert
estimating the cosis associated to the technical methods o realize the remediation action. Based on
these preliminary cost estimates and the estimated completion over a S-year period, a discounted cash
flow cost estimate of USD 72.3 million has been provided by the Group. Currently, the prequalification

stage is in progress and considering the further bidding process and final contract negotiation, works are
expected o start during the second guarter of 2018,

Under the collective labor agreements that certain of the Group’s entities have in force it is provided that,
employses are entitled o specific retirement benefits that are payable on retirement, if the employees are
employed with Group entities at the date of their retirement. A corresponding provision has been
recognized based on: the specific benefits provided in the agreement; the number of employees working
within the relevant Group entities; and actuarial assumptions regarding moriality, stalf turnover etc. These
liabilities are recorded at their fair valuss as of the balance sheet date. The related service cost and
interest expense are charged to pericd profit and ioss, while all the actuarial gains and losses are fully
recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

The present value of this obfigation and the related current and past service cosis wers measuraed using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. The discount rates used ware 4.52% (2016 3.49%), with an expscied
rate of long-term salary increase 3.46% (2016: 2.23%).

English franstation is for information purpeses only. Bomanian language fext is the official texd for submission.
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16.PROVISIONS {continued)

Amounts recognized in profit or loss in respect of this obligation is as follows:

2017 2016 2017 2016

ush Usp RON RON
interest on obligation 73,638 82,664 266,562 321,687
Service cost 362,129 337,661 1,409,225 1,314,008
Benefits pald {due to restructuring/retirement) {170,802} (1,041,889) {6684676) (4,054511)
Total 264,965 (621,564} 1,031,111 (2,418,816)

The amounts included in the statement of financial position arising from the retirement benefit obligation
are as follows:

2017 2016 2017 2016
uUsh Ush RON RON
Opening balance 5,958,404 6,550,536 27,078,629 25491411
Amounts recognized in income staterment 264,965 (621,664) 1,031,111 (2,418,816)
Actuarial losses / (gains) recorded in the year (amounts
recognized in "Other comprehensive income”) 1,013,730 1,029,432 3,844,931 4,006,034
Closing balance 8,237,028 6,958,404 32,054,671 27,078,629

The charge {or the vear is included in the salaries expenses in the income statement for 2017,

It is estimatad that there are no significant liabilities relating to the provisions that will arise in the twelve

months to 31 December 2018.

17.REVENUES

Gross revenues from petroleum products
production

Gross revenues from petroleum products
trading

Hevenues from petrochemicals production
Hevenues from petrochemicals trading
Revenues from other merchandise sales
Hevenues from utilities sold

Revenues from transportation fees
Revenues from rents and other services
Gross Revenues

Less sales taxes
l.ess commercial discounts
Total

2017 2016 2017 2016

Usp Ush HON RON
3,714,045,112  3,214,137,201  14,453,206,568 12,507,814,918
158,696,220 87,966,467 617,566,340 381,236,508
189,911,561 178,463,811 738,040,840 698,344,895
1,414,838 817,883 5,506,231 3,182,831
72,844,849 60,856,757 283,475,730 236,045,770
1,877,216 1,785,448 7,305,186 6,948,071
1,820,568 1,412,917 7,084,740 5,498,367
10,477,873 10,218,792 40,774,643 39,766,429
4,151,088,337 3,566,448,386 16,153,960,263 13,878,837,787

(947,071,453)
(111,009,556

{1,028,822,055)

(96,117,303}

(3,685,528,559)
(431,993,687}

{4,007,552,527}
(374,040,485}

3,093,007,328

2,440,510,028

12,036,438,017  §,497,244,775

Total Revenues increased mainly due to the volatility of international prices for petroleum products and by
the increase in the volume of products sold compared o last year. The increased price of crude oil
resuited in increased prices of refined producis and corresponding revenues.

Engtish translation is for infonnation purpeses only. Bomanian language text is the official text lor submission,
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18.CO8T OF SALES

2017 2016 2017 2016
Lsn Ush RON RON
Crude oil and other raw matetials 2,421,981.270 1,852,733,641  9,425,140,113 7,209,812,578
Consumables and other materials 13,400,239 12,586,035 52,147,030 48 978,655
Utilities 68,681,881 65,359,418 267,275,540 254,346,175
Staff cosis 25,456,218 24.192,380 93,062,872 94,144,686
Transporiation 154,559 111,208 601,466 432,766
Maintenance and repairs 22,075,229 20,663,840 B5,905,754 80,413,333
Insyrance 1,421,363 1,661,830 5,531,234 6,487,011
Environmental expenses 237,843 230,111 925,955 885,477
Other expenses 10,132,264 14,288,411 39,429,705 55 603,351
Cash production cost 2,563,540,966 1,991,826,784 9,976,019,668 7,751,193,932
Depreciation and amorlization 64,456,583 66,929,330 250,832,832 260,455 488
Production costs 2,627,997 559 2 058,756,114 10,226,852,501 8,011,649,420
Flus: Change in inventaries (40,397,753} 8,516,791 (157,207,856} 33,143,082
Less: Own production of property, plant & equipment (1,900,801} {1,422,6872} {7,386,867) (5,536,328)
Cost of petroleumn products irading 120,637,433 77,943,495 504,484,071 303,317,111
Cost of petrochemicals trading 1,683,075 887,738 6,199,451 3,454,632
Cost of merchandise sold 57,202,472 48,037,332 222,603,420 186,837,277
Cost of utilities resold 853,451 854,113 3,710,355 3,323,781
Realized (gains)/losses an derivatives 11,545,320 (2,179,570} 44,928,613 {8,481,797)

Total

2,786,630,756 2,191,383,341 10,844,173,588 8,527,807,188

19.SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, INCLUDING LOGISTIC COSTS

Siaft costs

Utilities

Transporiation

Professionat and consulting fees
Royalties and rents
Consumables

Marketing

Taxes

Communications

insurance

{T related expenditures
Environmental expenses
Maintenance and repairs
Other expenses

Costs before depreciation

Depreciation and amostization
Tatal

2017 2016 2017 2018

usb usb HON RON
19,348,644 19,163,842 75295250 74,576,091
4,171,180 4,370,437 16,232,147 17,007,556
47,971,631 41,709,788 186,681,602 162,313,640
37,034,860 23,839,292 144,121,168 82,770,605
5,743,807 5,580,172 22352025 21,715,239
296,505 578,712 1,153,848 2,252,058
4,541,636 4,281,067 17673776 16,658,772
2,371,283 3,855,640  B,227.887 15,004,258
834,282 813,677 3,246,647 3,166,424
1,673,678  1.038,74% 4,178,218 4,042,292
9,302,452 8,422,902 36,227,888 32,777,723
2,283,816 2,148,353  8,887470C 8,360,316
9,437,103 8,767,634 35,724,486 34,110,248
14,860,131 10,256,789 57828200 39,914,294
158,278,068 134,827,063 619,830,603 524,679,516
31.605401 28,848,694 122982418 112,264,603
190,883,469 163,675,757 742,823,021 536,944,209

In “Professional and consulting fees” line are booked expenses for consuliancy and management
services from the speacialized management companies of the group, namely KMG Hompetrol SRL
{(KMGR) and KMG International NV (KMGH. Variations of 2017 vs. 2016 are the result of adjustments to
services rendered 2017 by KMGR and KMGI, borne by the company through the agreed contractual
mechanism - increase in ceriain cost categories and wages and performance bonuses {due fo

improvement in activity}.

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text s the official text for submission.
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20.0THER OPERATING INCOME/ (EXPENSES), NET

017 2016 2017 2016

ush sb RO RON
Net book value of non-current assets disposals (74,421} {85,610} {289,609) (255,321}
Proceeds an disposals of non-current assets 451,011 262,411 1,755,108 1,021,172
Raverse for impairment of tangible asseis, net (518,779) {351,877} (2,018,828) (1,369,329)
Provision for receivables, net 94,838 701,652 366,082 2,730,479
Provision for inventories and write-off, net (1,279,973) 2,788,003 14,881,015} 10,853,405
Receivables write-off {989,803} - (3,851,818} -
Tangible and intangible assets write-off (518,779) {1,847.972) (2,018,828) (8,413,083}
Gain/(loss) from revaluation of non-current assets (44,981,492) - {175,045,476) -
nventories write-off {93,448) {111,172} (383,847} {432,626}
Other provisions, net (10,207,478} - {40,072,638) -
Cther, net 255 OB5 5,440,533 996,086 21,171,834
Total (57,952,409} 7,016,968 (225,521,800) 27,306,531

The movement in provisions is presented in Notes 5, 8 and 9.

In 2017, “Other provisions” include an amount of USD 3.5 million that was booked in relation 1o fiscal
cantrols for the period 2011 - 2015 in relation to Rompetrol Rafinare and USD 6.8 million in respect of

environmental provision for Vega refinery.

Also in 2017, following the change in accounting policies for non - current assets (see notes Notas 2, and
5) a loss of USD 44.9 million resulted from buildings category revaluation.

21, FINANCIAL COST, FINANCE INCOME AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

2017 2016 2017 2016
usp uUspb ROM RON
Finance cosi
Late payment interest {89,212} {6,753) {388,083) (26,279}
Interest expense (23,136,264} (20,394,342) (90,034,770) (79,364,582}
interest expense shareholders (8,988,087} (8,359,179 {34,877,179) (36,421,245)
Unwinding of discournt on hybrid {1,756,732} - (6,836,323} -
Commission and other bank charges (19,247,232) (14,835,757} (74,900,803} (57,733,348}
Collection discounts expenses - 104 - 404
{53,227,537) (44,595,827} (207,134,958} (173,545,050)
Finance income
interest incoms 20,041,076 11,480,874 77,989,847 44,677,821
Other financial income 486,529 386,785 1,893,328 1,505,174
20,527,605 11,867,659 79,BB3,175 46,182,895
Finance incomef{cost) net (32,699,932} (32,728,268} (127,251,783} (127,362,085}
Unrealized net foreign exchange (losses)/gains {303,766} 1,020,605 {3,517,004) 3,971,684
Realized net {oreign exchange {losses)/gains 318,217 (6,166,624} 1,242,233 (23,857.417)
Foreign exchange gain/{ioss}, net (584,549)  (5,146,019) (2,274,771} (20,025,733)
Total {33,284,481) (37,874,287) (129,526,554) (147,387,788)

English transtation is for information purposes only. Fomanian language text is the official text for submission.
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22.INCOME TAX

a) The current income tax rate in 2017 was 16%, the same as in 2016.

2017 2016 2017 2016
ush Usp RON RON
Tax expense comprises:
Current {ax expense 786,310 918,785 3,059,925 3,575,491
Deferred tax credit relating fo the origination and
reversal of temporary differences 2,764,446 (3,480,551) 10,757,842 (13,544,585)
Total tax expensef(income) 3,550,756 {2,561,756) 13,817,767 (9,969,074)

As of December 31, 2017, the Group had the following fotal unused fiscal losses:

Carried forward Carry forward
fiscal losses  Recognised fiscal logses Detferred
2017 Deferred Tax 2016 Tax Asset
Entity USD million Asset 2017 USD million 2016

Rompetrol Rafinare SA 494.31 471.5 573.91 432.5
Rompetrof Petrochemicals SRL 33.53 - 30.24 -
Rompetrol Downstream SRL - - 18.26 21.86
Rompetrol Logistics SRL 6.04 - 5.69 -
Rom Ol 8A 3.32 - 5.38 -
As at December 31 2017 537.20 471.50 634.48 454.4

Deferred tax assets for losses carried forward were recognized because, following completion of its
modernization program, the Group has started to be profitable and reasonabie forecasts indicate
profitability will continue in the following years. The deferred tax asset was computed based on the
schedule of losses expiry (presented below) and the Group’s forecasted taxable profits. The taxable
profits were derived from the Company's forecast operating profits, which were also used for impairment
testing of PPE (see note 6), and adjusted fo reach taxable resuit {e.g. adjusting for fiscal depreciation vs.
accounting depreciation and average ievel of non-deductible expenses).

As at 31 December 2017, deferred tax asset was recognized for USD 471 million (2016:; USD 454 mitlion)
of the losses carried forward, based on the future fiscal profits estimated to be registered, in Rompetrol
Rafinare. No deferred tax assel has been recognized for USD 66 million (2016: USD 180 million) in
relation to the tax losses for the above entities, based an the assessmeant made.

in 2017, Rompeirol Rafinare recorded fiscal profit, which partially offset the fiscal loss from years 2010
and 2011, Also, in 2017 the cumudative fiscal loss was diminished by USD 144 million RON, atter the
fiscal control.

in 2017, Downstream fully utitized the cumuiative fiscal loss.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official texd for submission.
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22 INCOME TAX (continued)
A breakdown of tax losses by Group endity and by year of expiry are:

Taxable ioss Taxableloss Tax loss

Entity Amount USD  Amount RON
million millicn Expires in
Rompetrol Rafinare SA
2011 31.78 123.66 2018
2012 81.48 317.08 2019
2013 98.98 385.18 2020
2014 182.54 710.35 2021
2015 96.39 37510 2022
2018 3.14 12.20 2023
434.31 1,823.58
Fompetrol Petrochemicals SHL
2011 4.66 18.13 2018
2012 16.18 £62.96 2018
2013 - - 2020
2014 11.81 45.96 2021
2015 0.47 1.83 2022
20186 0.32 1.25 2023
2017 0.089 0.35 2024
33.53 130.48
Fom Gil 5A
2011 0.54 2.10 2018
2012 1.07 4.186 2019
2013 0.95 a.70 2020
2014 0.76 2.96 2024
3.32 12.92
Rompezirol Logistics SRL
2011 1.54 5.99 2018
2012 2.26 8.79 2019
2013 0.66 2.57 2020
2014 0.61 2.37 2021
2015 0.30 1.17 2022
2016 0.32 1.25 2023
2017 0.34 1.32 2024
6.04 23.46
537.20 2,080.5

The Romanian Govemment has a number of agencies that are authorized to conduct audits (controls) of
Romanian companies as well as forgign companies doing business in Romania. These controls are
similar in nature to tax audits performed by tax authorities in many countries, but may extend not only to
tax maiters but to other legal and regulatory matters in which the applicable agency may be interested.

Management believes that it has adequately provided for tax liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.

b) The deferred tax assets and liabilities details are disclosed in Note 13.

Engiish translation is for information purposes enly. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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22 INCOME TAX (continued)

¢} The prima facie tax charge to the statements of income calcuiated based on regulatory
accounis is reconciied to the profit tax expense calculated based on tax rules as follows,

taiting into account temporary differences and non-deductible items:

Profit before tax
of which
Companies which recorded profit
Companies which recorded loss
Tax at prevailing tax rate {16%)
Effect of losses carried forward
Effect of statutory items non deductible / {not
taxable) for tax purposes
Non-deductible expenses
Mot - taxable income
income tax expense recognised in profit
or ioss

23.0PERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

a} Business Segmenis

2017 2016 2017 2616

usp usD RON RON
24,256,213 54,583,611 094,383,054 212412121
46,350,320 58,827,175 180,372,270 229,315,117
(22,094,107} (4,343,568} (85,979,217) (16,902,985}
7,416,052 9,428,348 28,859,566 36,690,416
(15,205,584) (8,038,216) (59,522,765) (31,280,718}
8,665,842 {471,337) 3,3723,124 (1,834,207}
9,749,166 1,873,211 37,938,878 6,511,302
(1,083,324} (2,144,548} (4,215,755)  (8,345,509]
786,310 918,795 3,059,825 3,575,481

For management purposes the Group is currently organized in 3 segments — refining, petrochemicals and
marketing. Refining comprises Petromidia and Vega refineries, Petrochemicals comprises petrochemical
division of Rompetrol Rafinare SA and Rompetrol Petrochemicals operations and Marketing comprises
the operations of Rompetrol Downstream, Rom Oil, Rompetrol Logistics, and Rompetrol Gas.

For the income statement, management analysis is made separately for the 3 segments: Refining,
Petrochemicals and Marketing. The balance sheet is analyzed by management at cumulated level for
Refining and Petrochemicals segments. As a result, the balance sheet information for segments Refining

and Petrochemicals are presented together.

English transtation is for information purposes only. Romanian language 1oxt is the official text for submission.
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23. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

2017 Income Statement information

usn

Met ravenuss "extsrnat customers”

Net revenuas ‘Intar segment”

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other operating incoma/{expenses), nat
Operating margin (EBIT)

Financtal expenses, net

Net foreign exchange result
Profitf{ioss) before income tax
income tax

Net Profit/{l.oss)

Depraciation and amortisation

RON

Net revenues “extemnal customers”

Nat revenuss "Inter segment”

{ost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administralive axpenses
Other operating income/(expenses), nst
Operating margin {(EBIT)

Financial expenses, nat

Net forelgn exchange result
Profit/(loss) before income tax
incomae ax

Met Profiv{loss)

Depraciation and amorlisation

Amounts not allocated between

Consolidation

Aefining Petrachemicals Befining & Petrochemicals segmentis Marketing adjustments  Consolidated
1,511,573,624 191,326,498 - 1,390,107.306 - 3,093,007.328
1,076,589,662 - - 6,688 548 {1,083,258,205) -

{2,429,677.743) {203,615,366) - {1,257 077,649)  1,103,740,002 (2,786,630,755)

158,465,443 {12,288,868} - 139,718,200 20,481,797 306,376,672

{58,077,8385) (B,020,852) - {104,121,069) {20,663,712)  {190,883,469)

{41,638,083) {55,520} - {14,503,171) {1,755 635) {57,052,409)

58,749,524 (20,365,240) - 21,083,960 (1,837,550} 57 540,684
- - {28,975,491} {3,076,932) {847,508} {32.685,832)
- - (13,611,852} 13,027,403 - {584 549}
58,749,524 {20,365,240) {42,587 ,443) 31,044,431 {2,685,058) 24,256,213
- - - {3, 550,756} - {3,B50,756)
58,749,524 (241,365,240} (42,587,443} 27,483,675 {2,685,0549) 20,705,487
53,828,747 15,460,788 B 18,291,923 {1,119,464) 95,061,654
Amounts not allocated
between Befining & Consolidation
Refining Feilrochemicals Petrochemicals segmenis Marketing adjustments Consolidated

5,882,288,368

744,547,067

5,409,602,581

¢

12,036,438,017

4,189,470,840 - - 26028465  (4,215,499,305} .
{8.455,090,937) (762.368 197} - {4,891 917.671) 4,295 204,217 {10,844 173 588}
616,668,272 (47,822,130} - 543,713,375 79,704,912 1,192,264,428
{226,009,899) 31,213,146 - {405,187,140) (80,412,836} (742,823,021}
{162,034 600} {216,058) - (56,439,090 16,832,054} {225,521 800}
228,623,773 (79,251,332} - 82,087 145 {7,539,978) 223,919,608

- - {112,758,123) {11,973,881) (2,519,779} (127,251,783}

- - {62.870,912) 50,696,141 - (2,274,771

3228 6823.773 (79,251,332} {165,729,035) 120,809,408 {10,059,757) 94,393,054

- - - {13,817,787) - (13,817,787}

#28,623,773 {79,251,334) {165,728,035) 106,981,838 {10,088,757) 80,575,287
248,389,569 58,609,057 - 71,183,018 {4,358,393} 373,825,251

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian fanguagde text is the officlal text for submission.
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23. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {(continued)

2017 Statement of financial position information

uso

Total non current assets
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Total equity

Total non-current liabilities
Total current Habilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital expenditure

RON

Total non current asseis
Total current assais

TOTAL ASSETS

Total equity

Total non-curreni liabilities
Total current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital expenditure

Refining &

Petrochemicals Marketing

Consolidation

adjustmenis Consolidated

1,735,808,313 243,523,281
580,591,620 382,853,632

(595,808,002} 1,383,522,592
(172,018,127} 791,425,525

2,316,499,333 626,376,913

(767,928,129} 2,174,948 117

1,075,739,796 232,002,408
92,454,808 4,864,478
1,148,304,628 385,510,027

(603,396,232) 704,345,972
6,292,395 103,611,782
{170,824,292) 1,366,990,363

2,316,488,333 626,376,913

(767,928,129} 2,174,948,117

80,156,694 25,293,794

RHefining &

Petrochemicals

Marketing

(90,275)

Consolidation
adjustments

85,360,213

Consolidated

6,755,287,202
2,258,360 953

947,670,848
1,489,874,808

(2,318,879,883)
{668,412,432)

5,383,5978,168
3,078,832,430

9,014,657,155

2,437,545,758

{2,988,392,315)

8,463,810,598

4,186,241,417
358,788,279
4,468.627,459

502,837,371
18,830,116
1,615,778,271

(2,348,116,434)
24,486,850
(664,762,731)

2,740,062,354
403,205,245
5,319,642,859

9,014,657,1565

2,437,545,758

(2,988,392,315)

8,463,810,598

234,088,775

98,430,799

(351,305)

332,179,269

English transiation is for information purposes only, Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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23. COPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

2016 Income Statement information

usp

Nat rovenuss "extemal customers”

Nat revenues “Inter segment”

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other operating income/{expenses), nat
Operating margin (EBIT)

Financial expenses, nst

Net foreign exchangs result
Profit/{loss) before income tax
Inpome fax

Net Profit(loss)

Depraciation and amortisation

RON

hNet ravenues "extemal cusiomers”

Net revenuss "inter segment”

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Seling, general and administrative expenses
Other operating income/{expenses), net
Operating margin {(EBIT)

Financial expenses, net

Met foreign exchange rasul{
Profit/{loss) before income tax
income ax

Mot Profit/{Loss)

Oepraciation and amortisation

Amounts not allocated belween

Consolidation

Refining Petrochemicals Refining & Petrochemicals segments Markeling adjustments  Consolidated
1,185,516,963 180,271,804 - 1,084,721,261 - 2,440,530,028
780,712,748 - - 6,847,010 {787,558,758) -
{1,876,288,435) (181,447 .513) - (935,802,041 806,144,648 (2,191,393 341}
99,941,273 {1,175,709) - 131,786,230 18,584,893 249,116,687
(45,304, 794) {7,698,183) - {93,735,884)  {16,836,788) (183.675.757)
10,476,092 8,087 - {1,391,693) [2,075,518) 7.016,968
65,112,571 (8,8858,805) - 35,638,553 {427,421) 92 457,898

- - (27,994.409)  [4,678,648) (825211} (32,728,268

- - 1,025,166 (6,171,185} - (5,146,019

65,112,571 {8,865,805) {26,198,243) 25,788,720 (1,252,6832) 54,583,611

- - 4,231,193 {1,668 437) - 2.561,756

65,112,571 {8,865,805) {21,868,050} 24,119,283 {1,252 632} 57,145,367
64,636,241 15,197,899 - 17,410,254 {1,466,370) 95,778,024

Amounts not atiocated betwean Consolidation

Refining Petrochemicals  Refining & Petrochemicals segments Marketing adjustments  Consolidatad

4,652,354,263 701,527,725 - 4,143,362,787 - B,497.244,775
3,038,143,647 i - 26,645,138 (3,064,788,787)

{7,301,576,445) {706,102,987) - {3,857,230 643} 3,137,111,897 (8,527 807 188}
388,921,466 {4,575,272) - 512,768,283 72,323,110 963,437,587
{176,303,606) (20, 857,478) - (364,773,582)  (65,909,542)  (636,944,209)
40,767,712 31.471 - {5415, 773} {B 076,870} 27,308,531
253,385,572 {34,501,280} - 142,578 928 {1,663,2311) 359,758,809
- - {105,843,787) {1B,208,959) {3,211,309)  (127,382,055)
- . 3089433  {24.015,166) - {20,025733)

253,385,572 {34,501,280} {101.954,354) 100,356,803 (4,874,620} 212,412,121
- - 16,465,688 (6,498,614 - 9,969 074
253 385,872 {(34,501,280) {85 488,668) £3,860,188 {4,874,620) 222,381,185
251,531,832 59,142,624 - 67,782,003 {5,708,378) 372,720,181

English transtation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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23. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued}

In total net revenues are included customers that own more than 10% of total sales, their value
amounting USD 824 million in 2017 and USD 748 million in 2016.

2016 Staiement of financial position information

usi

Total non cusrent assels
Total current asseis

TOTAL ASSETS

Total equity

Total non-current liabilities
Total current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital expenditure

RON

Total non curreni assets
Total curreni asseis

TOTAL ASSETS

Total eguity

Total non-current liabilities
Total current Habilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUHTY
Capital expenditure

Refining & Consolidation
Petrochemicals Marketing  adjustments Consclidated
1,657,832,014 232,348,038 (596,927,621) 1,203,252,431
306,614,311 250,542,299  (23,571,819) 533,484,691
1,864,346,325 482,800,337 (620,499,540} 1,826,737,122
892,127,164 186,778,797 {B600,282,699) 478,624,262
132,846,441 132,115,687 5,013,700 270,075,828
939,272,720 163,994,853  (25,230,541) 1,078,037,032
1,064,346,325 482,890,337 (620,499,540) 1,826,737.,122
37,037,111 24 560,668 {155,105} 61,442,674

Refining & Consolidation
Petrochemicals  Marketing adjustments Consolidated
6,451,453,281 904,182,380 (2,322,943,832}) 5,032,691,839
1,192,800,441 974,985,356 (91,730,121) 2,076,055,676
7,644,253 722 1,878,167.746 {2,414,673,953) 7,108,747,515
3,471,712,859 726,853,580 (2,336,000,122) 1,862,566,317
517,361,075 514,128,196 19,510,814 1,051,000,085
3,655,178,788 638,185,970 (98,184,645) 4,195,181,113

7,644,253,722

1,879,167,746

(2,414,673,953)

7,108,747,515

144,129,820

895,577,836

e inter - segment revenues are eliminated or consolidation.

» TTransfer pricing between operating segments is determined based on market rules agreed between
the segments. These transfer prices iake into account the latest Crude/Refined products prices on
markets adjusted by various margins / discounts taking into account quantity, quality, payment

ferms, transportaiion costs ete.

{603,580)

239,104,167

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is fhe official text for submission.
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23.0PERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued}
b} Geographical segments

All the Grdup*s production facilities are located in Romania. The following table provides an analysis of
the Group's net revenues by geographical market:

2017 2016 2017 2016
usp usb RON RON

Romania 1,860,214,911 1,423,888,058 7,235,026,326 5,541,060,382
Expori 1,232,792,417 1,016,621,969 4,797,411,691 3,956,184,393
out of which

Petroleum products 1,132,266,129 808,684,651 4,406,213,641 3,540,076,735
Petrochemical products 100,526,288 106,927,318 291,198,050 416,107,658
Totai 3,093,007,328 2,440,510,028 12,036,438,017 9,497,244,775

24, RELATED PARTIES

The ultimate parent of the Group is the “National Welfare Fund Samruk Kazyna” JSC, an entity with its
headguariers in Kazakhstan, fully owned by State of Kazakhstan. The related parties and the nature of

relationship is presented below:

Name of reiated party

Mature of relationship

KMG international NV,

Byron Shipping Lid.

Byron Shipping SRL

Gicbal Security Systems S.A.

KazMunayGas Engineering B.V.

KazMunayGas Trading AG

KMG Rompetrel S.A.L

KMG Rompeirol Services Center (former Rompetrol Exploration and
Production 8.8.L}

Midia Marine Terminal S.R.L.

Palplast 5.A,

KazMunayGas ~Engineering LLF (former Hominserv Kazahstan LTD}
Rominservy 8.4,

Rominserv Valves laifo SHL

Rompsatrol Albania Wholesale Sh.A.

Fompatrel Bulgaria J5C

Rompetrol Ensrgy S.A.

Rompetrel Financial Group S.H.L.

Rompetrol Georgla LLC

Rompetrol Maldova SA

Qiffield Exploration Business Soiutions S A, (former Rompetrol S.A)
Rompetrol Ukraine LLC

Rompefrol Well Services 5.A.

TRG Petrol Ticarst Anonim Sirketi

Dyneff SA

Uzina Termoslectrica Midia 5.4,

Kazmotransiao

Tengizchevroll LLP

Majority Shareholder

Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG Intesnational Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG [nternational Group
Company cwned by KMG internationat Group

Company cwned by KMG iInlernational Group
Company owned by KMG Intermational Group
Company owned by KMG internationa! Group
Company cwned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG international Group
Company owned by KMG internaticnal Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Company owned by KMG Intemational Group
Company owned by KMG International Group
Joint Venture owned by KMG Infemational Group
Company cwned by KMG intemationat Group
Company ewned by KMG intemational Group
Assoclate of KMG International Group
Associate of KMG Intemational Group
Company affifated to KMG International Group
Company affiiated to KMG International Group

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and are
undertaken on a basis that considers prevailing markst terms and conditions as applicabls to the nature
of goods and services provided or received. Balances at the year-end are unsecured (except for some

related parties loans), interest free {except for shareholders loans) and seftlement occurs in cash. For the

year ended December 31, 2017, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables refating to
amounis owed by related parties (2016: nil}. This assessment is underiaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related parly operates.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian languags text is the official text for submission.
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24, RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Name of related party

KazMunayGas Trading AG
Rominserv A,

KMG international NV,

KMG Rompetrol 5.RL

KMG Fompelrol SRL - cash pocling
Qiifield Exploration Business Sclutions S.A.
Rompetrol Well Services S.A.

KNG Rompetrol Services Center
Paiplast 5.4,

Rompetrol Buigaria JSC

Rompetrol Moldava SA
KazMunay(Gas Engineering B.Y.
Rompetrol Energy 8.A.

Byren Shipping 5RL

Fompetrol Albania Whelesale Sh.A.
Widia Maring Terminal S.R.L.
Rominsery Valvas laifo SRL
Rominserv Kazalkhstan LTD
Rompetrol Ukraine LLC

Uzina Termoeselectrica Midia S.A.
Global Security Systems 5.A.
Tengizchevroil LLP

TRG Petrol Ticaret Ancnim Sirketi
Total

Name of relaied party

KazMunayGas Trading AG

Rominserv 5.4,

KMG internaticnal N.V.

KMG International N.V.- Short term debt - principal

KMG interational N.V.- Short term debt - interest

KMGE Rompetrol S.H.L

KMG Rompetrol SRL - cash pooling

Qilfield Exploration Business Solutions 5.A.

Rompetrol Well Services S.A.

Rompetrol Well Services S.A. - Shori term debt - principal
Rompetrel Well Services S.A. - Short term debtl - interest
KMG Rompstrct Services Centar

Rompetrol Bulgaria J5C

Rompeirol Moldova SA

Rompeirol Financial Group SHL - Shor term debt - principal
Rompetrol Financial Group SAL - Short term debt - interast
Byron Shipping Lid.

Hompetrol Energy S.A.

Byron Shipping SRL

kg Marine Terminal S R.L.

Midia Marine Terminat S.R.L.- Short term debt - principal
WMidia Marine Terminal S.R.L. - Short lerm debt - interest
Rominserv Valves fgifo SRL

tizina Termoelecirica Midia 5.A.

Hompetrol Georgia LLC

Global Security Systems S.A,

TRG Petrot Ticaret Anonim Sirked

Total

Feceivables and other assets

31-Dec-17  3-Dec-16  31-Deec-17  31-Dec-16
ush ush RON BON

4,711,760 4,628,871 18,335,581 18,013,251
1,151,215 4,935,209 4,479,953 18,205,716
861,858 815,280 3,383,920 2,408,850
2,479,855 33,087,219 8,650,745 128,681,083
112,787,295 1,058,854 438,850,673 4,120,819
5,089,414 5,551,511 12805455 21,603,705
285,401 464,789 1,110,638 1,808,765
18,150 78,854 70,631 305,663
1,373,225 1,241,923 5,343,808 4,832,643
3,167,265 2,222,376 12325412 B.G48,376
6,303 11,175 24,528 43,488
3,573 3,573 13,904 13,804
17 568 2,401 2,171
2,458 1,582 8,565 6,156
13,068 11,532 50,858 44,877
279,060 327,356 1,085,862 1,273,806
22,655 6,600 87,773 26,684
168,167 168,167 654,422 654,422
8,254 7,802 32,120 30,361
2,175,925 1,933,289 8,467,612 7,523,384
182,644 153,980 710,789 599,252
562,412 13,347 2,188,626 51,840
2,703,679 - 10,521,367 -
138,064,194 56,507,737 526,755,443 219,899,856

Payables, lcans and other Habilities

31-Dec-17 _31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
usp uso RON FON

550,684,435 440,018,417 2,143,027,394 1,712,335,638
38,048,898 28,245,425 148,067,260 106,832,637
19,814,422 2,068,828 77,107,823 8,051,237
127,660,155 213,328,160 456,789,483  B30,166,535
574,327 10,381,033 2,234,894 40,397,790
17,648,134 5,174,924 48,668,830 20,138,217
115,317,068 BB.368834 448,756,331 343,881,598
238,318 193,694 927 414 753,760
118,864 27,816 462,558 108,248
8,814,072 7,870,635 34,269,961 31,017,726
- 22,581 . B7.874
1.075,850 1,080,058 4,186,670 4,203,046
108,892 603 424,142 2,347
3,656,876 818,638 14,231,122 3,185,730
289,551,55¢ 26,723,700 114,889,857  1G3,585.278
1,346,494 1,884,025 5,239,881 7,331,683
2,321 2,045 8,032 7,958
. 15 - 58
- 1,108 - 4,312
36,568,586 27.513,487 142,206,681 107,088,735
6,992,436 7.000,000 27,211,065 27,240,500
1,258,156 528,338 4,846,114 3,616,518
16,378 27,443 £3,739 106,784
2896375 2,886,375 11,271,243 11,271,243
17 - 66 .
790,637 514,462 3,076,764 2,002,029
145 - 564 -
863,191,608 865,197,839 3,74B,2680,139 3,366,917,391

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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24.RELATED PARTIES (continued)

During 2017 and 2016, Rompetrol Rafinare Group entered info the following transactions with related

parties:
Sales and ofher revenues
31-Dec-17 31-Dee-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Name of related party usn usp ROMN RON
KazMunayGas Trading AG 893,975,771 7ABB70,396 3478806713 2,914,818,296
Fominsery 5.4, B23,328 B24,97% 3,203,881 3,210,408
KMG Rompetrol S.H.L 149,019 138,944 579,807 544 592
Rompetrol 5.4, 4,659 4,800 18,130 18,679
Rompetrol Well Services S.A. 782,747 639,320 2,968,230 2,488,188
Palplast 5.4, 13,302 17,570 51,765 68,374
Rompetrol Bulgaria J5C 37,754,492 31,115,170 146,921,606 121,084,684
Rompetrol Moldova SA 183,851,238 120,124,270 715,457,083 487 463,587
KMG Rompetrol Services Centar 133,623 89,656 519,994 348,856
Midia Marine Terminal 5.R.4L. 442,354 377,741% 1,721,421 1,469,979
Byron Navodari 22,084 22,211 85,940 86,434
Rominserv Valves laifc SRL 9,885 10,207 38,506 38,721
Uzina Termoelactrica Midia S.A. 15,768,979 14,113,103 61,364,982 54,921,140
Giobal Security Systems S.A. 98,982 182,399 389,118 709,806
TRG Peafrol Ticarst Anonim Sirketi 25,681,564 - 98,839,767 -
1,159,493,037 916,631,838 4,412,227 387 3,567,072,790
Purchases and other costs
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 3t-Dee-17 31-Dec-16
Mame of related party Nature of transaction Uusn UsD AON RON
Purchase of crude oit and
KazMunayGas Trading AG other raw materials 2,260,170,506 1,753,804,923 8,795.453,524 6,824,831,858
Acguisition and maintenance
Rominsery S.A. of fixed assels 89,882,478 57,089,331 350,166,813 225,665,482
KMG international N.V. Management services 13,535,368 9,473,808 52,672,885 36,867,324
KMG Rompetrol 5.R.L Management services 34,858,120 24,107,553 136,043,415 93,814,542
Rompelrol S.A. Managemient services 26,284 41,233 102,323 160,458
Rompetrol Financial Group S.R.L. Environmental services 1,184,463 1,063,727 4,848,253 4,138 494
Rompaetrol Well Services S.A, interest on oan 356,125 29,678 1,385,860 115,484
KMG Hompetrol Services Center  Shared services 6,063,242 2,676,234 23,585,106 10,414,565
Midia Maring Terminal S.R.L. Handling services/Transit 19,148,253 16,041 442 74,515,427 74,088,772
Byron Shipping SRL Shipping services . 418 - 1,627
FRominserv Valves taifo SAL Valves 85,006 34,818 368,716 368,984
Uzina Termoelectrica Midia 8.A,  Acquisition of utifities 27.8958,761 21.818,836 108,793,735 84,807,222
Security and protection
Global Sscurity Systems S.A sarvices 3,574,568 3,142,226 13,910,431 12,227,872
Tengizchevroll LLP Liquefled Petroleum Gas 5,015,983 5,714,885 14,519 688 22,239,451
2,462,078,167 1,898,988,914 9,581,177,166 7,385,954,275

The nature of sale transactions consists in sale of petroleum products. Sales to related pariies include

sales laxes.

The Ministry of Public Finance of Bomania {"MFPR"} held 44.6959% of the share in Rompetro! Hafinare
SA from September 2010 until July 2012, Starting July 2012, through a Government Ordinance, the
shareholder became Ministry of Economy Trade and Business Environment (“MECMA”} until May 2013,
whan following MECMA reorganization the new holder bacame Ministry of Economy (*"ME"). Later it was
renamed the Ministry of Energy, Small and Medium Enterprises and Business Environment, Al the
momert it is named the Ministry of Energy.

As a resuit MFPR, MECMA, ME and Other Authorities are considered o be a related party of the Group.
No entities in the Group have had any transactions during the pericd since MPFR, MECMA and ME

became a related party or had balances as of period end, other than those arising from Romanian fiscal
and legislative requirements, with MFPR, MECMA, ME and Gther Authorities in Bomania.

The amount of remuneration for key management personnel for 2017 was of USD 0.75 million (2016:
USD 0.69 million), representing short term benefits and bonuses.

English transiation is for information purposes only. Romarnian language text is the official text for submission.
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25 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earmnings per share attributable {o the ordinary equity holders of the parent is
based on the following data:

2017 2016 2017 2016
Ush Ush RON RON

Earnings

Profit for the year attributable io ordinary equity

holders of the parent entity 19,552,126 56,070,210 76,087,098 218,197,223
Number of shares

Weighted average number of shares {or the

purpose of basic eamings per share (see Note

11} 44,109,205,726 44,109,205,726 44,109,205,726 44,109,205,726
Earnings per share {US canls/sharg)

Basis 0.044 0.127 0.171 0.494

26.CONTINGENCIES

a) Relaied to the Parent's oil products technolegical lending practice to other refineries, D.G.F.P
Constanta claimed unrecorded income, excise, VAT and related penalties totaling RON 47.7 million (USD
11.08 miliion) to be paid by the Parent based an an inspection carried out in 2003. A suspension of the
tax audit has been issued by the fiscal authorities (D.G.5.C. — AIN.A.F.). Also, the seltlement of the
administrailve appeal has been suspended untll the final sentence regarding the related criminal case, as
the fiscal authority believes that this matter is now to be dealt as part of the criminal investigation started
by the General Prosecuior Office {see first case in note 27}. The management is confident that the Parent
is ahle to defend itself and the likefihood of a negative outcome is considerad remote.

b) In 2001, the Parent processed crude oil for another refinery for which it originally raised excise
invoices, However due o the law prevailing at the time, such invoices raised by the Parent were
chalienged in front of the cour by the respective refinery and the courts held at the time that the
Company is not to issue the excise invoices and therefore the Parent cancelled such invoices. The Parent
is now challenged for such reversais by D.G.F.P. Constanta, which concludad not to acknowledge the
conciusions of the court decision and held the Parent liable for paying such excises; the Parent appealed
the tax audit, which is now being suspended as for the same reason described in the paragraph above.
The ameount noted in the minutes issued by D.G.F.P Constanta is RON 8.5 Million {USD 2.2 million). The
management is confident that the likelihood of reversal of the earlier court decision is very low. No
changes were incurred in 2017.

¢} In Decamber 2017, the National Agency for Tax Adminisiration finalized the {ax inspection in
Rompetrol Rafinare (covering the period 2011-2015) for: VAT fiscal group {all entities from fiscal group
were under fiscal control}, income tax, withholding tax and excise.

Thorough the Assessment Decision (received in January 2018}, there were imposed the following
additional taxes: RON 26.1 million representing VAT (of which BON 13.1 million related to VAT

of Rompetrol Rafinare SA the rest belonging to the VAT group companies}, AON 6.5 miliion representing
Rompetrol Rafinare SA withholding tax and decrease of Rafinare’s fiscal loss with RON 144 .4 million. The
related penaliies assessed are in amount of BON 16.3 million for all VAT group companies. The principal
additional taxes and related penalties were partially paid and partially compensated with receivable taxes.

The tax assessment on VAT group and RRC was challenged on February 26, 2018. According to the
Bomanian Fiscal Procedure Code, the appeal shall be resclved within 45 days of the filing date. lf the
cortestation is not solved within 8 months from the filing date, the contestant may address the competent
administrative court for the annuliment of the act.

In 2017, in respect of the above-mentioned tax inspection, a provision in amount of USD 3.5 miltion was
booked in relation to Bompetrol Rafinare {see notes 16 and 20},

English translation is for information purposes only. Fomanian ianguage text is the official text for submission,
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27.LEGAL MATTERS

L itigation with the Stale involving criminal charges

Starting with March 22, 2005, a number of criminal investigations have been initiated against ceriain
tormer snarehoiders directors, managers and external censors of Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. {"RRCY and
other individuals; these investigations were carried out at a formal level and materialized into ditferent
criminal proceeding activities (including specialized judicial expertise), currently undergoing the criminal
prosecution phase. At the present date, only one of the directors of the Company who is involved in the
investigation, stilf works for KMG International Group}.

The charges brought against the defendants upon the initiation of the criminal investigations were:

a) faflure to fulfill the investment commiiments undertaken under the privatization contract
concerming the Parent;

by uniawiul statement of excises and other debts {o the state budget;

¢y incorrect keeping of accounting registries regarding the technological products operations
undertaken at the oil terminal owned by Gil Terminal, charges which concermn events that ook
place during Aprit 2001 — October 2002;

d} adoption of GEO no. 118/2003.

Considering the above-mentioned charges, a freezing order were issued by DIICOT and received on 8-10
May 2016 (the “Orders”), whereby it was decided to impose a seizure {freezing of the assets) on the
maovable and immovable asseis of KMG International N.V., Rompstrol Rafinare SA and Qilfield
Exploration Business Solutions SA {former Rompetrol SA) as well as over the shares these companies
held in their Romanian subsidiaries.

The freezing of the assets does not impact the inventoties, receivables and the bank account of
Bompetrol Rafinare and this allows to the company to continue normally the day by day cperations.

Considering the nature of the allegations submitted by DIICOT, the companies KMG [nternational NV,
Rempefrol Rafinare SA si Oiffield Exploration Business Sofutions SA filed more memories that responded
to the accusations formulated by DHCOT. Up to date, no rasponse from BHCOT regarding these memos
has been received.

Since the KMG International companies mentioned above had no capacity in the file tii 2018 and it
seems the eniire process {with minor exceptions} of gathering the evidences by DICOT have been
performed before May 2018, the Companies submitted on Aprit 7, 2017 their own application for, on the
one hand, evidences to be attached to the file in order to defend and one the cther hand to be redone
some evidences (such as expertise report) performed befare 2016. No reply received yet from DIICOT on
this togic.

On April 12, 2017, the companiss submitted also their application by which they asked the dismissals of
the allegations regarding the OUG 248/2000 (regarding the privatization of RRC} and QUG 118/2003 (the
issuance of bonds) taking into consideration the recent Canstitutional Court decision no. 68/2017 by
which the Court settled that the legislative process, as well as the aspects regarding the opportunity
and/or lawfulness of a deed issued either by the Parliament and Government cannot be subject of a
criminal inquiry and the Constitution provides other leverages assigned to other public authorities to
conirol such instances. No reply received yet from DHCOT on this topic.

Taking into account the DHCOT considerations regarding the afieged acts committed before 2007, when
the Naticnal Company JSC KazMunayGas (KMG) acquired the majority of Rompetral Group and are
subject to File no. 22572006, KMG and KMG International N.V. (KMGI) sent o the Homanian authorities
on July 22, 2016 a Comprehensive Notice formalated on the basis of the treaties on the protection of
investmenis - based on the agreement between the Romanian Government and the Government of the
Republic of Kazakhstan, the Agreement between the Government of the Kingdom of the Netherlands and
the Govaernment of Romania the Energy Charter Traaty.

English franstation Is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission.
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27 LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

On October 20, 2016, the Ministry of Public Finance responded briefly to the KMG and KMGI Notification
mentioned above.

The submission of the aforementioned Notice represents the first procedural step that might give rise to
an arbitration dispute between an investor and the country where the investment was made. Should a
setilement between KMG and Romania {ail to be reached, the case will be referred {o and seitled by the
international Centre for Settlement of Investment Disputes undsr World Bank, headguartered in
Washington, D.C or to the Arbifration Instiiute of the Siockhalm Chamber of Commerce, in line with the
provisions of the respective treaties.

On May 10,June 28, 2017 and July 21 the Companies submitied their Statement of claims against the
DHCOT allegations for the tollowing topics: Libya receivable, RRC privatisation and post-privatization
period, privatization of Vega refinery and the issuance of bonds (OUG 118/2003}, infra-companies
transactions and budgetary taxes and duties.

On Juiy 17, 2017 DICOT issued an Ordinance which generally keens the approach of the Orders issuad
in 2016 but let the civil parties namely, Ministry of Energy and Ministry of Finance, to provide the figures
for the alleged damage they incurred as well as the evidences for supporting any alieged damage.

A statement of defence against the July 2017 Ordinance has been submitted on December 22, 2017 as
well a challenge against it submitted in front of the higher prosecutor on September 29, 2017,

[ itiaation on Tax Assessmenis received by Rompetrol Rafinare S.A.in 2012

in March 2012, the National Agency for Tax Administration issued to Rompetrol Ralfinare SA a General
Tax Audit Report covering the period 2007-2010 and an Assessmeant Decision for Payrment of RON 48
million (equivalent of USD 15 millicn at historical raie), out of which half represents additional principal tax
liabilities and the other half represents iate payment interest and penallies.

Both the Beport and the Decision were chalienged by Hompetrol Rafinare. The main court case starled
by Rompetrol Rafinare SA against the assessment has been seftled on 271 of Ociober 2014 by
Constanta Court of Appeal which partially annulled both Decision and the Assessment Decision for
payment of RON 48 miliicn (equivaient of USD 15 million at historical rate].

Constania Court of Appeai held liable the National Agency for Tax Administration {or paying back
Rompetrol Rafinare approximately RON 21 million (equivaient of USD 6.2 million at the historical rate)
and to pursue to audit again for approximately RON 8.7 milfion (equivatent of USD 2.8 million},

This Decision was appealed by both Hompetrol Ratinare and National Agency for Tax Administration in
front of the High Court of Cassation and Justice of Justice. On October 12, 2017, the High Court of
Cassation and Justice has rejected both appeals, so the decision of the first instance remained
unchanged.

The re-audit was initiated in February 2018 and it is in progress at the date of the Financial Statemeants.

Litigaiion regarding COZ emission allowances.

On February 28, 2011 Rompetrol Ratinare S.A. won the court case against The Homandan Government
and The Ministry of Environment which reguired the Romanian authorities to allocate to Rompetrol
Rafinare an additional number of 2.577.988 CO2 emission certificates for the entire period 2008-2012
(Decision 68/CA/2011). This first decision issued by the Constanta Court of Appeal was challenged by the
Ministry of Environment and The Romanian Government, but the appeals were rejected by the High Court
of Cassation and Justice of Justice on October 30, 2012 and the first court decision became final,

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian languags text is the official texd for submission.
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27.LEGAIL MATTERS {continued)

According to the current Romanian and European legislation, the certificates obtained for 2008 - 2012
period may be owned and used also for the next period of 2013 ~ 2020,

Considering that the Ministry of Environment and the Romanian Government did not fulfill the Court
decision according to the deadline, Rompetrot Rafinare SA started a court claim against them, having as
object damages in amount of Euro 36 million. — File no. 917/36/2013,

On Ociober 1118 2017, the cowt joined this file with File no. 712/36/2015, which had the same object
(darmages) but amounted to Eurc 40 million (in accordance with a vaiuation of the Ministry of Environment
itself) and was based on some new entered into force legal provisions.

On July 28" 2015, the Government issued its Decision no. 611/2015, providing the modification of the
National Plan initially approved by Government Decision no. 80/2008 in accordance with the final court
decision of October 30 2012 and increasing the allocation of the Company with the amount of 2.577.940
CO2 emission certificates; this decision should have been fully and effectively implemented in the
foliowing 120 days, subject to an approval from European Commission, from the perspective of complying
with state aid reguiations. The EC approval was not delivered yet and the Government Decision has still
not been effectively implemented up to this date.

The naxt hearing in the reunited Files 817/36/2013 and 712/36/2015 is on April 16, 2018. An expertise
report was provided to the court in respect of the counter value of the certificates and foliowing these
proceedings a court deciston will have to be issued accordingly. The counter vaiug held by this recent
expertise report is EUR 38.51 million.

Litigation between Rompeitrol Downstream SHL and RATB (Bucharest public transport company)

in 2011, foliowing a public tender organized by RATB, the biggest public transport company in Bomania
serving Bucharest mefropolitan area, Rompetrol Downstream was awarded with a 4 year frame
Agreement (divided in 4 yearly contracts 2011-2015) for delivery of fus! for RATE fleet through an
integrated system.

Even if Rompetrol Downstream to timely and fully observed its obligation to supply RATE with needed
quantities of fuel during those 4 years, the related IT system was delivered gradually untit September 16%,
2015, which lead to 4 court case {one per sach agreement) initiated by RATE. The amounts requested by
BATB concerns the enforcement of penalty clause in amount of 15% of frame coniract turnover for not
observing the contraciual chligations relating to the implementation of the [T system;

a} Case 1 - On October 16,2015 RATB submitted to Court the claim for damages in amount of
FON 82.4 million {about USD 15 million) (based on the framework agreement no. 47-365/2011
and subsequent agreement no. 46-2617/25.10.2011). On October 27,2015, based on the tender
book terms and conditions, RATE executed the bank letier guaraniee provided by DWS for the
amount of RON 5.7 million. Initially, Downstream managed o win the case at the first coutt,
basad on a legal procedural exception. However, both parties challenged aifterwards the first
court rule by way of a second appeal. The appeal was admitted by the higher court {Bucharest
Court of Appeal) and the file was re-sent in 2017 for a proper judgment on the marits of the case.
On January 25, 2018, the court has rejected the RATB's claim and admitied partially Downstream
cialm for reimbursement for the itlegally enforcement by RATB of the LBG in amount of RON 5.7
mitlion as well as the indemnity of RON 0.28 million as interests for delay payments by RATB of
the fuel supplied,

by Case 2 - RATB claimed for RON 85.5 miliion (as damages conventionally assessed based on the
framework agreement ne, 47-365/2011 and subsequent agreement no. 46-2807/17.10.2012). On
1 November 2018, the court decided to reject the RATB' s claim on the grounds of the
inadmissibifity exception of the summons pursuant to the nor-perormance of the previous
procedure by RATE. By way of a final Decision no. 321/30 January 2017, the Bucharest Court of
Appeal rejected the second appeal filed by RATH as unsubstantiated and the legal case was
closed.

English transtation is for information purposas only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission,
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27 LEGAL MATTERS {continued)

¢) Case 3 - RATB ciaimed for RON 65.1 million (as damages conventionally assessed based on the
framewark agreement no. 47-365/2011 and subsequent agreement no. 46-3126/18.10.2013}.

On 14 November 20186, the court decided to reject the RATE' s claim on the grounds of the
inadmissibiiity exception of the summeons pursuant to the non-performance of the previous
procedure by RATB. By way of a final Decision on 20 April 2017, the Bucharest Court of Appeal
rejected the second appeal filed by RATE as groundless and the legal case was closed.

d} Case 4 - RATB claimed for RON 5.7 million (as damages conventionally assessed based on the
framework agreement no. 47-365/2011 and subsequent agreement no. 46-3241/17.10.2014).
First hearing was scheduled for 25 October 2016. At that hearing term, the court suspended the
case’ judgement uniit Case 1 will be definitively setiled. Case’ judgment still suspended.

i itiaation between Hompetrol Rafinare and Navodari City Hall

Cn November 189, 2015, it was finalized the local taxes fiscal audit of the local taxes, performed by
Navodari City Mall, for the peried of 2012-2014. The only non-compliant finding refers to revaluation of
buildings rmade by the company on December 31,2009 and December 31,2011, namely that not alf fixed
assets accounted for in the account 212 “Construction” were revalued, and thersfore it was notin
accordance with the accounting regulations stipulated by OMFP 3055/2009. As a result, the inspection
team considared that for year 2012, ceriain buildings were not revaiued within three years of the previous
revaiuation and applied a higher local tax rate of 10% for the buildings, and as a consequence assessad
an additional tax on buildings and related penalties in total amount of 20.4 mil RON, out of which the
principai is BON 11.2 miflion and the penalties and accessories are RON 9.2 million (calculaled until the
date of the repori)

a) Against the Imposing Decision issued by Navodari City Hall, the company has been filed an
adminisirative complaint with the fiscal authorities. The administrative complaint filed by RRC was
dismissed as heing lack of object, without any judgment prenounced on the merits of the case.
Rompetrol Rafinare submitted in court the challenge against this decision. This judicial procedure
was under court investigation proceedings with Constanta Court of Appeal who has completed
judicial investigation into the case and delivered a sentence on March 16, 2017, when the
challenge submitted by Rompetrol Rafinare was rejected. The solution has been appealed by
Hompetrol Rafinare. The appeal is in currently pending court investigation proceedings, and the
first hearing term before the High Court of Cassation and Justice shall be scheduled later.

b} Because the decision issued by Navodari Gity Hall of rejection the administrative compiaint as
being lack of object is based on Navodari Locai Council Decision no.435/December 21, 2015,
unider which Rompetrol Rafinare has obtain the annuiment of 73% of penalties, Bompetrol
Hafinare submitted a second action for partial annulment of Navedari Local Councit Decision no.
435/ecember 215, 2015, This action was admitted by Constania Tribunal. This solution has
been appealed by Navodari Local Council on Constanta Court of Appeal, where the first hearing
{erm was set on January 16", 2617, when the appeal was rejected. The solution is final.

c) Rompetrol Rafinare also filed the request for suspension the enforceable effects of the imposing
decision, pursuant to the Law 554/22004 and Government Ordinance 92/2003, file
no.788/36/2015. The statement of defense was submitted by Navodari City Hall and the first
hearing term was established for February 22, 2016. The court granted Rompetrol Hafinare
ciaim and suspendad the effects and the enforcement of the Tax Inspection Report and Tax
Decisions issued by Navodari City on November 19 2015. The solution was appealed by
Navodari City FHall. The case is currently pending court investigation proceedings with the High
Court of Cassation and Justice. The first hearing term before the High Court of Cassation and
Justice was scheduled on March 22, 2018,

English transiation is for information purposes only. Fomanian language text is the officlal text for submission.
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27.LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

Litigations beiween Rompetrol Rafinare and National Company ~ Constanta Maritime Port
Adminisiration 8.4,

in consideration of the violation by Compania Nationala Administratia Porturilor Mariime Constanta
(National Company of Constanta Maritime Porls Administration} of the legal provisions regulating its
activity, in the sense that it does not ensure the maintenance in operational parameters of the Midia port
found under #s adminisiration, so as to ensure the safety of navigation, the praservation of at ieast the
technical feaiures designed for the port, the assurance of safe access and aperation, the company
initiated several legal remedies against it, as follows:

&) Complaint against National Company "Administratia Porturilor Maritime® SA for violating the
provisions of art. 8 of the Law no 21/1986 which caused to Hompetrol Rafinare SA damages
consisting of USD 1.8 mil USD - dredging expenditures and 3.3 mil USD - commercial icss. The
compiaint leads to an investigation launched in April 2016 by the Competition Council.
Competition Council is entitled to acknowledge the violation by Administrafia Porturilor Maritime
of the provisions of art. 9 of Law no. 21/1986, {o sanction the said company in accordance with
the law and to render it liable to perform, subject to legal terms and conditions, the obligations
resting upon it as administrator of port areas and supplier of goods and services specific to the
exploitation of national maritime areas, in particular with respect to Midia Port.

b) Court claim against the Constanta Port Administration for Rompetrol Rafinare damages refated to
lower port drafts during January - May 2015 (0.8 mil USD) and for restitution of dredging
expanses (USD 1.7 miliion). On May 18th, 2017, the Court partially admitied the claim of the
plaintiff Rompeirol Rafinare SA against the defendant Constanta Port Administration and cbliged
the defendant {o pay o the plaintiff:
¢ The amount of EUR 1.57 miillion, representing dredging expenditures paid by Rompetrol

Rafinare S8A, during the period 30 April 2015 - 11 May 2015;
o The amaunt of RON 0.079 million representing legal costs.
Both parties filed for appeal against the soiution pronounced by first court. On December 27,
2017, Constanta Gourt of Appeal admitted the appeal filed by Constanta Port Administration,
reject the appeal! filad by Rompetrol Rafinare SA and changed the sentence proncunced by the
first court, so all the claims of Rompetrot Ratinare against APMC have been rejected. Rompstrol
Rafinare will submit the appeal within 30 days since the communication of the decision issued by
Constanta Court of Appeal. The decision is not communicated yet.

Procedure in which is involved Rompetrol Rafinare SA, Hominserv SRL., and emplovees of the two
companies, following of a technical incident occurred in of Petromidiza refinery on August 22, 2016

On August 22, 2016 a technical incident occurred within the DAV plant. Foliowing the event, two
employees of a Group' subsidiary Rominserv SRL suffered burns and two persons passed away.

The competent authorities have initiated investigations in order to establish the circumstances and the

causes that generated the technical incident. In respect of the work accident, the Prosecutor's Office of
the Constanta Court of Appeal office, was notified ex officio and being open file no. 586 /F/ 20186, within
which have been guestioned employees of the 2 companies and was administered technical experiise.

Following the completion of the criminal prosecution, Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A., Rominserv SRL and four
employeas were put on trial for: the non-observance of the legal labour health and safely measures,
bodily harm by negligence, manslaughter and accidental pollution. At the same time Rompetrol Rafinare
&.A, has guality as civilly liable party.

By the tinal conclusion of Preliminary Chamber procedure, communicated to Rompstrol Ralinare and
Rominserv on March 27, 2017 the court ordered, considering the fact that the prosecutor did not reply
within procedural five days, o return the case to the Prosecutor's Office Court Appeal Constanta, finding
refative nullity of the Ordinance no. 586 /P/20186, irregularity of the indictment, prosecutor failure to
respond within procedural terms. The Prosecutor's Office Court Appeal Constanta made appeal.

English franskation is for information purposes only. Romardan language text is the official text for submission.
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27 LEGAL WATTERS {continued)

On June 21, 2017 the Constanta County Court admitted the prosecutor’s appeal and ordered the retrial of
the case by Constania Court with the observance of the legal dispositions on the summaning of the
parties, namely the aggrieved persons and prosecutor. According with court decision of September 29,
2017, the file shall be sent back to the prosecutor office whereas it has been ascertained that ordinance
no. 586/P/2016 and the subsequent Act of Indictment of the Prosecutor's Office by Constanta Court of
Appeal are subject to relative nullity and that the object and limits of judgment cannot be established. The
solution has been challenged by Prosecutor's Office, the contestation was reject and the criminal file shall
be sent back to the prosecutor's office of Censtanta in order to resums the criminal prosecution activities
within the limits of the legality provisions.

On the other hand, it was admitted the request filed by Rominserv for the plea of unconstitutionality of
certain provisions to be settled further by the Censtitutional Court. The respective provisions concem the
possibility to rectity the document instituting court proceedings during the preliminary chamber procedure.

On January 17, 2018, the Constanta court dismissed the prosecutcr appeal against the decision issued in
preliminary chamber and therefore approached the companies defence reaseoning. The ruling is final and
the file shall be sent back to the Prosecutor's Office of Constanta to resume the criminal prosecution
activities within the limits of the legality provisions.

Considering the allegations, each company is facing, a maximum exposure of approximately RON 3.6
mittion.

Alsa, on May 25, 2017 Rompetrof Rafinare and Rominserv received a reply to its challenge submitted
against the Conslania Labour Inspectorate Reporis by which the Labour authority maintains the same
considerations challenged by the companies. On August 16%, 2017 both Rompetrol Rafinare and
Hominserv have received fines set by the Constanta Territonial Labour Inspectorate (in cumulated amount
of RON 0.028 million}. The minutes of the fine have been appealed by both parties involved. On
December 14, 2017, the court has requested to Rompetrol Rafinare and to the Ternionial Labour
Inspaciorate to send written specifications regarding optional suspension of the case, pending resoiution
of the criminal file. The court suspended the case until the criminal file will be sclved.

Other litigations

Yeqa residual pools remediation project

On November 15, 2017, Environmental National Guard {(ENG) performed an inspection at Vega Refinery
in order to determine the status of implementation of the Remedial Project.
Following the inspection, the Assessment Note no. 29% was issued, specifying that:

+ on the same day the Company had to provide written information on the status of implementation
of the Project;

= ENG would inform Prahova Environment Protection Agency (PEPA) immediately of Company's
failure to comply with its obligations specified in the Environmental integrated Authorization;

« afine of 100.000 RON would be applied for Company’s {ailure to send a notice to PEPA with
respect 1o the commencement of the remedial works and to the identity of the contractor
appointed in the Project (by submitting a copy of the contract concluded therewith), including for
the failure 10 periorm the works described in the remedial project and to comply with the dead-
lines specified in relation thereto.

On November 21, 2017, PEPA transmitiad the Notica no. 148, informing that the Company must comply
with the provisions of integrated Environmental Authorization (EIA) untit December 21, 2017 {related to
the execution of residual pocls remediation project), otherwise the EiA would be suspended untii remedial
of Company's falfure, but, in any case, no longer than & (six} months, after which the EIA would be
cancelled.

English transtation is for information purposes anly. Romanian language text is the official text Tor submission,
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27. LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

Against the documents recsived from environmental avthorities, the company has brought actions in
court as foilows:

a) preliminary compiaint against Assessment Note no. 299, submitted to the ENG on December
14,2017, The ENG point of view was received on January 170 2018;

D) preliminary complaint against Prior Notice no. 1439 submitted to the PEPA on December 14, 2017,
The ENG point of view was received on January 171 2018,;

o) suspension request of the Prior Notice no. 149, submitted on December 15, 2617 o the
Constania Court; the first hearing was not set. On February 5% 2018 the Constanta court has
accepted the request for suspension of the Prior Notice na. 149/21.11.2017; {o be mentioned that
in according with contentious law, the request for annulment of the Prior Notice will be formulated
in 60 days.

d} complaint against the fine received from ENG, submitied to the Ploiesti court on November 29,
2017, the next hearing was sef on March 19" 2018.

On December 20, 2017 the Company submitted {o the PEPA notice for initiation of the project works
{chase - construction} and on December 21, 2617 a correspondence with detalls regarding the company
which will execute the construction works. On January 17%2018 a detail plan activities for first stage of
the project {preparation activities) was sent to the PEPA.

Up to this date no writien confirmation was received from the environmental authorities regarding
compliance of the company with the cbligations mentioned in the EIA, related the execution of the
remediation project.

28 COMMITMENTS
Environmental commitments

The principai activity of Rompetrol Rafinare SA {inciuding Vega Refinery) of refinery petroleum products
and Rompetrol Petrochemicals has inherent effects on the environment in terms of effluents into tand,
water and air. The environmental effects of the Group’s activities are monitored by specialized authorities
and the management of the Group.

The Company has recognized a provision for restoration cost at its Vega locaiion, see Note 16.

As of December 31, 2017, and December 31,2018 Bompetrol Rafinare 5.A. has no specific
environmental commitments to conform {o the Integrated Environmental Authorization, except for Vega
obligations, which have been provisioned,

At the end of March 2018 Rompetrol Rafinare SA will buy back a total of 430,006 CO2 cerificates
fromACT Financial Solutions BV (former ACT Commodities BY}.

Other commitments

As of Decamber 31,2017, Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. has contracted capital commitments for projects
related to capital maintenance, authorizations and compliance with Eurc standards at the Petromidia
refinery of USD 28.89 million {2018: USD 55.03 million}. As of December 31, 2017, Hompetrol
Downstream S.R.L has contracted capital commitments of USD 3.9 million {2016: USD 4.27 million).

Rompetrol Downstream S.R.L. has certain concession and rental agreemenis with local authorities and
other companies/individuals in Romania for plots of land. Usually the conditions for these agreements are
the {ollowing: terms from 5 to 49 years, fixed or variable fees par year. According to these agreements,
the approximate amoeunt to be paid in 2018 is USD 5.47 million (USD 4.5 million in 2017},

English ranstation is for information purposes only. Romanian fanguage taxt is the official text for submission.
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28. COMMITMENTS (continued)

Sale and purchase commitmentis

As of December 31, 2017, the main Group’s commitments relate to Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. which has
non-group commitments for purchases of raw materials and utilities of USD 2,466.58 million {(2016: USD

2,102.8 million} and for sales of petroleum, petrochemicals products and utlilities sales of USD 1,967.84
million (2016: USD 1,724.08 million}.

29, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

28, 1. Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance, The capital structure of the Group consists of bank debt and shareholder icans {see Note 15),
cash and cash equivalents and equity atiributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the “Consoclidated Statement of Changes in the
Shareholders’ Equity”.

29.2, Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Debt (excluding shareholder loans and related parties) 238,750,435 214,051,063

Cash and cash equivalenis {12,592, 193} (15,810,298}

Net debt 226,158,242 198,240,765

Equity (including shareholder loans and related parties) 880,557,756 746,878 231

Net debt to equity ratio 0.26 0.27
28.3. Categories of financial instruments and {air values

The estimated fair values of these instruments approximate their carrying amounts.

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Financial asseis

Trade and other receivables 410,686,083 263,774,358
Long-term receivables 1,509,013 1,480,888
Available for sale investmentis 18,583 18,683
Derivative financial instruments - 5,340
Cash and cash equivalents 12,592,193 15,810,298
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 424,895 852 281,089,467
Financtal liabilities

Long-term borrowings - 193,162,805
Derivative financial instruments 48,387 323,130
Short term borrowings from shareholders 176,211,784 268,253,863
Cther non-current liabilities 207 676 177,110
Trade and other payables 888,094,585 725,513,525
Short-term Dorrowings banks 224,063,232 20,888,258

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

1,288,625,674

1,208,318,797
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Trade and ofher receivables are at net recoverable value the following are not considered as financial
assets:

s Advances to suppliers
o YAT {o be recoverad

s Profit tax receivables

s QOther taxes receivables

Similarly, for trade and other payables the following are not considered as financial liabilities:
s Advances from customers

Excises taxes

Special found tax for oil products

VAT payable

Protit tax payable

Salary taxes payable

e (Other taxes

o Deferred revenues;

e & 2 @ o

The estimated fair values of these instruments approximate their carrying amounts.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument’
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or fiquidation
saie. The foliowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
s Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and ather current liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shari-term maturities of these instruments.
= Fair value of unguoted available-for-sale financial assets is estimated using appropriate valuation
technigues.
o The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties. As at 31
December 2017, the marked to market value of derivative position is for financial instruments
recegnized at fair value.

29.4. Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair vatue of financial

instruments by valuation technigue:

s lLevsl1: guoted (unadiusted) prices in active markets for ideniical assets or habilities;

o Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are based on chservable market data, either directly or indirectly;

e Level 3: technigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are
not based on observable market data.

English transiation is for information purposes only. Fomanian language text is the official text for submission,
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29, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

December 31, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Leavel 3

Financial asssis

Trade and other receivables 410,886,063 410,686,063 -
Long-term receivables 1,608,013 1,599,013 -
Avsilable for sale investments 18,583 18,583 -
Dertvative financial instruments - - -
Cash and cash equivalenis 12,582,183 12,592,183 -
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 424 695,852 424,895,852 -
Financial liabilities

Long-term borrowings - - -
Darivative financial instruments 48,387 - 48,387
Short term borrowings from sharsholders 176,211,784 176,211,784 -
Other non-current liabilities 207 676 207,676 -
Trade and other payables 888,094,585 588,094,595 -
Short-term borrowings banks 224 063,232 224,063,232 -
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,288,625,674 1,288,577,287 48,387

December 31, 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financiai asseis

Trade and other receivables 263,774,358 263,774,358 -
Long-term receivables 1,480,888 1,480,888 -
Available for sale investmenis 18,583 18,583 -
Derivative financial instruments 5,340 - 5,340
Cash and cash equivalents 15,810,298 15,810,298 -
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 281,089,467 281,084,127 5,340
Financial liabilities

Long-term borrowings 163,162,805 193,182,805 -
Derivative financial instruments 323,130 - 323,130
Short term barrowings from shareholders 268,253,068 268,253,269 -
Other non-current liabilities 177,110 177,110 -
Trade and other payables 725,513,626 725,513,525 -
Short-term borrowings banks 20,888,258 20,888,258 -
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,208,318,797 1,207,995,667 323,130

During the reporting period ending 31 December 2017 and 2018, there were no transfers between Lavel
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and ouf of Leval 3 fair value measurements,

28.5 Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses different commodity derivatives as part of price risk management in trading of crude oil

and products.

Halance Sheetl:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Derivative financlal asset - 5,340
Derivative financial liability (48,387} {323,130}
Net position - assel/{liability) {48,3587) {317,780)

The derivative instrumenis liability balance i respect of {air value hedge against the invenicries includes
an adjustment of USD 48 thousands.

English transtation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submission,
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Income Staiement:

Becember 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Unrealissd (gains) - i
Net position - {(gain)loss - in Cost of sales -
Reaiisad gain /(losses) - net 11,545,320 (2,178,570)
Total position - lossf{gain) ~ in Cost of sales 11,545,320 {2,179,570)

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Derivative asset/(liability) 2016 {317,7980) {626,926)
Forex unreaiized (hedging of forex) - -
Cash paymenis (42,808) 1,426,383
Reserves 312,211 {1,117.247)
Derivative asset/(liability) 2017 {48,387) {317,790}

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are re-
measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are recognized in profit or loss as they arise.

288 Market risk

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of risks including the effects of: changes in the international
guotations for crude oil and petroleum products, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The
Group’s overall risk management main objective is to minimize the petential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Group companies,

28.7. Foreign currency risk management

The Group's functional currenay is United States Dollar ("USD"} and crude oil imports and a significant
part of petroleum products sales are all denominated principally in US Dollars, therefore, limited foreign
currency exposure arises in this contaext. Certain assets and liabilities are denominated in other
currencies, which are translated at the prevailing exchange rate at each balance sheet date. The
unrealized differences are charged or credited o the income statement but do not affect cash flows.
Group Treasury is responsible for handling the Group foreign currency transactions.

239.8. Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the RON and EUR currencies.

The folicwing table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the USD against the
relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only ocutstanding foreign currency
denominated maonetary tems and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicaies an increase in profit and other equily here the USD
strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the USD against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity, and the balances
below would be negative.

English translation is for information purposes only. Romanian language text is the official text for submissicn,
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29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {(continued;)

HON EUR
2017 2016 2017 2018
uso UsD
Profit or loss %o 916,598 {1,869,718) (58,561) {B826,698)
~5% {916,598) 1,969,718 58,561 826,698
28.9. interest rate risk management

Interest rate price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates relative to the interest rate that applies to the financial instrument. interest rate cash
flow rislc is the risk that the interest cost will fluciuate over time. The Group has long-term debt and shon-
term debt that incur interest at tixed and variable interest rales that exposes the Group te both fair value
and cash flow risk. Details of the interest rate terms, which apply to the Group's borrowings, are provided
in Notes 12 and 15.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the financial instruments at the reporting
data, For fioating rate fabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of hability outstanding at
the reporiing date was outstanding for the whole year.

if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's: profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would decrease/increase by USD 1,672 thousand
{2016: decrease/increase by USD 2,796 thousand).

29.10.  Liquidity risk management

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016 based on centractual undiscounted payments, including interest payable untii the
end of the contracts for finance leasing and loans.

iess than 1 month 312 1-5
Year ended December 31, 2017 or on demand <3 months months years 5 years Total
Long-term deli - - - - - -
Trade and cther payables B11,747.601 73,184,721 3,212,273 - - 888,094,505
Gerivative financial instrumeants - 48,387 - - - 48,387
Short-iamn borrowings from related parties 176,211,784 1,898,087 4,766,109 « - 182,575,950
Short-term debi - 1,812,154 224,752,807 - - 226,564,961
Cher nan-current liabilities - - - 207878 - 207.678
987,828,385 76,623,318 232,731,188 207.678 - 1,297.491,660
Less than 1 month <3 3-12
Year ended December 31, 2016 or on demand months months 1-8B yvears  >5 years Total
Long-term debt - 1,530,815 4,582 446 195,203,892 - 201,327,153
Trade and other payables 8A2,245,523 38,570,208 4,286,730 1,003 ~ 725513525
Darivative financial instrumeanis - 323,130 - - 323,130
Short-term borrowings from refated parties 268,253,869 7.374 - - 268,261,243
Short-term delt - 186,103 20,882,302 244,083 - 21,322 498
Cther non-current liabilities 15,841 - - 161,168 - 177,110
950,515,433 41,017,631 29,781,538 195 610,157 - 1,216,8924,759

English transiation is for information purposes only, Fomanian language text is the official text for submission.
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29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND BISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
29,11,  Commodity price risk

The Group is affected by the volatility of prices of crude oil, oif products and by refinery margins. lis
operating activities require ongoing purchase of crude ofl to be used in its production as well as supplies
to its clients. Due to significantly increased volatility of crude off, the management developed a hedgs
policy which was presenied to the Group’s Board of Directors and was approved in most signiticant
aspects in 2010 and with some further amendments in February 2011. Following this approval, the Group
stared on January 2011 to hedge commedities held by Rompetrol Rafinare and in 2014 it was
implementad a hedging program in Rompetrol Downstream.

According to the hedge policy, on the commodity side, the flat price risk for priced inventories above a
certain threshold {(called base operating stock in case of Rompetrol Refinery, benchmark stock for
Rompeirol Downstrearn) is hedged using future contracts fraded on [CE Exchange and some OTC
instruments. The base operating stock is the equivalent of priced stocks that are held at any moment in
time in the Group, hence price fluctuations will not affect the cash-flow. Based on the expectations of
crude oil price increase, at the beginning of 2017, the hedge strategy for 2017 was split between fuiures
and options.

Trading activities are separated into physical {purchase from third parties and KazmunayGas Group, and
sales to third parties and Intercompany} and paper trades {for economic hedging purposes). Each
physical transaction is covered through a related futures position according to the exposure parameters
set by management (i.e. based an physical guantities soid or purchased). The Group sells or buys the
equivalent number of fufure contracts. This paper trade is done only to hedge the risk of the Physical
Trade and not to gain from the trading of these instruments. The company also had hedge operations for
refinery margins. The European refinery margin had a good evelution during 2017 {in line with fast year
figures). In particular, in August, as a result of Harvey Hurricane in US, there was a temporary lack of
supply in the region which pushed up European Margins to outstanding levels, being also a good moment
for refiners o hedge upcoming period.

In terms of Refinery Margin Hedge, the company recorded positive resuit frorn both paper and physical
sides. The net impact of the commodity hedges {physical result ~gain- plus paper result ~loss- for hedged
stocks) was USD 8.5 million {2016: net gain of USD 10.4 million). in the same time, the company results
were posilively impacted by the inventory gains related to the base operating stock in rafinery but
sonsidering such stock is constant in time, the gain is only on paper not on cash.

2812 Credit risk

Credit risk is the rigk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
cusiomer contract isading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities primarily for trade receivables and from its financing activities including bank deposits, forsign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables

The retail operational segment is exposed to credit risk. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
moniiored. Sales to KazMunayGas Trading AG, a related party represent 20% of the Group's revenues.
The reguirement for impairment is analyzed on a regular basis, being undertaken on an individual basis
as weil as collectively on the basis of ageing.

Financial instruments and bank deposiis

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institufions is managed by the Group's ireasury in
accordance with the Group's policy.

English translation is for information purposas only. Romanian language text s the officlal text for submission.
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30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Facility granted to Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A. by Rompetrol Well Services S.A. in amount of RON 13 million
has been extended until April 10, 2018,

Facllity granted to Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. by Rompetrol Well Services S.A. in amount of BON 11.2
million has been extended until May 28, 2018.

Facility granted to Rompetrol Rafinare S.A, by Rompetrol Well Services S.A. in amount of RON 7 million
has been extended until April 14, 2018.

Facility granted Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. by Rompetrol Well Services S.A. in amount of RON 3.1 million
has been extended until May 3, 2018.

At the end of March 2018 Rompetrol Rafinare SA is going to buy back a total of 430,000 CO2 certificates
{in amount of EUR 2.6 million) frem ACT Financial Solutions BV {former ACT Commadities BY).

English transtation is for information purposas only. Bomanian fanguage text is the official text for submission.
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